
Page 1 of 3 
 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, 

PLEASE CONTACT THE CLERK DEPARTMENT AT (408) 354-6834.  NOTIFICATION 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING WILL ENABLE THE TOWN 

TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING [28 CFR §35.102-35.104] 

                     

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

MAY 27, 2020 
110 EAST MAIN STREET 

LOS GATOS, CA 

Melanie Hanssen, Chair 
Kathryn Janoff, Vice Chair 

Mary Badame, Commissioner 
Jeffrey Barnett, Commissioner 
Kendra Burch, Commissioner 

Matthew Hudes, Commissioner 
Reza Tavana, Commissioner 

 
 
PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC PROCESS 

 
How to participate:  The Town of Los Gatos strongly encourages your active participation in the 

public process, which is the cornerstone of democracy.  If you wish to speak to an item on the 

agenda, please complete a “speaker’s card” and return it to the Staff Liaison.  If you wish to speak 

to an item NOT on the agenda, you may do so during the “verbal communications” period. The 

time allocated to speakers may change to better facilitate the Planning Commission meeting.  

 

Effective Proceedings:  The purpose of the Planning Commission meeting is to conduct the 

business of the community in an effective and efficient manner.  For the benefit of the 

community, the Town of Los Gatos asks that you follow the Town’s meeting guidelines while 

attending Planning Commission meetings and treat everyone with respect and dignity.  This is 

done by following meeting guidelines set forth in State law and in the Town Code. Disruptive 

conduct is not tolerated, including but not limited to: addressing the Commissioners without first 

being recognized; interrupting speakers, Commissioners or Town staff; continuing to speak after 

the allotted time has expired; failing to relinquish the podium when directed to do so; and 

repetitiously addressing the same subject. 

Deadlines for Public Comment and Presentations are as follows: 

 Persons wishing to make an audio/visual presentation on any agenda item must submit the 
presentation electronically, either in person or via email, to the Planning Department by 1 
p.m. or the Clerk’s Office no later than 3:00 p.m. on the day of the Planning Commission 
meeting. 

 Persons wishing to submit written comments to be included in the materials provided to the 
Planning Commission must provide the comments to the Planning Department as follows: 
o For inclusion in the regular packet: by 11:00 a.m. the Friday before the meeting 
o For inclusion in any Addendum: by 11:00 a.m. the Monday before the meeting 
o For inclusion in any Desk Item: by 11:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting 

 
 

 

 

  

Planning Commission meetings are broadcast Live on KCAT, Channel 15 (on Comcast) on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays at 7:00 p.m. 
Live and Archived Planning Commission meetings can be viewed by going to: 

https://www.kcat.org/government-meetings 

Page 1

https://www.kcat.org/government-meetings


Page 2 of 3 
 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

MAY 27, 2020 

7:00 PM 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING MAY 27, 2020 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

This meeting is being conducted utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means consistent with 
State of California Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID-19 
pandemic.  The live stream of the meeting may be viewed on television and/or online at: 
https://meetings.municode.com/PublishPage/index?cid=LOSGATOS&ppid=4bc370fb-3064-
458e-a11a-78e0c0e5d161&p=0.  In accordance with Executive Order N-29-20, the public may 
only view the meeting on television and/or online and not in the Council Chamber. 

PARTICIPATION 

If you are interested in providing oral comments real-time during the meeting, you must make 
a request in advance prior to the time the Chair calls the item for Public Comment to obtain 
the Zoom link and password for the meeting.  Please email PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov 
to obtain the link and password.   
 
During the meeting: 

 When the Chair announces the item for which you wish to speak, click the “raise hand” 
feature in Zoom.  If you are participating by phone on the Zoom app, press *9 on your 
telephone keypad to raise your hand.  If you are participating by calling in, without a 
Zoom app, you must notify the Community Development Director at 
PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov which item(s) you would like to speak on prior to 7:00 
p.m. the day of the meeting.   

 When called to speak, please limit your comments to three (3) minutes, or such other 
time as the Chair may decide, consistent with the time limit for speakers at a Planning 
Commission meeting. 

If you are unable to participate in real-time, you may send an email to 
PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov with the subject line “Public Comment Item #__ ” (insert 
the item number relevant to your comment) or “Verbal Communications – Non Agenda Item.”  
Comments will be reviewed and distributed before the meeting if received by 5:00 p.m. on the 
day of the meeting.  All comments received will become part of the record.  The Chair has the 
option to modify this action on items based on comments received. 

REMOTE LOCATION PARTICIPANTS 
The following Planning Commissioners are listed to permit them to appear electronically or 
telephonically at the Planning Commission meeting: CHAIR MELANIE HANSSEN, VICE CHAIR 
JANOFF, COMMISSIONER BADAME, COMMISSIONER BARNETT, COMMISSIONER BURCH, 
COMMISSIONER HUDES, COMMISSIONER TEVANA.  All votes during the teleconferencing session 
will be conducted by roll call vote. 

Page 2

https://meetings.municode.com/PublishPage/index?cid=LOSGATOS&ppid=4bc370fb-3064-458e-a11a-78e0c0e5d161&p=0
https://meetings.municode.com/PublishPage/index?cid=LOSGATOS&ppid=4bc370fb-3064-458e-a11a-78e0c0e5d161&p=0
mailto:PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov
mailto:PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov
mailto:PlanningComment@losgatosca.gov


Page 3 of 3 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS (Members of the public are welcome to address the Planning 
Commission on any matter that is not listed on the agenda consistent with the Participation 
instructions contained on page 2 of this agenda.  To ensure all agenda items are heard and unless 
additional time is authorized by the Chair, this portion of the agenda is limited to 30 minutes and 
no more than three (3) minutes per comment.  In the event additional comments were not able 
to be heard during the initial Verbal Communications portion of the agenda, an additional Verbal 
Communications will be opened prior to adjournment.) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (Applicants/Appellants, their representatives, and members of the public 
wishing to address the Council on any Public Hearing item should make a request in advance to 
obtain the Zoom link for this meeting by following the Participation instructions contained on 
page 2 of this agenda. Applicants/Appellants and their representatives may be allotted up to a 
total of five minutes maximum for opening statements. Members of the public may be allotted 
up to three minutes to comment on any public hearing item. Applicants/Appellants and their 
representatives may be allotted up to a total of three minutes maximum for closing statements. 
Items requested.) 

1. Consider Approval of a Request for Construction of an Addition to an Existing Commercial 
Building Requiring a Variance to Exceed Floor Area Ratio (FAR) Standards on Property Zoned 
C-2, Located at 59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue.  APN 510-44-029.  Variance Application V-19-003.  
Property Owner/Applicant: Bean Avenue Associates. 

2. Consider Approval of a Request for Demolition of an Existing Single-family Residence, 
Construction of a New Single-family Residence, and Site Improvements Requiring a Grading 
Permit on Property Zoned HR-2½ Located at 15310 Suview Drive.  APN 537-24-024.  
Architecture and Site Application S-19-025.  Property Owners: James and Holly Vergara.  
Applicant: Camargo and Associates, Inc.  Project Planner: Sean Mullin.  

3. Forward a Recommendation to the Town Council for Approval of Amendments to Chapter 
29 (Zoning Regulations) of the Town Code Regarding Vehicle Sales, Town Wide.  Town Code 
Amendment Application A-20-003.  Applicant: Town of Los Gatos  

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS / COMMISSION MATTERS 

ADJOURNMENT (Planning Commission policy is to adjourn no later than 11:30 p.m. unless a 
majority of the Planning Commission votes for an extension of time.) 

 

 

 

 

  

Writings related to an item on the Planning Commission meeting agenda distributed to members of the Commission 

within 72 hours of the meeting are available for public inspection on the official Town of Los Gatos website. 

 

Note: The Town of Los Gatos has adopted the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6; litigation challenging a 

decision of the Town Council must be brought within 90 days after the decision is announced unless a shorter time is 

required by State or Federal law. 

 

Page 3



 

PREPARED BY: Sean Mullin, AICP 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 05/27/2020 

ITEM NO: 1  

 
   

 

DATE:   May 22, 2020 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of a Request for Construction of an Addition to an Existing 
Commercial Building Requiring a Variance to Exceed Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 
Standards on Property Zoned C-2, Located at 59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue.  APN 
510-44-029.  Variance Application V-19-003.  Property Owner/Applicant: 
Bean Avenue Associates. 
 
Deemed complete:  February 6, 2020 
Final date to take action:  August 6, 2020 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Consider approval of a request for construction of an addition to an existing commercial 
building requiring a Variance to exceed Floor Area Ratio (FAR) standards on property zoned C-2, 
located at 59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue.   
 
PROJECT DATA: 
 
General Plan Designation:   Central Business District 
Zoning Designation:  Central Business District, C-2 
Applicable Plans & Standards:  General Plan; Commercial Design Guidelines 
Parcel Size:  11,270 square feet 
Surrounding Area: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan Zoning 

North Commercial  Central Business District   C-2 

East Commercial  Central Business District   C-2 

South Commercial  Central Business District   C-2 

West Commercial  Medium Density Residential   C-2 

Page 4



PAGE 2 OF 7 
SUBJECT: 59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue /V-19-003 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
CEQA:   
 
The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the Implementation 
of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15301: Existing Facilities. 
 
FINDINGS:  
 
 As required, the project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 

Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15301: Existing 
Facilities.   

 As required by Section 29.20.170 of the Town Code for granting a Variance application to 
exceed floor area ratio (FAR) standards. 

 That the proposed project is consistent with the applicable Commercial Design Guidelines.    
 
ACTION: 
 
The decision of the Planning Commission is final unless appealed within ten days. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The subject site is located on the southwest corner of N. Santa Cruz and Bean Avenues (Exhibit 
1).  The subject property is approximately 11,270 square feet, and is developed with a two-
story, 14,786-square-foot commercial building.  The existing building, constructed in 1974, is 
nonconforming as it exceeds the current maximum allowable FAR standards in the C-2 zone, 
established in 1976 and revised in 1984. 
 
The project is being considered by the Planning Commission as the applicant is requesting 
approval of a Variance to exceed the maximum allowable FAR standards for the construction of 
an addition to accommodate a new elevator within the interior courtyard of the building.  The 
addition would add 63 square feet to the building, increasing the FAR from 1.282 to 1.287, 
where a FAR of 0.60 is allowed in the C-2 zone. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
A. Location and Surrounding Neighborhood 

 
The subject property is located on the southwest corner of N. Santa Cruz and Bean Avenues 
(Exhibit 1) and is developed with a two-story, 14,786-square-foot, commercial building.  The 
surrounding area is primarily commercial with single-family residential and educational uses 
located beyond the immediately adjacent properties to the west.   

  

Page 5



PAGE 3 OF 7 
SUBJECT: 59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue /V-19-003 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION (continued): 
 
B. Project Summary 
 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Variance to exceed the maximum allowable FAR 
standards for the construction of an addition to accommodate a new elevator within the 
interior courtyard of the building.  The addition would add 63 square feet to the building, 
increasing the FAR from 1.282 to 1.287, where a FAR of 0.60 is allowed in the C-2 zone. 

 
C. Zoning Compliance 
 

The first-floor retail and second-floor office uses are allowed uses in the C-2 zone, and the 
footprint of the proposed addition meets the required setbacks and height limitations of 
the zone.  As described above the applicant is requesting a Variance to exceed the 
maximum allowable FAR standards in the C-2 zone. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A. Project Summary 

 
The applicant is proposing to construct a two-story addition located within the interior 
courtyard area of the building.  The addition would accommodate an elevator providing 
access to the building’s second floor.  The proposed addition of 63 square feet would 
increase the floor area of the building from 14,786 square feet to 14,849 square feet, where 
6,623 square feet is currently allowed with a FAR of 0.60.  The proposed addition would not 
be visible from the street, given that it would be located within the interior courtyard area, 
and the top of the roof of the addition would be lower than the top of the roof of the 
existing building.  All new exterior materials would match existing exterior materials.   
 

Floor Area Summary 

 Square 
Footage 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Maximum Allowed 6,623 0.60 

Upper Floor 7,740 -- 

Main Floor 7,046 -- 

Total (Existing) 14,786 1.282 

Addition 63 -- 

Total (Proposed) 14,849 1.287 

 
  

Page 6



PAGE 4 OF 7 
SUBJECT: 59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue /V-19-003 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 
 
B. Variance - Floor Area Ratio  

 
Section 29.60.345 of the Town Code states that the expansion of gross floor area of an 
existing building in the C-2 zone shall not exceed a FAR of sixty-hundredths (0.60).  The 
existing FAR of the two-story building is 1.282 and exceeds the maximum allowable FAR 
standards.  The project includes an addition of 63 square feet, which would increase the 
FAR to 1.287.  The applicant is requesting a Variance to exceed the maximum allowable FAR 
standards in the C-2 zone to accommodate a new elevator.  The property owner and 
applicant have provided several Letters of Justification for the request (Exhibits 4 and 5), 
citing the construction date of the building, the need for access to the second floor, and 
structural constraints of locating the elevator where it would not increase the FAR.  
 

 As required by Section 29.20.170 of the Town Code, the deciding body, on the basis of the 
evidence submitted at the hearing, may grant a Variance if it can make the following findings.   

 
1. Because of special circumstances applicable to the property, including size, shape, 

topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of the ordinance deprives  
such property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under 
identical zone; and 

2. The granting of a variance would not constitute a grant of special privileges inconsistent 
with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone which such property 
is situated. 

 
The applicant has submitted letters of justification outlining the need for elevator access to 
the second floor of the building (Exhibits 4 and 5).  The letters reference the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), which requires that elevators or lifts be incorporated into 
most multi-story buildings constructed after 1990.  ADA law sets the minimum standards for 
accessibility and requires public accommodations to remove barriers in existing buildings 
where it is easy to do so without much difficulty or expense.  The applicant is proposing to 
install an elevator for the existing building, which was constructed in 1974, and has 
summarized the structural and aesthetic constraints of alternative locations for the elevator 
that would not increase the FAR.  Given the special circumstance of access requirements 
and the constraints presented by the existing building, granting of the Variance to exceed 
the maximum allowable FAR standards in the C-2 zone would be consistent with the 
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity under the same zone without 
increasing leasable floor area, and would not constitute a grant of special privilege.   

  

Page 7



PAGE 5 OF 7 
SUBJECT: 59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue /V-19-003 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 
 
C. Neighborhood Compatibility 

 
The immediate area is made up of one- and two-story commercial buildings.  Based on 
Town and County records, the surrounding buildings’ FARs range from 0.383 to 0.968.  The 
Neighborhood Analysis table below reflects the current conditions of the immediate area. 
 

FAR Comparison - Neighborhood Analysis 

Address Zoning 
Building 

Areas 
Gross 

Lot Area 
FAR 

No. of 
Stories 

40 N. Santa Cruz Avenue C-2 8,631 8,918 0.968 1 
41 N. Santa Cruz Avenue C-2 7,454 10,070 0.740 1 
52 N. Santa Cruz Avenue C-2 4,401 9,341 0.471 1 
56 N. Santa Cruz Avenue C-2 6,440 8,250 0.781 1 
57 N. Santa Cruz Avenue C-2 6,574 12,827 0.513 1 
58 N. Santa Cruz Avenue C-2 1,736 2,897 0.599 1 
100 N. Santa Cruz Avenue C-2 5,329 9,035 0.590 1 
105 N. Santa Cruz Avenue C-2 4,876 12,733 0.383 1 
111 N. Santa Cruz Avenue C-2 3,000 4,087 0.734 1 
211 Bean Avenue C-2 3,605 5,600 0.644 2 

59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue (e) C-2 14,786 11,538 1.282 2 
59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue (p) C-2 14,849 11,538 1.287 2 
Bold – Exceeds maximum allowable FAR of 0.60 for the C-2 zone 

 
The proposed project would continue to be the largest for FAR in the neighborhood.  Six out 
of the 11 existing properties listed above, including the existing nonconforming building, 
exceed the maximum allowable FAR of 0.60 in the C-2 zone.  
 

D. CEQA Determination 
 

The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 
Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15301: Existing 
Facilities. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
At this time, the Town has not received any public comment. 
 
  

Page 8



PAGE 6 OF 7 
SUBJECT: 59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue /V-19-003 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
A. Summary 
 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Variance to exceed the FAR standards in the C-2 
zone for the construction of an addition to an existing two-story commercial building to 
accommodate an elevator.  The proposed addition of 63 feet would increase the FAR from 
1.282 to 1.287, where a maximum FAR of 0.60 is allowed in the C-2 zone.  The project is 
otherwise consistent with the Zoning Requirements, General Plan, and applicable 
Commercial Design Guidelines.  
 

B. Recommendation 
 
Based on the analysis above, and justification provided by the applicant, staff recommends 
approval of the Variance application subject to the recommended conditions of approval 
(Exhibit 3).  If the Planning Commission finds merit with the proposed project, it should: 
 
1. Make the finding that the proposed project is Categorically Exempt, pursuant to the 

adopted Guidelines for the implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, 
Section 15301: Existing Facilities (Exhibit 2); 

2. Make the findings as required by Section 29.20.170 of the Town Code for granting a 
Variance to exceed the maximum allowable FAR (Exhibit 2); 

3. Make the finding that the project complies with the applicable Commercial Design 
Guidelines (Exhibit 2); 

4. Approve Variance application V-19-003 with the conditions contained in Exhibit 3 and 
the development plans in Exhibit 7. 
 

C. Alternatives 
 

Alternatively, the Commission can: 
 
1. Continue the matter to a date certain with specific direction; or 
2. Approve the application with additional and/or modified conditions; or 
3. Deny the applications. 

 
  

Page 9



PAGE 7 OF 7 
SUBJECT: 59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue /V-19-003 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations  
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval 
4. Property owner’s Letters of Justification, received December 2, 2019 and December 9, 2019 
5. Applicant’s Letters of Justification, received December 9, 2019 
6. Photos of the site, received December 9, 2019 
7. Development Plans, received January 13, 2020 
 

Page 10



TA
IT 

AV VIC
TO

RY
 LN

BEAN AV
N S

AN
TA

 CR
UZ

 AV

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 AV

W MAIN ST

ELM ST

WI
LD

ER
 AV

GRAYS LN

ST
AT

IO
N W

Y

ROYCE ST

LY
ND

ON
 AV

MULLEN AV

59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue

0 0.250.125 Miles

°

Update Notes:
- Updated 12/20/17 to link to tlg-sql12 server data (sm)
- Updated 11/22/19 adding centerpoint guides, Buildings layer, and Project Site leader with label

EXHIBIT 1

Page 11



 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION – May 27, 2020 
REQUIRED FINDINGS & CONSIDERATIONS FOR: 
 
59 N Santa Cruz Avenue 
Variance Application V-19-003 
 
Requesting approval for construction of an addition to an existing commercial 
building to exceed floor area ratio (FAR) standards on property zone C-2 located at 
59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue (APN 510-44-029).  
Property Owner/Applicant: Bean Avenue Associates. 
 
 

FINDINGS 
 

Required findings for CEQA: 
 
■ The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 

Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15301: Existing 
Facilities.  

 
Required findings for granting a Variance application to exceed the maximum allowable FAR: 
 
■ As required by Section 29.20.170 of the Town Code for granting a Variance application: 
 

(1) Because of special circumstances applicable to the property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of this ordinance deprives 
such property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under identical 
zone; and 
 

(2) The granting of a variance would not constitute a grant of special privileges inconsistent 
with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone which such property is 
situated. 

 
Commercial Design Guidelines: 
 
■ The proposed building is consistent with applicable provisions of the Commercial Design 

Guidelines. 
 
 

 
N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2020\Santa Cruz N, 59 - Findings - PC 05-27-20.docx 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 2 

Page 12



 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION – May 27, 2020 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
59 N Santa Cruz Avenue 
Variance Application V-19-003 
 
Requesting approval for construction of an addition to an existing commercial 
building to exceed floor area ratio (FAR) standards on property zone C-2 located at 
59 N. Santa Cruz Avenue (APN 510-44-029).  
Property Owner/Applicant: Bean Avenue Associates. 
 
TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 
 
Planning Division 
1. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all of the conditions 

of approval and in substantial compliance with the approved plans. Any changes or 
modifications to the approved plans shall be approved by the Community Development 
Director, DRC or the Planning Commission depending on the scope of the changes. 

2. EXPIRATION: The approval will expire two years from the approval date pursuant to 
Section 29.20.320 of the Town Code, unless the approval has been vested. 

3. OUTDOOR LIGHTING:  Exterior lighting shall be kept to a minimum and shall be down 
directed fixtures that will not reflect or encroach onto adjacent properties. No flood 
lights shall be used unless it can be demonstrated that they are needed for safety or 
security.   

4. GENERAL:  All existing trees shown on the plan and trees required to remain or to be 
planted are specific subjects of approval of this plan and must remain on the site.  

5. TREE REMOVAL PERMIT: A Tree Removal Permit shall be obtained for any Town-
regulated trees to be removed, prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit. 

6. TREE FENCING:  Protective tree fencing shall be placed at the drip line of existing trees 
and shall remain through all phases of construction.  Fencing shall be six-foot-high chain 
link attached to two-inch diameter steel posts drive 18 inches into the ground and 
spaced no further than 10 feet apart.  Include a tree protection fencing plan with the 
construction plans. Any trenching within the dripline of existing trees shall be hand dug. 

7. ROOFTOP EQUIPMENT:  Any new or modified roof mounted equipment shall be fully 
screened and painted to match the roof material prior to issuance of an occupancy 
permit.  

8. ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES AND HUMAN REMAINS:   
a. In the event that archaeological traces are encountered, all construction within a 50-

meter radius of the find will be halted, the Community Development Director will be 
notified, and an archaeologist will be retained to examine the find and make 
appropriate recommendations. 

 
 

EXHIBIT 3 

Page 13



 

 

b. If human remains are discovered, the Santa Clara County Coroner will be notified. 
The Coroner will determine whether or not the remains are Native American. If the 
Coroner determines the remains are not subject to his authority, he will notify the 
Native American Heritage Commission, who shall attempt to identify descendants of 
the deceased Native Americans. 

c. If the Community Development Director finds that the archaeological find is not a 
significant resource, work will resume only after the submittal of a preliminary 
archaeological report and after provisions for reburial and ongoing monitoring are 
accepted. Provisions for identifying descendants of a deceased Native American and 
for reburial will follow the protocol set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5( e). 
If the site is found to be a significant archaeological site, a mitigation program will be 
prepared and submitted to the Community Development Director for consideration 
and approval, in conformance with the protocol set forth in Public Resources Code 
Section 21083.2. 

d. A final report shall be prepared when a find is determined to be a significant 
archaeological site, and/or when Native American remains are found on the site. The 
final report will include background information on the completed work, a 
description and list of identified resources, the disposition and curation of these 
resources, any testing, other recovered information, and conclusions. 

9. TOWN INDEMNITY: Applicants are notified that Town Code Section 1.10.115 requires 
that any applicant who receives a permit or entitlement from the Town shall defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the Town and its officials in any action brought by a third 
party to overturn, set aside, or void the permit or entitlement. This requirement is a 
condition of approval of all such permits and entitlements whether or not expressly set 
forth in the approval and may be secured to the satisfaction of the Town Attorney. 

10. COMPLIANCE MEMORANDUM: A memorandum, in compliance with standard Town 
practice, shall be prepared and submitted with the building permit detailing how the 
conditions of approval will be addressed.  
 

Building Division 
11. PERMITS REQUIRED: A Building Permit will be required for the addition of an elevator to 

an existing commercial building. 
12. APPLICABLE CODES: The current codes, as amended and adopted by the Town of Los 

Gatos as of January 1, 2020, are the 2019 California Building Standards Code, California 
Code of Regulations Title 24, Parts 1-12.  

13. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: The Conditions of Approval must be blue-lined in full on the 
cover sheet of the construction plans. A Compliance Memorandum shall be prepared 
and submitted with the building permit application detailing how the Conditions of 
Approval will be addressed. 

14. SIZE OF PLANS:  Submit four sets of construction plans, minimum size 24” x 36”, 
maximum size 30” x 42”. 

15. SOILS REPORT:  A Soils Report, prepared to the satisfaction of the Building Official, 
containing foundation and retaining wall design recommendations, shall be submitted 
with the Building Permit Application.  This report shall be prepared by a licensed Civil 

Page 14



 

 

Engineer specializing in soils mechanics.  
16. SHORING: Shoring plans and calculations will be required for all excavations which 

exceed five (5) feet in depth or which remove lateral support from any existing building, 
adjacent property, or the public right-of-way.  Shoring plans and calculations shall be 
prepared by a California licensed engineer and shall confirm to the Cal/OSHA 
regulations. 

17. FOUNDATION INSPECTIONS:  A pad certificate prepared by a licensed civil engineer or 
land surveyor shall be submitted to the project Building Inspector at foundation 
inspection.  This certificate shall certify compliance with the recommendations as 
specified in the Soils Report, and that the building pad elevations and on-site retaining 
wall locations and elevations have been prepared according to the approved plans.  
Horizontal and vertical controls shall be set and certified by a licensed surveyor or 
registered Civil Engineer for the following items: 
a. Building pad elevation 
b. Finish floor elevation 
c. Foundation corner locations 
d. Retaining wall(s) locations and elevations 

18. TITLE 24 ENERGY COMPLIANCE:  All required California Title 24 Energy Compliance 
Forms must be blue-lined (sticky-backed), i.e. directly printed, onto a plan sheet. 

19. SITE ACCESSIBILITY:  At least one accessible route within the boundary of the site shall 
be provided from public transportation stops, accessible parking and accessible 
passenger loading zones and public streets or sidewalks to the accessible building 
entrance that they serve.  The accessible route shall, to the maximum extent feasible, 
coincide with the route for the general public.  At least one accessible route shall 
connect all accessible buildings, facilities, elements and spaces that are on the same 
site.  

20. ACCESSIBLE PARKING:  The parking lots, as well as the parking structure, where parking 
is provided for the public as clients, guests or employees, shall provide handicap 
accessible parking.  Accessible parking spaces serving a particular building shall be 
located on the shortest accessible route of travel from adjacent parking to an accessible 
entrance.  In buildings with multiple accessible entrances with adjacent parking, 
accessible parking spaces shall be dispersed and located closest to the accessible 
entrances.   

21. HAZARDOUS FIRE ZONE:  All projects in the Town of Los Gatos require Class A roof 
assemblies. 

22. SPECIAL INSPECTIONS: When a special inspection is required by CBC Section 1704, the 
Architect or Engineer of Record shall prepare an inspection program that shall be 
submitted to the Building Official for approval prior to issuance of the Building Permit. 
The Town Special Inspection form must be completely filled-out and signed by all 
requested parties prior to permit issuance. Special Inspection forms are available from 
the Building Division Service Counter or online at www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

23. BLUEPRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY SHEET: The Town standard Santa Clara Valley Nonpoint 
Source Pollution Control Program Sheet (page size same as submitted drawings) shall be 
part of the plan submittal as the second page. The specification sheet is available at the 

Page 15



 

 

Building Division Service Counter for a fee of $2 or at ARC Blueprint for a fee or online at 
www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

24. APPROVALS REQUIRED: The project requires the following departments and agencies 
approval before issuing a building permit: 
a. Community Development – Planning Division: (408) 354-6874 
b. Engineering/Parks & Public Works Department: (408) 399-5771 
c. Santa Clara County Fire Department: (408) 378-4010 
 

TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT: 
 

25. ELEVATOR FIRE ALARM: The elevator shall be tied into a monitored fire alarm system. 
Submit 3 sets of drawings, a completed permit application and fees to the Santa Clara 
County Fire Dept. for approval prior to altering system. [CFC 901.4]. Response letter 
received by Town of Los Gatos on 1/13/2020 indicates "TMA Fire alarm system will be 
submitted for permit as noted". Deferred submittal should have been noted on Cover 
Sheet A-1. 

26. FIRE SPRINKLERS REQUIRED: A hydraulic elevator shall be protected by a monitored fire 
sprinkler system. Submit 3 sets of drawings, a completed permit application and fees to 
the Santa Clara County Fire Dept. for approval prior to altering system. [CFC 901.4]. 
Response letter received by Town of Los Gatos on 1/13/2020 indicates "TMA Fire 
sprinkler system will be submitted for permit as noted". Deferred submittal should have 
been noted on Cover Sheet A-1. 

27. FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS: Fire department access to the site, the building, and to all 
fire protection systems shall be maintained at all times, in accordance with CFC Chapter 
5. Response letter received by Town of Los Gatos on 1/13/2020 indicates "TMA Noted." 

28. CONSTRUCTION SITE FIRE SAFETY: All construction sites must comply with applicable 
provisions of the CFC Chapter 33 and our Standard Detail and Specification S1-7. Provide 
appropriate notations on subsequent plan submittals, as appropriate to the project. 
[CFC Chp. 33]. Response letter received by Town of Los Gatos on 1/13/2020 indicates 
"TMA Appropriate notations will be included in future plan submittals." 

29. ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION: Address numbers shall be maintained. New and existing 
buildings shall have approved address numbers, building numbers or approved building 
identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or 
road fronting the property. These numbers shall contrast with their background. Where 
required by the fire code official, address numbers shall be provided in additional 
approved locations to facilitate emergency response. Address numbers shall be Arabic 
numbers or alphabetical letters. Numbers shall be a minimum of 4 inches (101.6 mm) 
high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7 mm). Where access is by means of a 
private road and the building cannot be viewed from the public way, a monument, pole 
or other sign or means shall be used to identify the structure. [CFC Sec. 505.1]. 
Response letter received by Town of Los Gatos on 1/13/2020 indicates "TMA All address 
numbers shall be maintained as noted." 
 
 

Page 16



 

 

N:\DEV\CONDITIONS\2020\Santa Cruz Avenue N, 59 - PC COAs - 05-27-20.docx 

Page 17



EXHIBIT 4
Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



EXHIBIT 5
Page 21



EXHIBIT 6

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



1

A-1

Sheet Title:

COVER SHEET

Drawn by:

Project:

Scale:

Print Date:

18002

59
 N

. S
A

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

AV
E

Project

Da
te

:
Re

v
De

sc
rip

tio
n

12
/0

9/
20

19
Va

ria
nc

e 
Re

qu
es

t 
Su

bm
itt

al

EL
EV

AT
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
TE

N
A

N
T 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

T
59

 N
. S

an
ta

 C
ru

z A
ve

Lo
s G

at
os

, C
A 

95
03

0

Revisions & Dates

Li
ce

ns
e 

# 
C

23
22

1

RE
SI

D
EN

TI
A

L 
&

 C
O

M
M

ER
CI

A
L 

A
RC

H
IT

EC
TU

RE

61
 E

as
t 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, S
ui

te
 D

Lo
s 

Ga
to

s,
 C

A 
 9

50
30

Ph
on

e:
 4

08
-3

95
-8

01
6

te
rr

y@
tm

a-
ar

ch
.c

om

TE
RR

Y 
J. 

M
A

RT
IN

 A
SS

O
CI

AT
ES
, A
.I.

A
.

1/13/20

Va
ria

nc
e 

Re
qu

es
t 

Re
su

bm
itt

al
01

/1
3/

20
20

1

1

 ORIENTATION OF THIS PLAN DIFFERS FROM OTHER PLANS IN THIS SET ORIENTATION OF THIS PLAN DIFFERS FROM OTHER PLANS IN THIS SET

ELEVATOR ADDITION
TENANT IMPROVEMENT

59 N. Santa Cruz Ave
Los Gatos, CA 95030

PARCEL MAPVICINITY MAP

PROJECT DATA

ABBREVIATIONS

SHEET INDEX

59 N. Santa Cruz Ave Los Gatos CA 95030
Bean Avenue Associates
510-044-029
C2 - Central Business District Commercial
63 Sq Ft
14,786 Sq Ft
14,559 Sq Ft
(E) 2 Stories
None
TYPE III-B

A-1 Cover Sheet
A-2 Schematic Site Plan & Site Details
A-3.1 Main Level Floor Plan
A-3.2 Upper Level Floor Plan & Exterior Elevations

N/A

TJ, RTP

59 N. SANTA CRUZ AVE

PROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT

TERRY MARTIN ASSOCIATES
CA LIC # C-23221

61 E. MAIN STREET, SUITE D
LOS GATOS, CA 95030

(408) 395-8016
TERRY J. MARTIN, AIA

OWNER

BEAN AVENUE ASSOCIATES
P.O. BOX 3421

SARATOGA, CA 95070-1421
(408) 888-3362
DAVID DECARION

OCCUPANCY GROUPS: B Offices, M Retail
Nonseparated Occupancies / No Separation Required

APPLICABLE CODES: Los Gatos Municipal Code
2019 CA Bldg Code, 2019 CA Elec Code, 2019 CA Mech Code,
2019 CA Plmbg Code, 2019 CA Energy Code, 2019 CA Fire Code,
2019 CalGreen Code, 2019 CA Ref Stds Code
All as amended by The State Of California and Local Jurisdiction(s)

PROJECT ADDRESS:
OWNER:
APN:
ZONING:
AREA OF WORK:
BUILDING AREA:
TENANT SPACE AREA:
STORIES:
SPRINKLERS:
CONSTRUCTION TYPE:

• No Exiting Changes, No Occupancy or Use Changes, No Structural Changes

• Protect (E) Shell to Remain

• Provide (N) Accessible Elevator in (E) Courtyard as shown

PROJECT SCOPE
& And
∠ Angle
@ At
° Degree (Angle, Bearing, Temp)
Ø Diameter
∆ Delta, Revision
/ Divide, Divided By, Sequence
=, ≠ Equal (To), Not Equal (To)
' Foot/Feet, Minutes (Bearing)
" Inch(es), Seconds (Bearing)
>, ≥ Greater Than, Or Equal To
<, ≤ Less Than, Or Equal To
- Minus, Subtract(Ed)
# Number, Pound(S)
% Percent
+ Plus, Add(Ed)
± Plus/Minus (Approximately)

AB Anchor Bolt
Abv Above
AC Asphaltic Concrete
A/C Air Conditioning
Acoust Acoustic(al)
AD Area Drain
Addl Additional
Adj Adjust(able)
AFF Above Finish Floor
AHJ Authority Having Jurisdiction
AIA American Institute of Architects
Alt Alternate, Alternative
Alum Aluminum
Amp Ampere
Approx Approximately
Arch Architect(Ural)
Asph Asphalt
Assoc Association
Awn Awning

Bd Board
Bldg Building
Blk, Blkg Block, Blocking
Bm Beam
Bot Bottom
BS Both Sides
Btu British Thermal Unit
Btwn Between

Cab Cabinet
CB Column Base
CBB Cementitious Backer Board
CBC California Building Code
CEC California Electrical Code
Cem Cement(itious)
Cer Ceramic
CF Cubic Feet
CFC California Fire Code
CFM, CFS Cubic Feet Per Minute, Second
CI Cast Iron
Cir Circle, Circular
Circ Circulation
CJ Control Joint
CL Center Line
Clg Ceiling
Clo Closet
Clr Clear
CMC California Mechanical Code
Cntr Counter
CO, Co Clean Out, Company
Col Column
Comp Composite
Conc Concrete
Const Construction
Cont Contin(ue/ual/uous)
Cor Corner
Corr Corridor
CPC California Plumbing Code
Cpr Copper
Cpt Carpet
CRC California Residential Code
Csmt Casement
Ctrl Control
CW Cold Water
Cu Cubic

Dbl Double
Dbl Hng Double Hung
Deg Degree
Dept Department
Det Detail
DF Douglas Fir, Drinking Fountain
Dia Diameter
Diag Diagonal
Dim Dimension
Disp Dispenser, Disposal
Dist Distance
Div Divide, Division
Dn Down
Dr Drain, Door
Dwg Drawing
Dtl Detail
DW Dishwasher

E East
Ea Each
El Elevation
Elec Electrical
Elev Elevation, Elevator
Emer Emergency
EN Edge Nailing
Encl Enclosure
Engr Engineer
EP Electrical Panel
Eq Equal
Equip Equipment

(E) Existing
Eq Equal
EW Each Way
Exh Exhaust
Exp Expansion, Expanding
Ext Exterior

Fab Fabricate, Fabrication
FD Floor Drain
Fdn Foundation
FE, FEC Fire Extinguisher, FE Cabinet
FF Finish Floor
FG Fiberglass
FH Fire Hydrant
FHD Feminine Hygiene Dispenser
FHR Feminine Hygiene Receptacle
Fin Finish
Flr Floor
FOC Face Of Concrete
FOF Face Of Finish
FOS Face Of Stud
FRP Fiberglass Reinforced Panel
FS Far Side
Ft Foot, Feet
Ftg Footing
Furr Furring
Fut Future
FV Field Verify

Ga Gauge
Gal Gallon
Galv Galvanized
GB Grab Bar
GC General Contractor
GD Garbage Disposal
GL Glass
Gnd Ground
GSM Galvanized Sheet Metal
Gyp Gypsum

HB Hosebib
HD Holdown, Hold Down
Hdr Header
Hdwd Hardwood
Hdwr Hardware
He High Efficacy
Hgr, Hngr Hanger
HM Hollow Metal
Horiz Horizontal
Ht Height
HVAC Heat Vent & Air Conditioning

ID Inside Diameter
In Inch
Incl Include(s), Including
Info Information
Insul Insulation
Inv Inverted
Int Interior

Jan Janitor
Jbox Junction Box
Jct Junction
Jh Joint Hanger
Jt Joint

Kit Kitchen
KW, KWH Kilowatt, Kilowatt Hour

Lav Lavatory
Lat Lateral
Lb, Lbs Pound, Pounds
LF Lineal Feet, Linear Feet
Lin Lineal, Linear
Lt Light
Lvr Louver

M, m Meter
Matl Material
Max Maximum
MB Machine Bolts
Mech Mechanical
Memb Membrane
Mfr, Mnf Manufacturer
Min Minimum, Minute
Mir Mirror
Mtd Mounted
Mtl Metal
Mul Mullion

N North
NFPS
NIC Not In Contract
Nom Nominal
NS Near Side
NTS Not To Scale
(N) New

O/ Over (order of installation)
OAI Outside Air Intake
OC On Center
Occ Occupant(s)
Od Outside Diameter
OFCI Owner Furnished GC Installed
OFOI Owner Furnished & Installed
Opng Opening
OL Occupant Load
Opp Opposite
Orig Original

P, | |, // Parallel
P&P Prime & Paint
Pc Piece

Perp, ⊥ Perpendicular
PH Panic Hardware
PL Plate
PLam Plastic Laminate
Plmbg Plumbing
Plywd Plywood
Pnl Panel
Pol Polished
Pr Pair
Prefab Prefabricated
PSF Pounds Per Square Foot
PSI Pounds Per Square Inch
Pt, PT Point, Pressure Treated
PTD Paper Towel Dispenser
Ptn Partition

R Riser
(R) Replaced, Relocated
Rad Radial, Radius
RCP Reflected Ceiling Plan
Rd Roof Drain
Recpt Receptacle
Ref Reference
Reinf Reinforce(ment)
Reqd Required
Reqmts Requirements
Resil Resilient
Rev Revision
Rm Room
RV Roof Vent
RWL Rain Water Leader

S South
SAD See Architectural Drawings
San Sanitary
SASM Self Adhered Sheet Membrane
SC Solid Core
SCD Seat Cover Dispenser
Sched Schedule
Sec, Sect Section
SF Square Foot, Feet
Sht Sheet
Shwr Shower
Sim Similar (To)
SJ Seismic Joint
SLD See Landscape Drawings
SM Sheet Metal
SMS Sheet Metal Screw
Spec(s) Specification(s)
SPN Sole Plate Nailing
Sq Square
Sq Ft Square Foot, Feet
SSD See Structural Dwgs
SS, SStl Stainless Steel
St, ST Street, Strap Tie
Sta, Stn Station
Ste Suite
Stl Steel
Susp Suspended
Sy, Sq Yd Square Yard(s)
Sym Symmetrical
SW Shear Wall

T, Trd Tread
TB Towel Bar
T&B Top And Bottom
TBC To Be Confirmed
TBS To Be Selected
TD Tie Down
Tel Telephone
Temp Temporary, Temperature
Tmpd Tempered
Ter Terrazzo
Thresh Threshold
T&G Tongue and Groove
Thk Thick(ness)
Thru Through
TOC Top Of Concrete
TOS, TS Top Of Slab
TP Top Plate, Toilet Paper Dispenser
Trans Transformer
TSCD Toilet Seat Cover Dispenser
TStat Thermostat
TV Television
Typ Typical

U/ Under
UC, U/C Under-Counter
Unf Unfinished
UNO Unless Noted Otherwise
UON Unless Otherwise Noted
Ur Urinal

V Volt
VB Vapor Barrier
VCT Vinyl Composition Tile
Ven Veneer
Vert Vertical
Vest Vestibule
VIF Verify In Field
Vol Volume

W West
W/ With
W/O Without
WC Water Closet
Wd Wood
Wdw Window
WH Water Heater
WO Where Occurs
WP Waterproof(Ing)
Wt Weight

Yd Yard

•

EXHIBIT 7

Page 25



1

A-2

Sheet Title:

SCHEMATIC
SITE PLAN

Drawn by:

Project:

Scale:

Print Date:

18002

59
 N

. S
A

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

AV
E

Project

Da
te

:
Re

v
De

sc
rip

tio
n

12
/0

9/
20

19
Va

ria
nc

e 
Re

qu
es

t 
Su

bm
itt

al

EL
EV

AT
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
TE

N
A

N
T 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

T
59

 N
. S

an
ta

 C
ru

z A
ve

Lo
s G

at
os

, C
A

 9
50

30

Revisions & Dates

Li
ce

ns
e 

# 
C

23
22

1

RE
SI

D
EN

TI
A

L 
&

 C
O

M
M

ER
CI

A
L 

A
RC

H
IT

EC
TU

RE

61
 E

as
t 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, S
ui

te
 D

Lo
s 

Ga
to

s,
 C

A 
 9

50
30

Ph
on

e:
 4

08
-3

95
-8

01
6

te
rr

y@
tm

a-
ar

ch
.c

om

TE
RR

Y 
J. 

M
A

RT
IN

 A
SS

O
CI

AT
ES
, A
.I.

A
.

1/13/20

Va
ria

nc
e 

Re
qu

es
t 

Re
su

bm
itt

al
01

/1
3/

20
20

1

1

10
'-0

" 
Si

de
 S

tr
ee

t
Se

tb
ac

k

10'-0" Side Street
Setback

1'-0"±
to (E) Bldg

5'
-0

"±
to

 (
E)

Bl
dg

10'-0" Rear Street
Setback

BEAN AVENUE

NORTH SANTA CRUZ AVENUE

(E) Planter

(E)
Planter

(E)
Planter

UP

(E)
Trash

PL

PL

PL

PL

UP

Face of Floor Above

N20º33'30"E

N20º33'30"W

S61º29'E

N61º29'W 122.17'

94.45'

94.45'

122.17'

(N) 63sf Footprint
Accessible Elevator,
Exterior Walls to
Match (E)

(E)
Planter

(E)
Planter

Fa
ce

 o
f (

E)
Ba

lc
on

y 
ab

ov
e

Fa
ce

 o
f (

E)
Ba

lc
on

y 
ab

ov
e

Face of (E)
Balcony above

Face of (E)
Street curb

Face of (E)
Balcony above

(E)
Planter

Face of (E)
Street curb

FOOTPRINT OF (E)
2-STORY BUILDING

TO REMAIN

NO
PARKING

VICTORY LANE

(E) Accessible
Parking Space

to Remain

(E) Street Parking
to Remain, Typ

(E)
Tree

(E)
Tree

(E)
Tree

(E)
Tree

(E)
Tree

Face of Upper Roof Above

1

SITE PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE AND HAVE BEEN ROUNDED. FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS & SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.

TJ, RTP

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0' 8'2' 12' 20'4' NORTH

APN
Site Area (Gross & Net)

Main Level Floor Area - (E) Building
 Not Including Stairwells
Upper Level Floor Area - (E) Building
 Including Stairwells

Total (E) Building Floor Area

+ (N) Elevator
 Not Counting Main Level Footprint

Total (N) Building Floor Area

(E) Floor Area Ratio
(N) Floor Area Ratio
Allowable Floor Area Ratio

Parking Spaces

510-044-029
11,538 Sq Ft or 0.26 Acres

7,046 Sq Ft

 7,740 Sq Ft


14,786 Sq Ft

63 Sq Ft


14,849 Sq Ft

128.2%
128.7%

60%

(E) 6 + 1 Accessible On Site
+ Street Parking

Page 26



1

A-3.1

Sheet Title:

MAIN LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN

Drawn by:

Project:

Scale:

Print Date:

18002

59
 N

. S
A

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

AV
E

Project

Da
te

:
Re

v
De

sc
rip

tio
n

12
/0

9/
20

19
Va

ria
nc

e 
Re

qu
es

t 
Su

bm
itt

al

EL
EV

AT
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
TE

N
A

N
T 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

T
59

 N
. S

an
ta

 C
ru

z A
ve

Lo
s G

at
os

, C
A 

95
03

0

Revisions & Dates

Li
ce

ns
e 

# 
C

23
22

1

RE
SI

D
EN

TI
A

L 
&

 C
O

M
M

ER
CI

A
L 

A
RC

H
IT

EC
TU

RE

61
 E

as
t 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, S
ui

te
 D

Lo
s 

Ga
to

s,
 C

A 
 9

50
30

Ph
on

e:
 4

08
-3

95
-8

01
6

te
rr

y@
tm

a-
ar

ch
.c

om

TE
RR

Y 
J. 

M
A

RT
IN

 A
SS

O
CI

AT
ES
, A
.I.

A
.

1/13/20

Va
ria

nc
e 

Re
qu

es
t 

Re
su

bm
itt

al
01

/1
3/

20
20

1

1

7'-0"

9'
-0

"

A B C D E F G H I

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

(E) RETAIL
SPACE

(E)
WOMEN

(E)
MEN

(E) RETAIL
SPACE

(E) RETAIL
SPACE

(E) RETAIL
SPACE

(E) OFFICE
SPACE

BEAN AVENUE

NORTH SANTA CRUZ AVENUE

(E) Planter

(E)
Planter

(E)
Planter

(E)
Entrance

UP

(E) Elect
Room

(E)
Trash

PL

PL

PL

PL

UP

(E)
Courtyard

Open to above

Face of Floor Above

N20º33'30"E

N20º33'30"W

S61º29'E

N61º29'W 122.17'

(E
xis

t)
En

tr
an

ce

94.45'

94.45'

122.17'

(N) 63sf Footprint
Accessible Elevator,
Exterior Walls to
Match (E)

(E)
Planter

(E)
Planter

Fa
ce

 o
f (

E)
Ba

lc
on

y 
ab

ov
e

Fa
ce

 o
f (

E)
Ba

lc
on

y 
ab

ov
e

Face of (E)
Balcony above

Face of (E)
Street curb

Face of (E)
Balcony above

(E)
Planter

(W) drinking
fountain

Face of (E)
Street curb

A-3.2
A

NO
PARKING

VICTORY LANE

A-3.2
B

(E)
Tree

(E)
Tree

(E)
Tree

(E)
Tree

(E)
Tree

6' x 8' Int Clr ± for
5'-6" x 6'-4" ±
Elevator Car,
Install per Mfr Specs

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE AND HAVE BEEN ROUNDED. FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS & SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.

TJ, RTP

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0' 8'2' 12' 20'4' NORTH

LEGEND

(N) PARTITION: ELEVATOR SHAFT

(E) WALL / PARTITION TO REMAIN

Page 27



1

A-3.2

Sheet Title:

UPPER LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN &

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

Drawn by:

Project:

Scale:

Print Date:

18002

59
 N

. S
A

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

AV
E

Project

Da
te

:
Re

v
De

sc
rip

tio
n

12
/0

9/
20

19
Va

ria
nc

e 
Re

qu
es

t 
Su

bm
itt

al

EL
EV

AT
O

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
TE

N
A

N
T 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

T
59

 N
. S

an
ta

 C
ru

z A
ve

Lo
s G

at
os

, C
A 

95
03

0

Revisions & Dates

Li
ce

ns
e 

# 
C

23
22

1

RE
SI

D
EN

TI
A

L 
&

 C
O

M
M

ER
CI

A
L 

A
RC

H
IT

EC
TU

RE

61
 E

as
t 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, S
ui

te
 D

Lo
s 

Ga
to

s,
 C

A 
 9

50
30

Ph
on

e:
 4

08
-3

95
-8

01
6

te
rr

y@
tm

a-
ar

ch
.c

om

TE
RR

Y 
J. 

M
A

RT
IN

 A
SS

O
CI

AT
ES
, A
.I.

A
.

1/13/20

Va
ria

nc
e 

Re
qu

es
t 

Re
su

bm
itt

al
01

/1
3/

20
20

1
7'-0"

9'
-0

"

A B C D E F G H I

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

(E) OFFICE
SPACE

3330 SF

(E)
WOMEN

(E)
MEN

188 SF

(E) OFFICE
SPACE

1008 SF

(E) OFFICE
SPACE

(E) OFFICE
SPACE

2988 SF

NORTH SANTA CRUZ AVENUE

DN

PL

PL

PL

PL

DN

(E)
Courtyard

Open to Below

Face of Balcony

(E) Roof
below

open
to

below

open
to

below

(E) Hall

(E) Hall (E) Covered
Balcony

(E
) 

Co
ve

re
d

Ba
lc

on
y

(E) Balcony (E) Balcony

(E
) 

Ba
lc

on
y

(E
) 

Ba
lc

on
y

(E)
Exit

(E)
Exit

VICTORY LANE

−
A

−
B

(N) 63sf Footprint
Accessible Elevator,
Exterior Walls to
Match (E)

12
'-4

"
9'

-4
"

(E
) 

31
'-6

" 
+/

-

(N) Tower, slope at 6:12
Tile to match (E)

(N) Exposed 4x wood tails
to match (E)

(N) Split faced
wood shingles
to match (E)

(E) Roof line

(E
) 

7'
-0

" 
+/

-
(N

) 
5'

-0
"

(N
) 

5'
-0

"
El

ev Pi
t

Ca
b

Ac
ce

ss

(E) Roof line

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

1/8" = 1'-0"

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE AND HAVE BEEN ROUNDED. FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS & SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.

TJ, RTP

LEGEND

(N) PARTITION: ELEVATOR SHAFT

(E) WALL / PARTITION TO REMAIN

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0' 8'2' 12' 20'4' NORTH

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE AND HAVE BEEN ROUNDED.
FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS & SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.

A B

0' 8'2' 12'

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

4' 20'

Page 28



 

PREPARED BY: Sean Mullin, AICP 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 05/27/2020 

ITEM NO: 2  

 
   

DATE:   May 22, 2020 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of a Request for Demolition of an Existing Single-family 
Residence, Construction of a New Single-family Residence, and Site 
Improvements Requiring a Grading Permit on Property Zoned HR-2½ Located 
at 15310 Suview Drive.  APN 537-24-024.  Architecture and Site Application  
S-19-025.  Property Owners: James and Holly Vergara.  Applicant: Camargo 
and Associates, Inc.  Project Planner: Sean Mullin.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Consider approval of a request for demolition of an existing single-family residence, 
construction of a new single-family residence, and site improvements requiring a grading 
permit on property zoned HR-2½ located at 15310 Suview Drive. 
  
PROJECT DATA: 
 
General Plan Designation:  Hillside Residential 
Zoning Designation:  HR-2½ 
Applicable Plans & Standards:  General Plan; Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines 
Parcel Size:  2.59 acres  
Surrounding Area: 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 Existing Land Use General Plan Zoning 

North Residential  Hillside Residential HR-2½ 

South Residential Hillside Residential HR-2½ 

East Residential Hillside Residential RC 

West Undeveloped Hillside Residential HR-2½ 

Page 29



PAGE 2 OF 8 
SUBJECT: 15310 Suview Drive/S-19-025 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
CEQA:   
 
The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the Implementation 
of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New Construction. 
 
FINDINGS:  
 
 As required, the project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 

Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New 
Construction.   

 As required, that other than the exception to maximum cut depths, the project complies 
with the Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines. 

 As required, the project complies with the Hillside Specific Plan. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
 As required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code for granting approval of an Architecture 

and Site application. 
 
ACTION: 
 
The decision of the Planning Commission is final unless appealed within ten days. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The subject property is located on the east side of Suview Drive, approximately 2,500 feet from 
the intersection of Suview Drive and Shannon Road (Exhibit 1).  The subject property is 
approximately 2.59 acres (112,820 square feet) and developed with a 1,987 square-foot single-
family residence, 932 square-foot guest house, 882 square-foot carport, and swimming pool.  
The Architecture and Site application has been referred to the Planning Commission because 
the proposed residence has been deemed visible, as defined by the Hillside Development 
Standards and Guidelines (HDS&G).   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

 
A. Location and Surrounding Neighborhood 
 

The subject property is approximately 2.59 acres, located on the east side of Suview Drive 
and developed with a single-family residence, guest house, carport, and swimming pool.  
Single-family hillside residential development surrounds the property.  The existing 
developed building pad is located close to Suview Drive and is relatively flat.  From the 
building pad, the property descends approximately 65 feet to the east and ascends 

  

Page 30



PAGE 3 OF 8 
SUBJECT: 15310 Suview Drive/S-19-025 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION (continued): 
 

approximately 60 feet to the south.  The Least Restrictive Development Area (LRDA) is 
concentrated in the western portion of the property. 
 

B. Project Summary 
 

The applicant is proposing to construct a new 5,203 square-foot one-story single-family 
residence with an attached 927 square-foot garage (Exhibit 9).  The proposed residence 
would be located within the area of the existing development and within the LRDA.  The 
proposed residence would be at least 54 percent visible from the viewing area located at 
Blossom Hill Road and Los Gatos Boulevard, and would have a maximum height of 18 feet.  
The project requires an exception to the maximum cut depths allowed by the HDS&G.  

 
C. Zoning Compliance 
 

A single-family residence is permitted in the HR-2½ zone.  The proposed residence is in 
compliance with the allowable floor area, height, setbacks, and on-site parking 
requirements for the property.   
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
A. Architecture and Site Analysis 

 
The applicant is proposing to construct a new 5,203 square-foot one-story single-family 
residence with an attached 927 square-foot garage.  The project proposes a contemporary 
architectural style incorporating materials to blend with the surrounding natural 
environment.  Proposed materials include a standing seam metal roof, integral colored 
stucco, natural stone veneer siding, composite wood siding, and metal windows and trim.  A 
color and materials board is included with this staff report (Exhibit 4).  The applicant has 
provided a Written Description/Letter of Justification detailing the project and the 
requested exception to maximum allowable cut depths allowed by the HDS&G (Exhibit 5). 
 

B. Building Design 
 

The Town’s Consulting Architect reviewed the proposed residence and noted that the 
residence is well designed with materials and details appropriate to the contemporary 
architectural style (Exhibit 6).   The Consulting Architect had no issues or concerns with the 
design of the residence and stated that “the height is limited to one story, and the proposed 
footprint is similar to other nearby homes.”  The Consulting Architect raised a concern with 
the proposed secondary driveway north of the residence citing that the Residential Design 
Guidelines discourage unnecessary paved surfaces.  The Residential Design Guidelines  

Page 31



PAGE 4 OF 8 
SUBJECT: 15310 Suview Drive/S-19-025 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
state that secondary driveways may be considered for larger lots with wide street frontages 
where the width of the total driveway footprint is less than 50 percent of the parcel width 
and, if allowed, substantial landscaping should be provided along the street frontage.  The 
street frontage of the 2.59-acre property is approximately 437 feet and the proposed 
driveway frontage is 94 feet, or 21 percent of the property frontage.  Additionally, the 
Landscape Planting Plan (Exhibit 9, Sheet L-1) shows that the majority of the street frontage 
along the driveway would be significantly landscaped.  The applicant indicates in their Letter 
of Justification (Exhibit 5) that the secondary driveway would: 
 

 Eliminate the need to back out directly into the roadway or perform a three-point 
turn to exit the property; 

 Provide for additional off-street parking; and 

 Utilize an existing driveway approach on their neighbor’s property for which they 
have an easement. 

 
C. Height 
 

As discussed below, the proposed residence would be visible from several perspectives 
within the Blossom Hill Avenue and Los Gatos Boulevard viewing area.  Heights of visible 
homes are limited by the HDS&G to a maximum of 18 feet and the proposed project would 
comply with this regulation.  Additionally, the HDS&G limit the low-to-high height of a 
residence to 35 feet.  The proposed residence would comply with this limitation having a 
maximum low-to-high height of 22 feet.  The height of the proposed residence is 
summarized in the table below. 
 

Building Height 

 Proposed Maximum Allowed 
per HDS&G 

Height 18 feet 18 feet 

Low-to-High Height 22 feet 35 feet 

 
D. Neighborhood Compatibility 

 
Pursuant to the HDS&G, the maximum allowable floor area for the subject property is 6,000 
square feet.  The table below reflects the current conditions of the homes in the immediate 
area and the proposed project.  

  

Page 32



PAGE 5 OF 8 
SUBJECT: 15310 Suview Drive/S-19-025 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
FAR Comparison - Neighborhood Analysis 

Address Zoning 
Residential 

SF* 
Garage 

SF** 
Total 
SF*** 

Gross 
Lot Area 

SF 

 
FAR 

No. of 
Stories 

15275 Suview Dr HR-2½  3,980 1,018 4,598 463,478 0.01 1 

15305 Suview Dr HR-2½ 4,998 750 5,348 186,436 0.03 2 

15284 Suview Dr HR-2½ 4,655 960 5,215 162,914 0.03 1 

15300 Suview Dr HR-2½ 4,200 1,296 5,096 172,933 0.03 1 

15299 Top of the Hill Rd RC 6,482 2,208 8,290 696,960 0.01 2 

15350 Suview Dr HR-2½ 5,789 576 5,965 55,756 0.11 2 

15400 Suview Dr HR-2½ 6,735 1,008 7,343 330,620 0.02 2 

300 Happy Acres Rd HR-2½ 2,138 650 2,388 39,000 0.06 2 

15310 Suview Dr (e) HR-2½ 2,919 324 2,919 112,820 0.03 1 

15310 Suview Dr (p) HR-2½ 5,079 907 5,586 112,820 0.05 1 

* Residential square footage includes the residence and detached accessory structures, except 
 garages. 
** The garage square footage numbers are gross and do not include the allowed 400-square-foot 
 exemption.   
*** The total square footage numbers do not include below grade square footage and do not 
 include up to 400 square feet of exempt garage square footage.  

 
The nine properties in the immediate area are developed with one- and two-story 
residences and include a mix of architectural styles.  The property sizes within the 
immediate area range from 0.9 to 16 acres.  Based on Town and County records, the total 
square footage of the residences located in the immediate area range from 2,388 square 
feet to 8,290 square feet.  The applicant is proposing a total square footage of 5,586 square 
feet on a 2.59-acre parcel.  The proposed project would be the sixth largest in terms of total 
square footage and the seventh largest in terms of FAR.  
 

E. Site Design 
 
The subject property is approximately 2.59 acres, located on the east side of Suview Drive.  
The developed building pad is located close to Suview Drive and is relatively flat.  From the 
building pad, the property descends approximately 65 feet to the east and ascends 
approximately 60 feet to the south.  The LRDA is concentrated in the western portion of the 
property.  The proposed project is concentrated in areas that are already developed with 
structures or landscaping.  The proposed residence stretches north-to-south, utilizing the 
LRDA and stepping up with the grade from the garage to the main portion of the residence.  
A new driveway would provide access from the east side of Suview Drive to the attached 
garage.  Outdoor living areas are concentrated at the rear of the residence and include 
patios and a swimming pool. 

  

Page 33



PAGE 6 OF 8 
SUBJECT: 15310 Suview Drive/S-19-025 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
F. Tree Impacts 
 

The development plans were reviewed by the Town Arborist who identified 11 protected 
trees within the project area (Exhibit 7).  The project proposes to remove three protected 
trees and the Town Arborist has provided recommendations for the protection of the eight 
trees to remain.  If the project is approved, tree protection measures would be 
implemented prior to construction and maintained for the duration of construction activity.  
Planting of replacement trees and/or payment of in-lieu fees would be required prior to 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy pursuant to Town Code.  Arborist recommendations 
for tree protection have been included in the Conditions of Approval to mitigate impacts to 
protected trees (Exhibit 3).   

 
 

Trees Proposed for Removal 

Tree 
Number 

Species Size Condition 

1 Redwood 10-inch Good health with nice vigor 

9 Walnut 48-inch Good health with nice vigor, although heavy lean 

11 Pomegranate 36-inch Good health 

 
G. Visibility 

 
Pursuant to the HDS&G, a visible home is defined as a single-family residence where 24.5 
percent or more of an elevation can be seen from any of the Town’s established viewing 
areas.  The applicant’s visibility analysis provides three perspectives of the proposed 
residence as viewed from the viewing area located at Blossom Hill Road and Los Gatos 
Boulevard (Exhibit 9, Sheet V-001).  The three perspectives show that the proposed 
residence would be 54 percent, 76 percent, and 81 percent visible.  Pursuant to the 
requirements of the HDS&G, visible homes shall not exceed a height of 18 feet.  Also, the 
light reflectivity value (LRV) of all exterior materials may not be averaged, must be 
considered individually, and may not exceed 30.  The proposed residence would meet the 
height and LRV limitations for visible homes, having a maximum height of 18 feet and 
individual exterior materials not exceeding an LRV of 30, as shown on the provided color 
and materials board (Exhibit 4).   
 

H. Grading 
 
The Site Planning Section of the HDS&G limits grading cut depths to a maximum depth of 
four feet.  Due to the constraints of the site, the applicant is requesting an exception to this 
standard to allow a five-foot cut depth in the area just west of the proposed garage (Exhibit 
9).  The applicant has included a Letter of Justification (Exhibit 5) addressing the requested  

Page 34



PAGE 7 OF 8 
SUBJECT: 15310 Suview Drive/S-19-025 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
exception, stating that the increased cut depth would address the driveway’s interaction 
with the sloping roadway along this section of Suview Drive and would allow for a driveway 
with a reduced slope.  The project also includes site improvements with grading quantities 
exceeding 50 cubic yards, which require approval of a Grading Permit. The Town’s Parks and 
Public Works Engineering staff have included a condition of approval requiring submittal 
and evaluation of a Grading Permit in parallel with the required Building Permits (Exhibit 3). 
 

I. Neighbor Outreach 
 
The applicant reached out to their neighbors and provided copies of the several responses 
they received (Exhibit 8).   

 

J. CEQA Determination 
 

The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 
Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New 
Construction. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
Story poles and signage were installed on the site by March 6, 2020, in anticipation of a March 
25, 2020 hearing date.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent Santa Clara County 
Shelter in Place Order, the March 25, 2020 hearing was cancelled, and the story poles remained 
in place.  On April 20, 2020, the property owner requested permission to remove the story 
poles given the length of time the poles had been installed and the impacts to the use of their 
outdoor areas during the Shelter in Place Order.  This request was approved with the condition 
that the applicant provide detailed photos of the installed story poles, which staff posted on the 
Town’s website (https://www.losgatosca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/24509/15310-Suview-Drive-

Story-Pole-Photos).  No public comments have been received at this time. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
A. Summary 
 

The applicant is requesting approval of an Architecture and Site application for demolition 
of an existing single-family residence, construction of a new a single-family residence, and 
site improvements requiring a grading permit.  The project is well designed and compatible 
with the properties in the immediate area.  The project is consistent with the Zoning and 
General Plan Land Use Designation for the property.  Due to the constraints of the site, the 
applicant is requesting an exception to the maximum cut depths for a limited area adjacent  
 

Page 35



PAGE 8 OF 8 
SUBJECT: 15310 Suview Drive/S-19-025 
DATE:  May 22, 2020 
 
CONCLUSION (continued): 

 
to the proposed garage.  Otherwise, the project complies with the applicable HDS&G, and 
Hillside Specific Plan.   

 
B. Recommendation 

 
Based on the analysis above, staff recommends approval of the Architecture and Site 
application subject to the recommended conditions of approval (Exhibit 3).  If the Planning 
Commission finds merit with the proposed project, it should: 

 
1. Make the finding that the proposed project is Categorically Exempt, pursuant to the 

adopted Guidelines for the implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, 
Section 15303: New Construction (Exhibit 2); 

2. Make the finding that due to the constraints of the site, an exception to the maximum 
allowable cut depths is appropriate, and the project is otherwise in compliance with the 
applicable sections of the Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines  
(Exhibit 2);  

3. Make the finding that the project complies with the Hillside Specific Plan (Exhibit 2); 
4. Make the considerations as required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code for 

granting approval of an Architecture and Site application (Exhibit 2); and 
5. Approve Architecture and Site Application S-19-025 with the conditions contained in 

Exhibit 3 and the development plans in Exhibit 9. 
 

C. Alternatives 
 

Alternatively, the Commission can: 
 

1. Continue the matter to a date certain with specific direction; or 
2. Approve the application with additional and/or modified conditions; or 
3. Deny the application. 

 
EXHIBITS: 
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations 
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval 
4. Color and Materials board 
5. Project Description and Letter of Justification, dated December 11, 2019 
6. Consulting Architect’s Report, dated June 5, 2019 
7. Town Arborist’s Report, dated July 18, 2019 
8. Applicant’s neighbor outreach efforts 
9. Development Plans, received February 20, 2020 

Page 36



SHANNON RD

SU
VI

EW
 D

R

TOP OF THE HILL RD

15310 Suview Drive

0 0.250.125 Miles

°

Update Notes:
- Updated 12/20/17 to link to tlg-sql12 server data (sm)
- Updated 11/22/19 adding centerpoint guides, Buildings layer, and Project Site leader with label

EXHIBIT 1
Page 37



 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION –May 27, 2020 
REQUIRED FINDINGS & CONSIDERATIONS FOR: 
 
15310 Suview Drive 
Architecture and Site Application S-19-025 
 
Consider Approval of a Request for Demolition of an Existing Single-family Residence, 
Construction of a New Single-family Residence, and Site Improvements Requiring a 
Grading Permit on Property Zoned HR-2½ Located at 15310 Suview Drive.   
APN 537-24-024.   
PROPERTY OWNER: James and Holly Vergara 
APPLICANT: Camargo and Associates, Inc. 
 

 

FINDINGS 
 
Required findings for CEQA: 
 
■ The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 

Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New 
Construction.  

 
Compliance with Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines (HDS&G): 
 
■ Due to the constraints of the site, exceptions to the maximum cut depths are 

appropriate, and the project is otherwise in compliance with the Hillside Development 
Standards and Guidelines. 

 
Compliance with Hillside Specific Plan 
 
■ The project is in compliance with the Hillside Specific Plan. 
 
 

CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

Considerations in review of Architecture & Site applications: 
 
■ As required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code, the considerations in review of an 

Architecture and Site application were all made in reviewing this project.   
 

 
N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2020\Suview Drive, 15310 - Findings - PC 05-27-20.docx 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 2 

Page 38



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

PLANNING COMMISSION – May 27, 2020 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
15310 Suview Drive 
Architecture and Site Application S-19-025 
 
Consider Approval of a Request for Demolition of an Existing Single-family 
Residence, Construction of a New Single-family Residence, and Site Improvements 
Requiring a Grading Permit on Property Zoned HR-2½ Located at 15310 Suview 
Drive.  APN 537-24-024.   
 
PROPERTY OWNER: James and Holly Vergara 
APPLICANT: Camargo and Associates, Inc. 
 
 
TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 
 
Planning Division 
1. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all of the conditions of 

approval and in substantial compliance with the approved plans.  Any changes or 
modifications to the approved plans and/or business operation shall be approved by the 
Community Development Director, DRC or the Planning Commission depending on the 
scope of the changes. 

2. EXPIRATION: The approval will expire two years from the approval date pursuant to Section 
29.20.320 of the Town Code, unless the approval has been vested. 

3. EXTERIOR COLOR: The individual exterior materials of the house, including the roof, shall 
not exceed a light reflectivity value of 30 and shall blend with the natural vegetation.  

4. DEED RESTRICTION:  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a deed restriction shall be 
recorded by the applicant with the Santa Clara County Recorder’s Office that requires all 
exterior materials to be maintained in conformance with the Town’s Hillside Development 
Standards and Guidelines.  

5. OUTDOOR LIGHTING:  Exterior lighting shall be kept to a minimum and shall be down 
directed fixtures that will not reflect or encroach onto adjacent properties.  No flood lights 
shall be used unless it can be demonstrated that they are needed for safety or security.   

6. TREE REMOVAL PERMIT: A Tree Removal Permit shall be obtained for any protected trees to 
be removed, prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit. 

7. EXISTING TREES: All existing trees shown on the plan and trees required to remain or to be 
planted are specific subjects of approval of this plan and must remain on the site. 

8. TREE FENCING: Protective tree fencing, and other protection measures shall be placed at 
the drip line of existing trees prior to issuance of demolition and building permits and shall 
remain through all phases of construction.  Include a tree protection plan with the 
construction plans. 
 

EXHIBIT 3 

Page 39



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

9. TREE STAKING: All newly planted trees shall be double-staked using rubber tree ties. 
10. FRONT YARD LANDSCAPE: Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy the front yard 

must be landscaped.  
11. ARBORIST REQUIREMENTS: The developer shall implement, at their cost, all 

recommendations identified in the Arborist’s report.  These recommendations must be 
incorporated in the building permit plans and completed prior to issuance of a building 
permit where applicable.  A Compliance Memorandum shall be prepared by the applicant 
and submitted with the building permit application detailing how the recommendations 
have or will be addressed.   

12. WATER EFFICIENCY LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE:  The final landscape plan shall meet the 
requirements of the Town of Los Gatos Water Conservation Ordinance or the State Water 
Efficient Landscape Ordinance, whichever is more restrictive.  Submittal of a Landscape 
Documentation Package pursuant to WELO is required prior to issuance of a building 
permit.  A review fee based on the current fee schedule adopted by the Town Council is 
required when working landscape and irrigation plans are submitted for review.  A 
completed WELO Certificate of Completion is required prior to final inspection/certificate of 
occupancy.  

13. STORY POLES: The story poles on the project site shall be removed within 30 days of 
approval of the Architecture & Site application. 

14. TOWN INDEMNITY: Applicants are notified that Town Code Section 1.10.115 requires that 
any applicant who receives a permit or entitlement from the Town shall defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the Town and its officials in any action brought by a third party to 
overturn, set aside, or void the permit or entitlement.  This requirement is a condition of 
approval of all such permits and entitlements whether or not expressly set forth in the 
approval and may be secured to the satisfaction of the Town Attorney. 

15. COMPLIANCE MEMORANDUM: A memorandum shall be prepared and submitted with the 
building plans detailing how the Conditions of Approval will be addressed.  
 

Building Division 
16. PERMITS REQUIRED: A Demolition Permit is required for each individual structure to be 

demolished.  A Building Permit is required for the construction of the new single-family 
residence and attached garage. Additional Building Permits will be required for any 
detached structure, including but not limited to, swimming pools, covered patios, and 
retaining walls of any height that support a surcharge. 

17. APPLICABLE CODES: The current codes, as amended and adopted by the Town of Los Gatos 
as of January 1, 2020, are the 2019 California Building Standards Code, California Code of 
Regulations Title 24, Parts 1-12. 

18. RESIDENTIAL ENERGY REACH CODES:  Newly adopted Energy Reach Codes include: 
a. All electric appliances and fixtures for both interior and exterior applications. 
b. Two complete EV Charging circuits.  One located inside the garage and one located 

outside the garage. 
c. Prewiring for future Stationary Storage Battery Systems. 

19. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: The Conditions of Approval must be blue lined in full on the 
cover sheet of the construction plans. A Compliance Memorandum shall be prepared and 

Page 40



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

submitted with the building permit application detailing how the Conditions of Approval will 
be addressed. 

20. BUILDING & SUITE NUMBERS: Submit requests for new building addresses to the Building 
Division prior to submitting for the building permit application process. 

21. SIZE OF PLANS:  Submit four sets of construction plans, minimum size 24” x 36”, maximum 
size 30” x 42”. 

22. REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPLETE DEMOLITION OF STRUCTURE: Obtain a Building 
Department Demolition Application and a Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
Application from the Building Department Service Counter.  Once the demolition form has 
been completed, all signatures obtained, and written verification from PG&E that all utilities 
have been disconnected, return the completed form to the Building Department Service 
Counter with the Air District’s J# Certificate, PG&E verification, and three (3) sets of site 
plans showing all existing structures, existing utility service lines such as water, sewer, and 
PG&E.  No demolition work shall be done without first obtaining a permit from the Town. 

23. SOILS REPORT:  A Soils Report, prepared to the satisfaction of the Building Official, 
containing foundation and retaining wall design recommendations, shall be submitted with 
the Building Permit Application.  This report shall be prepared by a licensed Civil Engineer 
specializing in soils mechanics.  

24. SHORING: Shoring plans and calculations will be required for all excavations which exceed 
five (5) feet in depth or which remove lateral support from any existing building, adjacent 
property, or the public right-of-way.  Shoring plans and calculations shall be prepared by a 
California licensed engineer and shall confirm to the Cal/OSHA regulations. 

25. FOUNDATION INSPECTIONS:  A pad certificate prepared by a licensed civil engineer or land 
surveyor shall be submitted to the project Building Inspector at foundation inspection.  This 
certificate shall certify compliance with the recommendations as specified in the Soils 
Report, and that the building pad elevations and on-site retaining wall locations and 
elevations have been prepared according to the approved plans.  Horizontal and vertical 
controls shall be set and certified by a licensed surveyor or registered Civil Engineer for the 
following items: 
a. Building pad elevation 
b. Finish floor elevation 
c. Foundation corner locations 
d. Retaining wall(s) locations and elevations 

26. TITLE 24 ENERGY COMPLIANCE:  All required California Title 24 Energy Compliance Forms 
must be blue-lined (sticky-backed), i.e. directly printed, onto a plan sheet. 

27. TOWN RESIDENTIAL ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS: New residential units shall be designed 
with adaptability features for single-family residences per Town Resolution 1994-61: 
a. Wood backing (2” x 8” minimum) shall be provided in all bathroom walls, at water 

closets, showers, and bathtubs, located 34 inches from the floor to the center of the 
backing, suitable for the installation of grab bars if needed in the future. 

b. All passage doors shall be at least 32 inch doors on the accessible floor level. 
c. The primary entrance door shall be a 36 inch wide door including a 5’x 5’ level landing, no more 

than 1 inch out of plane with the immediate interior floor level and with an 18 inch clearance at 
interior strike edge. 

Page 41



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

d. A door buzzer, bell or chime shall be hard wired at primary entrance. 

28. HAZARDOUS FIRE ZONE:  All projects in the Town of Los Gatos require Class A roof 
assemblies. 

29. WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE: This project is located in a Wildland-Urban Interface High 
Fire Area and must comply with Section R337 of the 2016 California Residential Code, Public 
Resources Code 4291 and California Government Code Section 51182.  

30. PROVIDE DEFENSIBLE SPACE/FIRE BREAK LANDSCAPING PLAN: Prepared by a California 
licensed Landscape Architect in conformance with California Public Resources Code 4291 
and California Government Code Section 51182. 

31. PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION: Provide a letter from a California licensed Landscape Architect 
certifying the landscaping and vegetation clearance requirements have been completed per 
the California Public Resources Code 4291 and Government Code Section 51182. 

32. SPECIAL INSPECTIONS: When a special inspection is required by CBC Section 1704, the 
Architect or Engineer of Record shall prepare an inspection program that shall be submitted 
to the Building Official for approval prior to issuance of the Building Permit. The Town 
Special Inspection form must be completely filled-out and signed by all requested parties 
prior to permit issuance. Special Inspection forms are available from the Building Division 
Service Counter or online at www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

33. BLUE PRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY SHEET: The Town standard Santa Clara Valley Nonpoint 
Source Pollution Control Program Sheet (page size same as submitted drawings) shall be 
part of the plan submittal as the second page. The specification sheet is available at the 
Building Division Service Counter for a fee of $2 or at ARC Blue Print for a fee or online at 
www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

34. APPROVALS REQUIRED: The project requires the following departments and agencies 
approval before issuing a building permit: 
a. Community Development – Planning Division: (408) 354-6874 
b. Engineering/Parks & Public Works Department: (408) 399-5771 
c. Santa Clara County Fire Department: (408) 378-4010 
d. West Valley Sanitation District: (408) 378-2407 
e. Santa Clara County Environmental Health Department: (408) 918-3479 
f. Local School District:  The Town will forward the paperwork to the appropriate school 

district(s) for processing.  A copy of the paid receipt is required prior to permit issuance. 

 
TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF PARKS & PUBLIC WORKS: 
 
Engineering Division 
35. GENERAL: All work shall conform to the applicable Town ordinances.  Dirt and debris shall 

not be washed into storm drainage facilities.  The storing of goods and materials on the 
sidewalk and/or the street will not be allowed unless an encroachment permit is issued by 
the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department.  The Owner and/or 
Applicant's representative in charge shall be at the job site during all working hours.  Failure 
to maintain the public right-of-way according to this condition may result in the issuance of 
correction notices, citations, or stop work orders and the Town performing the required 
maintenance at the Owner and/or Applicant's expense. 

Page 42



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

36. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all the conditions of 
approval listed below and in substantial compliance with the latest reviewed and approved 
development plans.  Any changes or modifications to the approved plans or conditions of 
approvals shall be approved by the Town Engineer. 

37. PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTIONS: The Owner and/or Applicant or their representative shall 
notify the Engineering Inspector at least twenty-four (24) hours before starting any work 
pertaining to on-site drainage facilities, grading or paving.  Failure to do so will result in 
penalties and rejection of any work that occurred without inspection. 

38. SITE SUPERVISION: The General Contractor shall provide qualified supervision on the job 
site at all times during construction. 

39. PLAN CHECK FEES: Plan check fees associated with the Grading Permit shall be deposited 
with the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department prior to the 
commencement of plan check review. 

40. INSPECTION FEES: Inspection fees shall be deposited with the Town prior to the issuance of 
any grading or building permits. 

41. DESIGN CHANGES: Any proposed changes to the approved plans shall be subject to the 
approval of the Town prior to the commencement of any and all altered work.  The Owner 
and/or Applicant’s project engineer shall notify, in writing, the Town Engineer at least 
seventy-two (72) hours in advance of all the proposed changes.  Any approved changes shall 
be incorporated into the final “as-built” plans. 

42. PLANS AND STUDIES: All required plans and studies shall be prepared by a Registered 
Professional Engineer in the State of California and submitted to the Town Engineer for 
review and approval.  Additionally, any studies imposed by the Planning Commission or 
Town Council shall be funded by the Owner and/or Applicant. 

43. GRADING PERMIT: A grading permit is required for all site grading and drainage work except 
for exemptions listed in Section 12.20.015 of The Code of the Town of Los Gatos (Grading 
Ordinance).  After the preceding Architecture and Site Application has been approved by 
the respective deciding body, the grading permit application (with grading plans and 
associated required materials and plan check fees) shall be made to the Engineering 
Division of the Parks and Public Works Department located at 41 Miles Avenue.  The grading 
plans shall include final grading, drainage, retaining wall location(s), driveway, utilities and 
interim erosion control.  Grading plans shall list earthwork quantities and a table of existing 
and proposed impervious areas.  Unless specifically allowed by the Director of Parks and 
Public Works, the grading permit will be issued concurrently with the building permit. The 
grading permit is for work outside the building footprint(s).  Prior to Engineering signing off 
and closing out on the issued grading permit, the Owner and/or Applicant’s soils engineer 
shall verify, with a stamped and signed letter, that the grading activities were completed 
per plans and per the requirements as noted in the soils report.  A separate building permit, 
issued by the Building Department, located at 110 E. Main Street, is needed for grading 
within the building footprint. 

44. GRADING ACTIVITY RESTRICTIONS: Upon receipt of a grading permit, any and all grading 
activities and operations shall not commence until after/occur during the rainy season, as 
defined by Town Code of the Town of Los Gatos, Sec. 12.10.020, (October 15-April 15), has 
ended. 

Page 43



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

45. COMPLIANCE WITH HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES: All grading 
activities and operations shall be in compliance with Section III of the Town’s Hillside 
Development Standards and Guidelines.  All development shall be in compliance with 
Section II of the Town’s Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines. 

46. DRIVEWAY: The driveway conform to existing pavement on Suview Drive shall be 
constructed in a manner such that the existing drainage patterns will not be obstructed. 

47. DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT: Prior to the issuance of any grading/improvement permits, the 
Owner and/or Applicant shall: a) design provisions for surface drainage; and b) design all 
necessary storm drain facilities extending to a satisfactory point of disposal for the proper 
control and disposal of storm runoff; and c) provide a recorded copy of any required 
easements to the Town. 

48. TREE REMOVAL: Copies of all necessary tree removal permits shall be provided prior to the 
issuance of a grading permit/building permit. 

49. SURVEYING CONTROLS: Horizontal and vertical controls shall be set and certified by a 
licensed surveyor or registered civil engineer qualified to practice land surveying, for the 
following items: 
a. Retaining wall: top of wall elevations and locations. 
b. Toe and top of cut and fill slopes. 

50. PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING: Prior to the commencement of any site work, the general 
contractor shall: 
a. Along with the Owner and/or Applicant, attend a pre-construction meeting with the 

Town Engineer to discuss the project conditions of approval, working hours, site 
maintenance and other construction matters; 

b. Acknowledge in writing that they have read and understand the project conditions of 
approval and will make certain that all project sub-contractors have read and 
understand them as well prior to commencing any work, and that a copy of the project 
conditions of approval will be posted on-site at all times during construction. 

51. RETAINING WALLS: A building permit, issued by the Building Department, located at 110 E. 
Main Street, may be required for site retaining walls. Walls are not reviewed or approved by 
the Engineering Division of Parks and Public Works during the grading permit plan review 
process. 

52. SOILS REPORT: One copy of the soils and geologic report shall be submitted with the 
application.  The soils report shall include specific criteria and standards governing site 
grading, drainage, pavement design, retaining wall design, and erosion control.  The reports 
shall be signed and "wet stamped" by the engineer or geologist, in conformance with 
Section 6735 of the California Business and Professions Code. 

53. SOILS REVIEW:  Prior to Town approval of a development application, the Owner and/or 
Applicant’s engineers shall prepare and submit a design-level geotechnical and geological 
investigation for review by the Town’s consultant, with costs borne by the Owner and/or 
Applicant, and subsequent approval by the Town.  The Owner and/or Applicant’s soils 
engineer shall review the final grading and drainage plans to ensure that designs for 
foundations, retaining walls, site grading, and site drainage are in accordance with their 
recommendations and the peer review comments.  Approval of the Owner and/or 

Page 44



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

Applicant’s soils engineer shall then be conveyed to the Town either by submitting a Plan 
Review Letter prior to issuance of grading or building permit(s). 

54. SOIL RECOMMENDATIONS: The project shall incorporate the geotechnical/geological 
recommendations contained in the project’s design-level geotechnical/geological 
investigation as prepared by the Owner and/or Applicant’s engineer(s), and any 
subsequently required report or addendum.  Subsequent reports or addendum are subject 
to peer review by the Town’s consultant and costs shall be borne by the Owner and/or 
Applicant. 

55. UTILITIES: The Owner and/or Applicant shall install all new, relocated, or temporarily 
removed utility services, including telephone, electric power and all other communications 
lines underground, as required by Town Code Section 27.50.015(b).  All new utility services 
shall be placed underground.  Underground conduit shall be provided for cable television 
service.  The Owner and/or Applicant is required to obtain approval of all proposed utility 
alignments from any and all utility service providers before a Certificate of Occupancy for 
any new building can be issued.  The Town of Los Gatos does not approve or imply approval 
for final alignment or design of these facilities. 

56. PRECONSTRUCTION PAVEMENT SURVEY: Prior to issuance of any grading or building permit, 
the Owner and/or Applicant shall complete a pavement condition survey documenting the 
extent of existing pavement defects using a smartphone video (in Landscape orientation 
only) or digital video camera.  The survey shall extend the length of Suview Drive. The 
results shall be documented in a report and submitted to the Town for review. 

57. POSTCONSTRUCTION PAVEMENT SURVEY: The Owner and/or Applicant shall complete a 
pavement condition survey to determine whether road damage occurred as a result of 
project construction and whether there were changes in pavement strength. Rehabilitation 
improvements required to restore the pavement to pre-construction condition.  The results 
shall be documented in a report and submitted to the Town for review and approval before 
a Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued.  The Owner and/or Applicant 
shall be responsible for completing any required road repairs prior to release of the faithful 
performance bond. 

58. HAULING OF SOIL: Hauling of soil on- or off-site shall not occur during the morning or 
evening peak periods (between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. and between 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 
p.m.), and at other times as specified by the Director of Parks and Public Works.  Prior to the 
issuance of a grading or building permit, the Owner and/or Applicant or their representative 
shall work with the Town Building Department and Engineering Division Inspectors to devise 
a traffic control plan to ensure safe and efficient traffic flow under periods when soil is 
hauled on or off the project site.  This may include, but is not limited to provisions for the 
Owner and/or Applicant to place construction notification signs noting the dates and time 
of construction and hauling activities, or providing additional traffic control.  Coordination 
with other significant projects in the area may also be required.  Cover all trucks hauling 
soil, sand and other loose debris. 

59. CONSTRUCTION HOURS: All construction activities, including the delivery of construction 
materials, labors, heavy equipment, supplies, etc., shall be limited to the hours of 8:00 a.m. 
to 8:00 p.m., weekdays and 9:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. weekends and holidays.  The Town may 
authorize, on a case-by-case basis, alternate construction hours.  The Owner and/or 

Page 45



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

Applicant shall provide written notice twenty-four (24) hours in advance of modified 
construction hours.  Approval of this request is at discretion of the Town. 

60. CONSTRUCTION NOISE: Between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., weekdays and 9:00 
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. weekends and holidays, construction, alteration or repair activities shall 
be allowed.  No individual piece of equipment shall produce a noise level exceeding eighty-
five (85) dBA at twenty-five (25) feet from the source.  If the device is located within a 
structure on the property, the measurement shall be made at distances as close to twenty-
five (25) feet from the device as possible.  The noise level at any point outside of the 
property plane shall not exceed eighty-five (85) dBA. 

61. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PLAN SHEET: Prior to the issuance of any grading or 
building permits, the Owner and/or Applicant’s design consultant shall submit a 
construction management plan sheet (full-size) within the plan set that shall incorporate at 
a minimum the Earth Movement Plan, Project Schedule, employee parking, construction 
staging area, materials storage area(s), concrete washout(s) and proposed outhouse 
location(s).  Please refer to the Town’s Construction Management Plan Guidelines 
document for additional information. 

62. SHARED PRIVATE STREET: The private street accessing Project Site shall be kept open and in 
a safe, drive-able condition throughout construction.  If temporary closure is needed, then 
formal written notice shall be provided at least one week in advance of closure. 

63. PRIVATE STREET PAVEMENT RESTORATION: Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 
for any new building, the Owner and/or Applicant shall overlay to section of private street 
pavement immediately in front of the subject property, or alternative pavement restoration 
measure as approved by the Town Engineer. 

64. EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS: The Emergency Vehicle Access Easement (EVAE) that 
traverses the Project Site shall be kept open and in a safe, drive-able condition throughout 
construction.  If temporary closure is needed, then formal written notice shall be provided 
at least one week in advance of closure. 

65. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPs): The Owner and/or Applicant is responsible for 
ensuring that all contractors are aware of all storm water quality measures and that such 
measures are implemented.  Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be maintained and 
be placed for all areas that have been graded or disturbed and for all material, equipment 
and/or operations that need protection.  Removal of BMPs (temporary removal during 
construction activities) shall be replaced at the end of each working day.  Failure to comply 
with the construction BMP will result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or stop 
work orders. 

66. SITE DESIGN MEASURES: All projects shall incorporate at least one of the following 
measures: 
a. Protect sensitive areas and minimize changes to the natural topography. 
b. Minimize impervious surface areas. 
c. Direct roof downspouts to vegetated areas. 
d. Use porous or pervious pavement surfaces on the driveway, at a minimum. 
e. Use landscaping to treat stormwater.  

67. EROSION CONTROL: Interim and final erosion control plans shall be prepared and submitted 
to the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department.  A maximum of two 

Page 46



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

(2) weeks is allowed between clearing of an area and stabilizing/building on an area if 
grading is allowed during the rainy season.  Interim erosion control measures, to be carried 
out during construction and before installation of the final landscaping, shall be included.  
Interim erosion control method shall include, but are not limited to: silt fences, fiber rolls 
(with locations and details), erosion control blankets, Town standard seeding specification, 
filter berms, check dams, retention basins, etc.  Provide erosion control measures as 
needed to protect downstream water quality during winter months.  The Town of Los Gatos 
Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department and the Building 
Department will conduct periodic NPDES inspections of the site throughout the recognized 
storm season to verify compliance with the Construction General Permit and Stormwater 
ordinances and regulations. 

68. DUST CONTROL: Blowing dust shall be reduced by timing construction activities so that 
paving and building construction begin as soon as possible after completion of grading, and 
by landscaping disturbed soils as soon as possible.  Further, water trucks shall be present 
and in use at the construction site.  All portions of the site subject to blowing dust shall be 
watered as often as deemed necessary by the Town, or a minimum of three (3) times daily, 
or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers on all unpaved access roads, parking areas, and staging 
areas at construction sites in order to insure proper control of blowing dust for the duration 
of the project. Watering on public streets shall not occur.  Streets shall be cleaned by street 
sweepers or by hand as often as deemed necessary by the Town Engineer, or at least once a 
day.  Watering associated with on-site construction activity shall take place between the 
hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. and shall include at least one (1) late-afternoon watering to 
minimize the effects of blowing dust.  All public streets soiled or littered due to this 
construction activity shall be cleaned and swept on a daily basis during the workweek to the 
satisfaction of the Town.  Demolition or earthwork activities shall be halted when wind 
speeds (instantaneous gusts) exceed twenty-five (25) miles per hour (MPH).  All trucks 
hauling soil, sand, or other loose debris shall be covered. 

69. CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES: All construction shall conform to the latest requirements of the 
CASQA Stormwater Best Management Practices Handbooks for Construction Activities and 
New Development and Redevelopment, the Town's grading and erosion control ordinance, 
and other generally accepted engineering practices for erosion control as required by the 
Town Engineer when undertaking construction activities. 

70. WATER FEATURES: New swimming pools shall have a connection to the sanitary sewer 
system, subject to West Valley Sanitation District’s authority and standards, to facilitate 
draining events.  Discharges from this feature shall be directed to the sanitary sewer and 
are not allowed into the storm drain system. 

71. SITE DRAINAGE: Rainwater leaders shall be discharged to splash blocks.  No through curb 
drains will be allowed.  On-site drainage systems for all projects shall include one of the 
alternatives included in section C.3.i of the Municipal Regional NPDES Permit.  These include 
storm water reuse via cisterns or rain barrels, directing runoff from impervious surfaces to 
vegetated areas and use of permeable surfaces.  No improvements shall obstruct or divert 
runoff to the detriment of an adjacent, downstream or down slope property. 

Page 47



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

72. MAINTENANCE OF PRIVATE STREETS: It is the responsibility of the property owner to 
implement a plan for street sweeping of paved private roads and cleaning of all storm drain 
inlets. 

73. PRIVATE SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS: Private sewage disposal systems shall consist of a 
septic tank and a system of underground drains for the disposal of the tank effluent.  Such 
tank and drains shall be re-used or constructed per approval from the Santa Clara County 
Department of Environmental Health (DEH).  Provide a copy of approved plans for any 
construction of new or additional leach fields with the building permit set.  Any new 
improvements to the leach field will require Final DEH signoff shall be provided prior to the 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

74. GOOD HOUSEKEEPING: Good housekeeping practices shall be observed at all times during 
the course of construction.  All construction shall be diligently supervised by a person or 
persons authorized to do so at all times during working hours.  The Owner and/or 
Applicant's representative in charge shall be at the job site during all working hours. 

75. PERMIT ISSUANCE: Permits for each phase; reclamation, landscape, and grading, shall be 
issued simultaneously. 

76. COVERED TRUCKS: All trucks transporting materials to and from the site shall be covered. 
 

TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT: 
 
77. FIRE SPRINKLERS REQUIRED: (As noted on Sheet A-0.01) Fire sprinklers required to be 

installed in both the single-family home and the secondary dwelling unit. An automatic 
residential fire sprinkler system shall be installed in one- and two-family dwellings as 
follows: In all new one- and two-family dwellings and in existing one- and two-family 
dwellings when additions are made that increase the building area to more than 3,600 
square feet. Exception: A one-time addition to an existing building that does not total more 
than 1,000 square feet of building area. Note: The owner(s), occupants) and any 
contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) are responsible for consulting with the water purveyor of 
record in order to determine if any modification or upgrade of the existing water service is 
required. A State of California licensed (C-16) Fire Protection Contractor shall submit plans, 
calculations, a completed permit application and appropriate fees to this department for 
review and approval prior to beginning their work. CRC Sec. 313.2 as adopted and amended 
by LGTC. Please provide a note on Sheet A-0.01 indicating that an automatic fire sprinkler 
system shall be provided and installed per NFPA 13D 2016 ed. Please note that full plans to 
include tank(s), size(s) and location, underground piping, pump if needed, and associated 
sprinkler and domestic water supply and domestic feed to the tank(s) shall be a deferred 
submittal for review of compliance to the SCCFD W-5 and SP-6 Standards. 

78. REQUIRED FIRE FLOW: (As noted on Sheet A-0.01) The fire flow for this project is 2,250 GPM 
at 20 psi residual pressure from a single hydrant. If an automatic fire sprinkler system will 
be installed, the fire flow will be reduced by 50% establishing a required adjusted fire flow 
of 1125 GPM at 20 psi residual pressure. Documentation of the adequate availability of flow 
and pressure for the proposed private fire protection system and how you will obtain it is 
required. Please refer to SCCFD W-5 and SP-6 Standards. 

Page 48



C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\e92cfc69-c247-44d3-9dec-847de7267189\ITEM-Attachment-002-
517f138714c84f2e9047255d273c4e7f.docx 

79. FIRE HYDRANT SYSTEMS REQUIRED: (As noted on Sheet A-0.01) Where a portion of the 
facility or building hereafter constructed or moved into or within the jurisdiction is more 
than 400 feet from a hydrant on a fire apparatus access road, as measured by an approved 
route around the exterior of the facility or building, onsite fire hydrants and mains shall be 
provided where required by the fire code official. Exception: For Group R-3 and Group U 
occupancies, equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system installed in 
accordance with Section 903.3.1.1, 903.3.1.2 or 903.3.1.3, the distance requirement shall be 
not more than 600 feet. [CFC, Section 507.5.1]. (2) 5K gallon tanks will be provided and 
installed - as shown on Sheet 5 of 7. Please provide a note on Sheet A-0.01 that states that 
full plans for the private fire protection system, to include tank(s), size(s) and location, 
underground piping, pump if needed, and associated sprinkler and domestic water supply 
and domestic feed to the tank(s), shall be a deferred submittal for review of compliance to 
the SCCFD W-5 and SP-6 Standards. 

80. WATER SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS: Potable water supplies shall be protected from 
contamination caused by fire protection water supplies. It is the responsibility of the 
applicant and any contractors and subcontractors to contact the water purveyor supplying 
the site of such project, and to comply with the requirements of that purveyor. Such 
requirements shall be incorporated into the design of any water-based fire protection 
systems, and/or fire suppression water supply systems or storage containers that may be 
physically connected in any manner to an appliance capable of causing contamination of the 
potable water supply of the purveyor of record. Final approval of the system(s) under 
consideration will not be granted by this office until compliance with the requirements of 
the water purveyor of record are documented by that purveyor as having been met by the 
applicant(s). 2016 CFC Sec. 903.3.5 and Health and Safety Code 13114.7 

81. ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION: New and existing buildings shall have approved address 
numbers, building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that is 
plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property. These numbers shall 
contrast with their background. Where required by the fire code official, address numbers 
shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response. 
Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters. Numbers shall be a 
minimum of 4 inches (101.6 mm) high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7 mm). 
Where access is by means of a private road and the building cannot be viewed from the 
public way, a monument, pole or other sign or means shall be used to identify the structure. 
Address numbers shall be maintained. CFC Sec. 505.1. 

82. CONSTRUCTION SITE FIRE SAFETY: All construction sites must comply with applicable 
provisions of the CFC Chapter 33 and our Standard Detail and Specification S1-7. Provide 
appropriate notations on subsequent plan submittals, as appropriate to the project. CFC 
Chp. 33. 

83. WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE: This project is located within the designated Wildland-Urban 
Interface Fire Area. The building construction shall comply with the provisions of California 
Building Code (CBC) Chapter 7A. Note that vegetation clearance shall be in compliance with 
CBC Section 701 A.3.2.4 prior to project final approval. Check with the Planning Department 
for related landscape plan requirements. 

 

Page 49



(2.) Integrated Stucco Color 

SW2840 

Hammered Silver 

Interior / Exterior 

L 

R 

V 

2 

6 

(:) CUSTOMBILT METALS-Standing Seam Roof 

L 

R 

V 

0 Front Door - Wood

L 

R 

V 

7 

MARVIN - Windows G 
& Gutter Fascia Color 

Vergara Residence - Exterior Materials 
15310 Suview Drive, Los Gatos, CA 

-
---->=<� I 

0 cb 

0 NATURAL STONE VENEERS - Woodbury

0-

c!J 

/ 
_:;co. 

�· 

�05 0 
L 

R 

V 

1 

0 

L 

R 

V 

1 

7 

L 

R 

1 

2 0 NEW TECHWOOD - Siding
EXHIBIT 4

Page 50



EXHIBIT 5
Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



June 5, 2019
Mr. Sean Mullin
Community Development Department
Town of  Los Gatos
110 E. Main Street
P.O. Box 949
Los Gatos, CA  95031

RE:  1530 Suview Drive

Dear Sean:

I reviewed the drawings, and have visited the site in the course of  reviewing other new homes in the immediate area. My 
comments are as follows:

Neighborhood Context
The site is part of  a small subdivision, and is located on a gently sloping site immediate adjacent to Suview Drive.. Pho-
tos of  the site and surrounding area are shown below.

ARCHITECTURE PLANNING URBAN DESIGN

EXHIBIT 6Page 54



Site looking East

Site looking West

General Site Context
Looking West

15310 Suview Drive
Design Review Comments

June 5, 2019 Page 2

Page 55



Issues and Concerns
The house is well designed with materials and details appropriate to the Contemporary Architectural Style. The height is 
limited to one story, and the proposed footprint is similar to other nearby homes - see illustrations below. 

PROPOSED ELEVATION WEST FRONT

PROPOSED ELEVATION EAST REAR

PROPOSED ELEVATION SOUTH SIDE

PROPOSED ELEVATION NORTH SIDE

15310 Suview Drive
Design Review Comments

June 5, 2019 Page 3

Page 56



I see only one potential issue - the driveway to the north seems unnecessary to the function of  the house, and may be in 
conflict with the Residential Design Guidelines which discourage unnecessary paved surfaces.

Recommendation: Eliminate the additional paving.

I have no other recommendations for changes.

Sean, please let me know if  you have any questions or if  there are issues or concerns that I have not addressed.

Sincerely,
CANNON DESIGN GROUP

Larry Cannon   AICP
President

15310 Suview Drive
Design Review Comments

June 5, 2019 Page 4

Page 57



TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

PHONE (408) 399-5770 

FAX (408) 354-6824 

SERVICE CENTER 

41 MILES AVENUE 

LOS GATOS, CA  95030 

A Tree Review of 

The Proposed Demolition of an Existing Residence and 

Construction of a New Custom Residence  

15310 Suview Drive  

Los Gatos, California 95032 

Property Owner: Jim and Holly Vergara 

Architect: Camargo & Associates, Inc. 

APN: 537-24-024 

Zoned HR-2½  

Submitted to: 

Sean Mullin, AICP 

Associate Planner 

Community Development Department 

Town of Los Gatos 

110 E. Main Street 

Los Gatos, California 95030 

Submitted by: 

Robert Moulden 

Los Gatos Town Arborist 

ISA Certified Arborist: #WE-0532A 

July 18, 2019 

EXHIBIT 7
Page 58



 
 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

PHONE (408) 399-5770 

FAX (408) 354-6824 

SERVICE CENTER 

41 MILES AVENUE 

LOS GATOS, CA  95030 

Introduction 

 

I have been requested by the Los Gatos Community Development Department to review 

the potential impacts on 11 trees associated with the demolition and rebuilding of residence 

at 15310 Suview Drive. 

 

Trees on Site 

 

Trees #1 through 8 are young redwood trees located north of the proposed residence with 

diameters ranging from approximately 4 inches to 10 inches.  The trees are in good health 

and show nice vigor.  A portion of the proposed driveway would require the removal of 

trees #1 through 3.   

 

Tree #9 is a multi-trunk walnut tree with a diameter of approximately 48 inches.  Based on 

its size and species of the trees, they are all classified as a large protected tree.  This tree is 

located south of the proposed residence and has a significant lean to the east.  This tree 

appears healthy and shows good vigor; however, since this tree has such a heavy lean, its 

removal could be supported if applicant agrees.   

 

Tree #10 is a live oak with a diameter of approximately 50 inches.  Based on its size and 

species of the trees, they are all classified as a large protected tree.  This tree is located 

south of the proposed residence, adjacent to an existing swimming pool and play area.  This 

tree is showing good health. 

 

Trees #11 is a multi-trunk pomegranate tree.  Fruit bearing trees are not protected under the 

Town Code.  This tree is proposed for removal. 

 

Recommendation 

 

Trees #1 through 3 are proposed for removal to accommodate the proposed driveway.  Tree 

#9 is also proposed for removal.  A tree removal permit is required for their removal and 

replacement plantings shall comply with the Town Code and Hillside Development 

Standards and Guidelines. 

 

Trees #4 through 8 are proposed to remain and shall be protected for the duration of this 

project.  Standard protection measures are appropriate to protect the trees during 

construction per Section 29.10.1005 of the Town Code.   

 

Trees #10 is proposed to remain and shall be protected for the duration of this project.  Tree 

protection fencing shall be placed at the dripline of the tree to the greatest extent possible 

and shall meet the requirements of Section 29.10.1005 of the Town Code.   

 

1. If new plant material is installed under the canopies it should be drought tolerant 

materials. 

Page 59



 
 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

PHONE (408) 399-5770 

FAX (408) 354-6824 

SERVICE CENTER 

41 MILES AVENUE 

LOS GATOS, CA  95030 

2. Any trenching for new irrigation should be designed outside of the canopies. 

 

3. A thin layer of mulch shall be installed beneath the unpaved area of the canopies 

and maintained throughout the project. 

 

4. The Contractor shall adhere to the Town Code relating to Protection of Trees 

during construction:  

  

Sec.29.10.1005. – Protection of trees during construction 

 

(a) Protective tree fencing shall specify the following: 

 

(1) Size and materials: A five (5) or six (6) foot high chain link fencing, 

mounted on two-inch diameter galvanized iron posts, shall be driven into 

the ground to a depth of at least two (2) feet at no more than 10-foot 

spacing. For paving area that will not be demolished and when stipulated 

in a tree preservation plan, posts may be supported by a concrete base.  

 

(2)  Area type to be fenced. Type I: Enclosure with chain link fencing of 

either the entire drip line area or at the tree protection zone (TPZ), when 

specified by a certified or consulting arborist. Type II: Enclosure for 

street trees located in a planter strip: chain link fence around the entire 

planter strip to the outer branches. Type III: Protection for a tree located 

in a small planter cut-out only (such as downtown): orange plastic 

fencing shall be wrapped around the trunk from the ground to the first 

branch with 2-inch wooden boards bound securely on the outside. 

Caution shall be used to avoid damaging any bark or branches.  

 

(3) Duration of Type I, II, III fencing. Fencing shall be erected before 

demolition; grading or construction begins and remain in place until final 

landscaping is required. Contractor shall first obtain the approval of the 

project arborist on record prior to removing a tree protection fence.  

 

(4)  Warning sign. Each tree fence shall have prominently displayed an 8.5 x 

11-inch sign stating: "Warning—Tree Protection Zone-this fence shall 

not be removed and is subject to penalty according to Town Code 

29.10.1025".  

 

(b)  All persons shall comply with the following precautions: 

 

(1)  Prior to the commencement of construction, install the fence at the drip 

line, or tree protection zone (TPZ) when specified in an approved arborist 

report, around any tree and/or vegetation to be retained which could be 

affected by the construction and prohibit any storage of construction 

Page 60



 
 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

PHONE (408) 399-5770 

FAX (408) 354-6824 

SERVICE CENTER 

41 MILES AVENUE 

LOS GATOS, CA  95030 

materials or other materials or vehicles inside the fence. The drip line 

shall not be altered in any way so as to increase the encroachment of the 

construction.  

 

(2)  Prohibit excavation, grading, drainage and levelling within the drip line 

of the tree unless approved by the director. 

 

(3) Prohibit disposal or depositing of oil, gasoline, chemicals or other harmful 

materials within the drip line of or in drainage channels, swales or areas 

that may lead to the drip line of a protected tree  

 

(4)  Prohibit the attachment of wires, signs or ropes to any protected tree. 

 

(5)  Design utility services and irrigation lines to be located outside of the 

drip line when feasible. 

 

(6) Retain the services of the certified or consulting arborist for periodic 

monitoring of the project site and the health of those trees to be 

preserved. The certified or consulting arborist shall be present whenever 

activities occur which poses a potential threat to the health of the trees to 

be preserved.  

 

(7) The director and project arborist shall be notified of any damage that 

occurs to a protected tree during construction so that proper treatment 

may be administered. 

 

Page 61



 
 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

PHONE (408) 399-5770 

FAX (408) 354-6824 

SERVICE CENTER 

41 MILES AVENUE 

LOS GATOS, CA  95030 

 

 
 

 
Trees #1 through 8. Redwood trees. 

Page 62



 
 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

PHONE (408) 399-5770 

FAX (408) 354-6824 

SERVICE CENTER 

41 MILES AVENUE 

LOS GATOS, CA  95030 

 

  
Tree #9. Walnut tree proposed for removal. Tree #10. Oak tree proposed to remain. 

 

 

 

Page 63



 
 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

PHONE (408) 399-5770 

FAX (408) 354-6824 

SERVICE CENTER 

41 MILES AVENUE 

LOS GATOS, CA  95030 

 

Page 64



EXHIBIT 8Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



A- 0.01

A- 0.02

A-1.02

A-1.05

A-1.07

A-2.01

A-3.01

A-3.02

A-801

GPR

TITLE SHEET

GENERAL NOTES

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

FLOOR PLANS

ROOF PLANS

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

BUILDING SECTIONS

BUILDING SECTIONS

AREA CALCULATIONS

BUILD IT GREEN GREEN POINT RATED CHECKLIST

3D VIEWS

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

TOWN NOTES, PROJECT DATA, LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS

BLUEPRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY

EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY & DEMOLITION PLAN

SITE PLAN

GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

SECTIONS & DETAILS

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

L-1 LANDSCAPE PLAN

V-001 SITE SECTIONS / VISIBILITY ANALYSIS

PROJECT DIRECTORY (A - Z)SCOPE OF WORKVICINITY MAP SHEET INDEX

FOR PLANNING
PRINTED

PLAN CHECK
PRINTED

FOR BIDDING
PRINTED

FOR CONSTRUCTION
PRINTED

1 5 3 1 0   S U V I E W   D R I V E
ARCHITECTS:

CIVIL ENGINEERS:

GOVERNMENT:

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTS:

OWNERS:

CAMARGO & ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS
3953 YOLO DR.
SAN JOSE, CA. 95136
MAURICE@CAMARGO.COM
T: 408.489.1077

HANNA-BRUNETTI, INC.
7651 EIGLEBERRY ST/
GILROY, CA. 95020
ENGINEERING@HANNABRUNETTI.COM
T: 408.842.2173

TOWN OF LOS GATOS
110 E. MAIN ST.
LOS GATOS, CA. 95030
T. 408.354.6834

AITKEN ASSOCIATES
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS
8262 RANCHE REAL
GILROY, CA. 95020
T: 408.842.0245

JIM & HOLLY VERGARA
15310 SUVIEW DR.
LOS GATOS, CA. 95032

THE PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK CONSISTS OF DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
SINGLE FAMILY HOME STRUCTURE, DETACHED IN-LAW UNIT AND
CARPORT TO CONSTRUCT A ONE STORY SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE WITH
ATTACHED GARAGE.

ALL WORK DESCRIBED IN THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE
LATEST BUILDING CONSTRUCTION CODES AND THOSE CODES AMENDED
AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS.

ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE FOLLOWING CODES:

2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE.
2016 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE.
2016 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE.
2016 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE.
2016 CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS.
2016 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE.
2016 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE.
2016 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE

PROJECT DATA

SITE DATA
APN:
ZONING:
OCCUPANCY GROUP:
TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION:
GROSS LOT AREA:
NET LOT AREA:
SITE AVERAGE SLOPE:
REDUCTION FACTOR:

537-24-024
HR-2 1/2

R3
TYBE V

2.59 ACRES / 112,820.4 SQFT
55,620.5 SQFT

26.9%
50.70%

FAR CALCULATIONS
MAIN FLOOR:
GARGE:
HDS&G ALLOWANCE
SUBTOTAL:

COVERED PORCHES / PATIOS:
SECONDARY DWELLING:
DETACHED ACCESSORY
BLDNG:
SUBTOTAL:

PROPOSED
5,203.25 SQFT

926.75 SQFT
-400 SQFT

5,730.00 SQFT

934 SQFT
N/A

N/A
6,663.50 SQFT

MAX ALLOWED

6,000 SQFT

X

CIVIL DRAWINGS

EXISING HOUSE TO BE DEMOLISHED
MAIN HOUSE:
GUEST UNIT:
CARPORT
SUBTOTAL:

1,987 SQFT
932 SQFT
882 SQFT

3,801 SQFT

X

LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

- FIRE SPRINKLERS SYSTEM: AN AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM
SHALL BE PROVIDED AND INSTALLED PER NFPA 13D 2016 ED.
- HYDRANT / TANK FIRE PROTECTION INSTALLATIONS: FULL PLANS TO
INCLUDE TANK(S), SIZE(S) AND LOCATION TO BE REVIEWED OF
COMPLIANCE TO THE SCCFD W-5 AND SP-6 STANDARDS.

DEFERRED SUBMITTAL ITEMS

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

A- 0.01

SUVIEW

EXHIBIT 9

Page 70



FIRE COMMENTS: 

1. REVIEW OF THIS DEVELOPMENTAL 
PROPOSAL IS LIMITED TO 
ACCEPTABILITY OF SITE ACCESS, WATER 
SUPPLY ABD MAY CONSTRUED AS A 
SUBSTITUTE FOR A FORMAL PLAN 
REVIEW TO DETERMINE COMPLIANCE 
WITH ADOPTED MODEL CODES. PRIOR 
TO PERFORMING ANY WORK, THE 
APPLICANT SHALL MAKE APPLICAION 
TO, AND RECEIVE FROM, THE 
BUILDINING DEPARTMENT ALL 
APPLICABLE BUILDING PERMITS. 

2. FIRE SPRINKLERS REQUIRED: FIRE 
SPRINKLERS REQUIRED TO BE INSTALLED 
IN BOTH, A SINGLE FAMILY HOME, AND 
ANY SECONDARY DWELLING UNIT. AN 
AUTOMATIC RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER 
SYSTEM SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ONE- 
AND TWO-FAMILY DWELLING AS 
FOLLOWS: IN ALL NEW ONE- AND TWO-
FAMILY DWELLINGS AND IN EXISTING 
ONE- AND TWO-FAMILY DWELLINGS WHEN 
ADDITIONS ARE MADE THAT INCREASE 
THE BUILDING AREA TO MORE THAN 3,600 
SQFT. EXECPTION: A ONE-TIME ADDITION 
TO AN EXISTING BUILDING THAT DOES 
NOT TOTAL MORE THAN 1,000SQFT. OF 
BUILDING AREA. NOTE: THE OWNER(S), 
OCCUPANT(S) AND ANY CONTRACTOR(S) 
OR SUBCONTRACTOR(S) ARE RESPONSIBLE 
FOR CONSULTING WITH THE WATER 
PURVEYOR OF RECORD IN ORDER TO 
DETERMINE IF ANY MODIFICATION OR 
UPGRADE OF THE EXISTING WATER 
SERVICE IS REQUIRED. A STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA LICENSED (C-16) FIRE 
PROTECTION CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT 
PLANS, CALCULATIONS, A PERMIT 
APPLICATION, AND APPROPRIATE FEES 
TOTHIS DEPARTMENTFOR REVIEW AND 
APPROVAL PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK. 
CRC SECT. 313.2 AS ADOPTED AND 
AMENDED BY LGTC. 

3. REQUIRED FIRE FLOW: THE FIRE FLOW 
FOR THIS PROJECT IS 2,250 GPM AT 20 
PSIRESIDUAL PRESSURE FROM A SINGLE 
HYDRANT. IF ANY AUTOMATIC FIRE 
SPRINKLER SYSTEM WILL BE INSTALLED, 
THE FIRE FLOW WILL BE REDUCED BY 50% 
ESTABLISHING A REQUIRED ADJUSTEDFIRE 
FLOW OF 1125 GPM AT 20PSI RESIDUAL 
PRESSURE. DOCUMENTATION OF THE 
AVAILABILITY OF FLOW AND HOW IT WILL 
BE OBTAINED REQUIRED. 

4. FIRE HYDRANT SYSTEM REQUIRED: 
WHERE A PORTION OF THE FACILITY OR 
BUILDING HEREAFTER CONSTRUCTED OR 
MOVED IN TO, OR WITHIN THE 
JURISDICTION IS MORE THAN 400FT FROM 
A HYDRANT ON A FIRE APPARATUS 
ACCESS ROAD, AS A MEASURE BY AN 
APPROVED ROUTE AROUND THE EXTERIOR 
OF THE FACILITY OR BUILDING, ON SITE 
FIRE HYDRANTS AND MAINS SHALL BE 
PROVIDED WHERE REQUIRED BY THE FIRE 
CODE OFFICIAL. EXCEPTION: FOR GROUP 
R-3 AND GROUP U OCCUPANCIES, 
EQUIPPED THROUGHOUT WITH AN 
APPROVEDAUTOMATIC SPRINKLER 
SYSTEM INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 903.3.1.1, 903.3.1.2, OR 903.3.1.3, THE 
DISTANCE REQUIREMENT SHALL BE NOT 
MORE THAN 600FT.  

5. WATER SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS: 
POTABLE WATER SUPPLIES SHALL BE 
PROTECTED FROM CONTAMINATION 
CAUSE BY FIRE PROTECTION WATER 
SUPPLIES. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF 
THE APPLICANT AND ANY CONTRACTORS 
AND SUBCONTRACTORSTO CONTACT THE 
WATER PURVEYOR SUPPLYING THE SITE 
OF SUCH PROJECT, AND TO COMPLYWITH 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF THAT PURVEYOR. 
SUCH REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE 
INCORPORATED INTO DESIGN OF ANY 
WATER-BASED FIRE PROTECTION 
SYSTEMS, AND / OR FIRE SUPPRESSION 
WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM OR STORAGE 

CONTAINERS THAT MAY BE PHYSICALLY 
CONNECTED IN ANY MANNER TO AN 
APPLIANCE CAPABLE OF 
CAUSINGCONTAMINATION OF THE 
POTABLE WATER SUPPLY OF THE 
PURVEYOR OF RECORD. FINAL APPROVAL 
OF THE SYSTEM(S) UNDER CONSIDERATION 
WILL NOT BE GRANTED BY THIS OFFICE 
UNTIL COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE WATER PURVEYOR 
OF RECORD ARE DOCUMENTED BY THAT 
PURVEYOR AS HAVING BEEN MET BY 
APPLICANT(S). 2016 CFC SECT. 903.3.4 AND 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 13114.7. 

6. ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION: NEW AND 
EXISTING BUILDINGS SHALL HAVE 
APPROVED ADDRESS NUMBERS, BUILDING 
NUMBERS OR APPROVED BUILDING 
IDENTIFICATION PLACED IN A POSITION 
THAT IS PLAINLY LEGIBLE AND VISIBLE 
FROM THE STREET OR ROAD FRONTING 
THE PROPERTY. THESE NUMBERS SHALL 
CONTRAST WITH THEIR BACKGROUND. 
WHERE REQUIRED BY THE FIRE CODE 
OFFICIAL, ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE 
PROVIDED IN ADDITIONAL APPROVED 
LOCATIONSTO FACILITATE EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE. ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE 
ARABIC FONT NUMBERS OR 
ALPHABETICAL LETTERS. NUMBERS SHALL 
BE A MINIMUM OF 4 INCHES (101.6 MM) 
HIGH WITH A MINIMUM STROKE WIDTH OF 
0.5 INCH (12.7MM). WHERE ACCESS IS BY 
MEANS OF A PRIVATE ROAD AND THE 
BUILDING CANNOT BE VIEWED FROM THE 
BUBLIC WAY, A MONUMENT, POLE OR 
OTHER SIGN OR MEANS SHALL BE USED TO 
IDENTIFY THE STRUCTURE. ADDRESS 
NUMBERS SHALL BE AINTAINED, CFC SECT. 
505.1 

7. CONSTRUCTION SITE FIRE SAFEY: ALL 
CONSTRUCTION SITES MUS COMPLY WITH 
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE CFC 
CHAPTER 33 AND OUR STANDARD DETAIL 
AND SPECIFICATION S1-7. PROVIDE 
APPROPRIATE NOTATIONS ON 
SUBSEQUENT PLAN SUBMITTALS, AS 
APPROPRIATE TO THE PROJECT. CFC CHP. 
33. 

8. WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE: THIS 
PROJECT IS LOCATED WITHING THE 
DESIGNATED WILDLAND-URBAN 
INTERFACE FIRE AREA. BUILDING 
CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMPLY WITH THE 
PROVISIONS OF CALIFORNIA BUILDING 
CODE (CBC) CHAPTER 7A. NOTE: 
VEGETATION CLEARANCE SHALL BE IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH CBC SECTION 701A.3.2.4 
REQUIREMENTS. 

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

A- 0.02

SUVIEW

Page 71



Slop
eSlope

S
lo

pe

Slope

Slope

30
'34

'

20'
6'

6'
6'

10
'

6'
6'

6'

48'
33'

25
'

20'

FF 761'-0" FF 765'-0"

FG 760'-0"

EXIST.
F.H. TO

REMAIN

LIMITS OF DISTURBED AREA

LIMITS OF DISTURBED AREA

LIMITS OF DISTURBED AREA

6" CONC. CURB

WATER METER
NEW LOCATION

DESIGNATED OFF-STREET
PARKING AREA

6" CONC. CURB

6" CONC. CURB

6" CONC. CURB

700

71
0

710

720
720

720

730
730

730

730

740

740

740
740

750

750

750
750

760

760

770

770

770

77
076

0

78
0

780

78
0

78
0

79
0

790

790

800

800

800

800

81
0

810

810

820

82
0

79
0

790

SUVIEW RD

SUVIEW RD

20.00'

COURT

MAIN
HOUSE

POOL

DR
IV

EW
AY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T

AP
PR

O
XI

M
AT

E 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

760

UTILITY

UTILITY

5,203.25 SQFT926.75 SQFT

N

DRIVEWAY

FRONT
PORCH

DRIVEWAY

STONE WALKWAY

ENTRY
PORCH

S

E
W

COVERED
PATIO

TRASH
ENCLOSURE

TELE

TELE

LAWN

LAWN

PATIO

PLANTING

PLANTING

14'-0"

LRDA LINE

LRDA LINE

LRDA LINE

GARAGE

PLANTING
PLANTING

PRIMARY LEACHFIELD

SECONDARY LEACHFIELD

PLANTING

PLANTER

10" REDWOOD

10" REDWOOD

10" REDWOOD

10" REDWOOD

10" REDWOOD

10" REDWOOD

18'-0"

NEW CONCRETE
RETAINING WALL
TO REPLACE EXIST.

FENCE

CONC. RETAINING WALL

CONC. RETAINING WALL

CONC. RETAINING WALL

CONC. RETAINING WALL

CONC. RETAINING WALL

S 
62

°3
0'0

0"
 E

35
6.

48
'

N 27°41'28" E

163.84'

S01°49'00"E 171.41'

S23°40'00"W

87.78'

S6
2°

30
'00

"E

29
8.

26
'

R=400.00
L=177.91
Δ=25°29'00"

N09°26'28"E
53.46' N03°38'32"W

127.92'

S27°41'28"W42.00'
N31°23'54"W

24.87'

N
65°46'46"E

34.59'

T60-60

T24-24

T28-28

T08-16

T32-32

T24-32

T14-28

T32-42T16-32
T08-16

T48-65

T08-24

T28-32

PROPOSED
PROPANE

TANK

PROPOSED
SEPTIC
TANK

LOCATION

NEW 5,000
GALLON WATER

TANKS LOCATION

10" REDWOOD

LEGEND

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

(N) PAVED DRIVEWAY / COURTYARD
(N) PAVED PORCHES / PATIOS
(N) SWIMMING POOL / WATER FEATURES

(N) CONCRETE PAVER / WALK WAYS

(N) LAWN AREAS

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1' = 20'

EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

A-1.02

SUVIEW

Page 72



DW DW

R
G

W W CD

14
'-1

1"
1'

-0
"

28
'-8

"
25

'-8
"

12'-9" 1'-6" 21'-10" 8'-2" 23'-7" 17'-0" 11'-1" 20'-4" 6'-4" 14'-8" 15'-6"
7'

-0
"

7'
-1

1"
14

'-4
"

71
'-3

"

8'-5" 13'-10" 10'-6" 12'-9" 19'-2" 17'-10"

152'-9"

23
'-2

"
9'

-2
"

4'
-6

"
13

'-1
"

7'
-1

"

11
'-3

"
3'

-9
"

57
'-0

"

22
'-2

"
2'

-0
"

5'
-1

0"

FF 761'

FF 765'

E-04

E
-0

2

E
-0

1

FIREPL.

FIREPL.

LINENS.

WINE DISPLAY

MICRO

BARN DOOR

GARAGE

BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 1

MASTER
BEDROOMW.C.

MASTER
BATHROOM

MASTER
CLOSET

KITCHEN

NOOK
GREAT
ROOM

DINING

ENTRY

MUD
ROOM

LAUNDRY

CLOSET

CLOSET

BATH 2

BATH 1

CLOSET

POWDER

BATH 3
GUEST

BDROOM

OFFICE

REC ROOM

CLOSET

STORAGE

GARAGE

PANTRY

 BEDRM HALLWAY   MAIN
HALLWAY

HALL

CRAFT ROOM

COVERED PATIO

FRONT PORCH

ENTRY PORCH

HALL

MECH.

13'-0" X 12'-6" 12'-6" x 15'-6"

16'-11" x 18'-7"

13'-2" x 12'-4"

23'-6" x 35'-0"

10'-2" x 9'-9" 7'-1" x 9'-9"

16'-6" x 21'-8"

10'-2" x 14'-7"

11'-4" x 6'-1"

18'-5" x 23'-7"

10'-2" x 13'-6"

13'-7" x 7'-4"

15'-0" x 18'-7"

15'-0" x 7'-1"13'-7" x 10'-11"

7'-7" x 13'-0"

7'-11" x 8'-1"

17'-7" x 11'-3"

35'-8" x 15'-8"

18'-5" x 12'-5"

LINEN

MAIN HOUSE

S
1

A
-3

.0
1

S
1

A
-3

.0
1

S
3

A
-3

.0
1

S
3

A
-3

.0
1

E-03

FRF

DBL
OVEN

S
5

A
-3

.0
1

S
5

A
-3

.0
1

S
4

A
-3

.0
1

S
4

A
-3

.0
1

S
2

A
-3

.0
1

S
2

A
-3

.0
1

S8
A-3.02

S8
A-3.02

S7
A-3.02

S7
A-3.02

S
6

A
-3

.0
1

S
6

A
-3

.0
1

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

A-1.05

SUVIEW

Page 73



S
lo

pe
 to

 d
ra

in

Slope to drain

S
lo

pe
 to

 d
ra

in

Slope to drain

S
lo

pe
 to

 d
ra

in

S
lo

pe
 to

 d
ra

in

S
lo

pe
 to

 d
ra

in
S

lo
pe

 to
 d

ra
in

Slope to drain

S
lo

pe
 to

 d
ra

in

Slope to drain

2%
2%

2%

2%

2%

2%

2%

2%

E-04

E
-0

2

E
-0

1

S
1

A
-3

.0
1

S
1

A
-3

.0
1

METAL SEAM
ROOFING

METAL SEAM
ROOFING

METAL SEAM
ROOFING

METAL SEAM
ROOFING

FLAT ROOF

FLAT ROOF

ROOF PARAPEET

ROOF PARAPEET

FLAT ROOF SKYLIGHT

SKYLIGHT

FLAT ROOF

FLAT ROOF

DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT
DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

S
3

A
-3

.0
1

S
3

A
-3

.0
1

E-03

S
5

A
-3

.0
1

S
5

A
-3

.0
1

S
4

A
-3

.0
1

S
4

A
-3

.0
1

S
2

A
-3

.0
1

S
2

A
-3

.0
1

S8
A-3.02

S8
A-3.02

S7
A-3.02

S7
A-3.02

S
6

A
-3

.0
1

S
6

A
-3

.0
1

S
lo

pe
 to

 d
ra

in
S

lo
pe

 to
 d

ra
in

Slope to drain
Slope to drain

METAL SEAM
ROOFING

CHAIN
LINK
D.S.

CHAIN
LINK
D.S.

CHAIN
LINK
D.S.

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

ROOF PLAN

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

A-1.07

SUVIEW

Page 74



13
'-4

" 18
'-0

"

16
'-3

"

22
'-0

"

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF STANDING SEAM

METAL ROOFMETALCAP

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDING

THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH INTEGRAL COLOR

PIGMENT.

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDING

METAL CAP

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

COARSE
STONE VENEER

METAL CAP

THREE COAT
STUCCO WITH

INTEGRAL COLOR
PIGMENT.

THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH INTEGRAL COLOR

PIGMENT.
EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD

LAP SIDING

THREE COAT
STUCCO WITH

INTEGRAL COLOR
PIGMENT.

EXISTING GRADE

COARSE
STONE VENEER

MAX. HT. MEASURE FROM
LOWEST GRADE TO HIGHEST
POINT.

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDING

COARSE
STONE VENEER

WOOD
FRONT DOOR

METAL GUTTER FASCIA
METAL GUTTER FASCIA

METAL GUTTER FASCIA

METAL WINDOW
TRIM

0'-0"
MAIN FLOOR LVL 765'

± 18'-0"
ROOF RIDGE

-4'-0"
GARAGE FIN LVL. 761'

± 16'-0"
TOP OF PP

± 13'-6"
ROOF RIDGE

3
12

3
12

3
12

± 22'-0"
ROOF PEAK

12
'-3

" 16
'-3

"

13
'-3

"17
'-1

1"

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

METAL CAP

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDING

THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH INTEGRAL COLOR

PIGMENT.

METAL CAP
STANDING SEAM

METAL ROOF

THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH INTEGRAL COLOR

PIGMENT.

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDINGEXISTING GRADE

EXIST. ROCK RETAINING
WALL TO BE REPLACED

COARSE
STONE VENEER

COARSE
STONE VENEER

EXISTING GRADE
METAL GUTTER FASCIA METAL GUTTER FASCIA

METAL
WINDOW TRIM

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDING

0'-0"
MAIN FLOOR LVL 765'

± 18'-0"
ROOF RIDGE

± 16'-0"
TOP OF PP

± 12'-0"
TOP OF PP

± 13'-0"
ROOF RIDGE

0'-0"
MAIN FLOOR LVL 765'

3 12

3 12

312

312

16
'-3

"

12
'-9

"

10
'-6

"13
'-4

"

22
'-0

"

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH INTEGRAL COLOR

PIGMENT.

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH INTEGRAL COLOR

PIGMENT.

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDING

STONE VENEER

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

METAL CAP

METAL CAP

EXISTING GRADE
GATE

SKYLIGHT

MAX. HT. MEASURE FROM
LOWEST GRADE TO HIGHEST
POINT.

METAL GUTTER FASCIA

METAL GUTTER FASCIA
METAL GUTTER FASCIA

METAL GUTTER FASCIA

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDINGMETAL

WINDOW TRIM
METAL DOOR

TRIM

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDING

0'-0"
MAIN FLOOR LVL 765'

± 13'-0"
TOP OF PP

± 16'-6"
TOP OF PP.

± 10'-6"
PORCH HT.

3
12

312

3
12 312

-4'-0"
GARAGE FIN. LVL 761'

0'-0"
MAIN FLOOR LVL 765'

± 13'-6"
ROOF RIDGE

± 22'-0"
Roof Peak

15
'-6

"

10
'-0

"

18
'-0

"

13
'-5

"

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH INTEGRAL COLOR

PIGMENT.

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH INTEGRAL COLOR

PIGMENT.

EXT. 8" TEECH WOOD
LAP SIDING

STONE VENEER

COARSE
STONE VENEER

EXISTING GRADE

METAL DOOR
TRIM

METAL GUTTER FASCIA

COARSE
STONE VENEER

METAL GUTTER FASCIA

M

METAL GUTTER FASCIA
± 18'-0"

ROOF RIDGE

± 13'-0"
ROOF RIDGE

 0'-0"
MAIN FLOOR LVL 765'

0'-0"
MAIN FLOOR LVL 765'

± 15'-6"
ROOF RIDGE

3
12

3
12

3
12

± 10'-0"
LOGGIA HT.

E-03 WEST ELEVATION

E-04 EAST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

E-02 SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

E-01 NORTH ELEVATION

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

A-2.01

SUVIEW

Page 75



9'
-0

"

9'
-0

"

18
'-0

"

EXISTING GRADE

18' HEIGH PLANE
MEASURED FROM
PROPOSED GRADE

CRAFT
ROOM

OFFICE HALL

CEILING HT.
+9'-0"

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

13
'-0

"

18
'-0

"

EXISTING GRADE

18' HEIGH PLANE
MEASURED FROM
PROPOSED GRADE

GREAT
ROOM HALLDINING

ROOM
REAR

PORCH

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

CEILING HT.
+13'-0"

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

CEILING HT.
13'-0"

11
'-0

"

10
'-0

"

18
'-0

"

EXISTING GRADE

18' HEIGH PLANE
MEASURED FROM
PROPOSED GRADE

MASTER
BEDROOM

CLOSETHALLKITCHEN

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

CEILING HT.
+ 11'-0"

FIN. FLOOR
 0'-0"

CEILING HT.
+10'-0"

10
'-0

"

18
'-0

"

EXISTING GRADE

18' HEIGH PLANE
MEASURED FROM
PROPOSED GRADE

MASTER
BATHROOMW.C.MASTER

CLOSETHALLPANTRY

ATTIC

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

CEILING HT.
± 11'-0"CEILING HT.

+10'-0"

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

15
'-0

"

9'
-0

"

18
'-0

"

EXISTING GRADE

18' HEIGH PLANE
MEASURED FROM
PROPOSED GRADE

PLANTER RET.
WALL

SKYLIGHT

BEDROOMHALLMUDROOM

MECH. ATTIC

FIN. SLAB
0'-0"

CEILING HT.
+15'-0"

CEILING HT.
+9'-0"

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

11
'-0

"

9'
-0

"

18
'-0

"

EXISTING GRADE

18' HEIGH PLANE
MEASURED FROM
PROPOSED GRADE

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

CEILING HT
± 10'-4"

FIN. CONC. SLAB
-4'-0"

CEILING HT.
+ 11'-0"

GARAGE

HALL CLOSET BATH

ATTIC

FF 761'

FF 765'

GARAGE

BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 1

MASTER
BEDROOMW.C.

MASTER
BATHROOM

MASTER
CLOSET

KITCHEN

NOOK
GREAT
ROOM

DINING

ENTRY

MUD
ROOM

LAUNDRY

CLOSET

CLOSET

BATH 2

BATH 1

CLOSET

POWDER

BATH 3
GUEST

BDROOM

OFFICE

REC ROOM

CLOSET

STORAGE

GARAGE

PANTRY

 BEDRM HALLWAY   MAIN
HALLWAY

HALL

CRAFT ROOM

COVERED PATIO

FRONT PORCH

ENTRY PORCH

HALL

MECH.

LINEN

MAIN HOUSE

S
1

A
-3

.0
1

S
1

A
-3

.0
1

S
3

A
-3

.0
1

S
3

A
-3

.0
1

S
5

A
-3

.0
1

S
5

A
-3

.0
1

S
4

A
-3

.0
1

S
4

A
-3

.0
1

S
2

A
-3

.0
1

S
2

A
-3

.0
1

S8
A-3.02

S8
A-3.02

S7
A-3.02

S7
A-3.02

S
6

A
-3

.0
1

S
6

A
-3

.0
1

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

S1 Building Section A

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

S2 Building Section B

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

S3 Building Section C

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

S4 Building Section D

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

S5 Building Section E

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

S6 Building Section F

SECTION KEY MAP

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

A-3.01

SUVIEW

Page 76



11
'-0

"

EXISTING GRADE

18' HEIGH PLANE
MEASURED FROM
PROPOSED GRADE

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

ROOF HT.
+11'-0"

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

BEDROOM BEDROOMBATHROOM

MASTER
CLOSET

MASTER
BEDROOMHALL

CEILING HT.
9'-0"

9'
-0

"

10
'-0

"

11
'-0

"

9'
-9

"
5'

-3
"

5'
-4

"

13
'-0

"

EXISTING GRADE

18' HEIGH PLANE
MEASURED FROM
PROPOSED GRADE

FIN. FLOOR
0'-0"

CEILING HT.
+10'-0"

FIN. CONC. SLAB
-4'-0"

CEILING HT.
+13'-0"

GARAGE

MUD
ROOM

CEILING HEIGHT
+11'-0"

LAUNDRY
KITCHENPANTRY NOOK GREAT ROOM REC. ROOMOFFICEPWDR CLOSET

ATTICMECHANICAL

FF 761'

FF 765'

GARAGE

BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 1

MASTER
BEDROOMW.C.

MASTER
BATHROOM

MASTER
CLOSET

KITCHEN

NOOK
GREAT
ROOM

DINING

ENTRY

MUD
ROOM

LAUNDRY

CLOSET

CLOSET

BATH 2

BATH 1

CLOSET

POWDER

BATH 3
GUEST

BDROOM

OFFICE

REC ROOM

CLOSET

STORAGE

GARAGE

PANTRY

 BEDRM HALLWAY   MAIN
HALLWAY

HALL

CRAFT ROOM

COVERED PATIO

FRONT PORCH

ENTRY PORCH

HALL

MECH.

LINEN

MAIN HOUSE

S
1

A
-3

.0
1

S
1

A
-3

.0
1

S
3

A
-3

.0
1

S
3

A
-3

.0
1

S
5

A
-3

.0
1

S
5

A
-3

.0
1

S
4

A
-3

.0
1

S
4

A
-3

.0
1

S
2

A
-3

.0
1

S
2

A
-3

.0
1

S8
A-3.02

S8
A-3.02

S7
A-3.02

S7
A-3.02

S
6

A
-3

.0
1

S
6

A
-3

.0
1

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

S8 Building Section I

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

S7 Building Section H

SECTION KEY MAP

BUILDING SECTIONS

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

A-3.02

SUVIEW

Page 77



5,203.25 sq ft

568 sq ft

366 sq ft

FF 761'

FF 765'

GARAGE

BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 1

MASTER
BEDROOMW.C.

MASTER
BATHROOM

MASTER
CLOSET

KITCHEN

NOOK
GREAT
ROOM

DINING

ENTRY

MUD
ROOM

LAUNDRY

CLOSET

CLOSET

BATH 2

BATH 1

CLOSET

POWDER

BATH 3
GUEST

BDROOM

OFFICE

REC ROOM

CLOSET

STORAGE

GARAGE

PANTRY

 BEDRM HALLWAY   MAIN
HALLWAY

HALL

CRAFT ROOM

COVERED PATIO

FRONT PORCH

ENTRY PORCH

HALL

MECH.

LINEN

MAIN HOUSE

926.75 sq ft

MAIN HOUSE FLOOR AREA
GARAGE FLOOR AREA
EXCLUDED:

TOTAL FLOOR AREA:
MAX. ALLOWED FAR:

COVERED PORCHES:

TOTAL:

FLOOR AREAS
5,203.25  SQFT

926.75 SQFT
-400 SQFT

5,730 SQFT
6,000 SQFT

934 SQFT

6,663.50 SQFT

AREA CALCULATIONS

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

A-801

SUVIEW

Page 78



NEW HOME RATING SYSTEM, VERSION 6.0

SINGLE FAMILY CHECKLIST

Single Family New Home Version 6.0.2

P
o

in
ts

A
c
h

ie
v
e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

E
n

e
rg

y

IA
Q

/H
e
a
lt

h

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

W
a
te

r

MEASURES NOTES
CALGreen

Yes CALGreen Res (REQUIRED) 4 1 1 1 1

A. SITE
Yes A1. Construction Footprint 1 1

A2. Job Site Construction Waste Diversion

Yes      A2.1 65% C&D Waste Diversion(Including Alternative Daily Cover) 2 2

≥65%      A2.2 65% C&D Waste Diversion (Excluding Alternative Daily Cover) 4 2

Yes      A2.3 Recycling Rates from Third-Party Verified Mixed-Use Waste Facility 1 1

TBD A3. Recycled Content Base Material 1

TBD A4. Heat Island Effect Reduction (Non-Roof) 1

TBD A5. Construction Environmental Quality Management Plan Including Flush-Out 1

A6. Stormwater Control: Prescriptive Path

Yes      A6.1 Permeable Paving Material 1 1

TBD      A6.2 Filtration and/or Bio-Retention Features 1

Yes      A6.3 Non-Leaching Roofing Materials 1 1

TBD      A6.4 Smart Stormwater Street Design 1

TBD A7. Stormwater Control: Performance Path 3

B. FOUNDATION
Yes B1. Fly Ash and/or Slag in Concrete 1 1

TBD B2. Radon-Resistant Construction 2

Yes B3. Foundation Drainage System 2 2

Yes B4. Moisture Controlled Crawlspace 1 1

B5. Structural Pest Controls

TBD      B5.1 Termite Shields and Separated Exterior Wood-to-Concrete Connections 1

TBD      B5.2 Plant Trunks, Bases, or Stems at Least 36 Inches from the Foundation 1

C. LANDSCAPE
0.00% Enter the landscape area percentage

Yes C1. Plants Grouped by Water Needs (Hydrozoning) 1 1

Yes C2. Three Inches of Mulch in Planting Beds 1 1

C3. Resource Efficient Landscapes

Yes      C3.1 No Invasive Species Listed by Cal-IPC 1 1

Yes      C3.2 Plants Chosen and Located to Grow to Natural Size 1 1

Yes
     C3.3 Drought Tolerant, California Native, Mediterranean Species, or Other 

              Appropriate Species 2 3

C4. Minimal Turf in Landscape

Yes
     C4.1 No Turf on Slopes Exceeding 10% and No Overhead Sprinklers Installed in 

              Areas Less Than Eight Feet Wide 0 2

≤10%      C4.2 Turf on a Small Percentage of Landscaped Area 0 2

TBD C5. Trees to Moderate Building Temperature 1 1 1

Yes C6. High-Efficiency Irrigation System 0 2

Yes C7. One Inch of Compost in the Top Six to Twelve Inches of Soil 0 2

TBD C8. Rainwater Harvesting System 3

TBD C9. Recycled Wastewater Irrigation System 1

TBD C10. Submeter or Dedicated Meter for Landscape Irrigation 2

TBD C11. Landscape Meets Water Budget 2

C12. Environmentally Preferable Materials for Site 

TBD
     C12.1 Environmentally Preferable Materials for 70% of Non-Plant Landscape 

              Elements and Fencing 1

Yes C13. Reduced Light Pollution 1 1

TBD C14. Large Stature Tree(s) 1

TBD C15. Third Party Landscape Program Certification 1

TBD C16. Maintenance Contract with Certified Professional 1

D. STRUCTURAL FRAME AND BUILDING ENVELOPE
D1. Optimal Value Engineering

TBD      D1.1 Joists, Rafters, and Studs at 24 Inches on Center 1 2

Yes      D1.2 Non-Load Bearing Door and Window Headers Sized for Load 1 1

TBD      D1.3 Advanced Framing Measures 2

Yes D2. Construction Material Efficiencies 1 1

D3. Engineered Lumber

Yes      D3.1 Engineered Beams and Headers 1 1

Yes      D3.2 Wood I-Joists or Web Trusses for Floors 1 1

TBD      D3.3 Enginered Lumber for Roof Rafters 1

TBD      D3.4 Engineered or Finger-Jointed Studs for Vertical Applications 1

TBD      D3.5 OSB for Subfloor 0.5

TBD      D3.6 OSB for Wall and Roof Sheathing 0.5

Yes D4. Insulated Headers 1 1

Points Achieved:   63
The GreenPoint Rated checklist tracks green features incorporated into the home. GreenPoint Rated is administered by Build It Green, a non-profit 

whose mission is to promote healthy, energy and resource efficient buildings in California.

The minimum requirements of GreenPoint Rated are: verification of 50 or more points; Earn the following minimum points per category: Community 

(2), Energy (25), Indoor Air Quality/Health (6), Resources (6), and Water (6); and meet the prerequisites CALGreen Mandatory, H6.1, J5.1, O1, O7.  

The criteria for the green building practices listed below are described in the GreenPoint Rated Single 

Family Rating Manual. For more information please visit www.builditgreen.org/greenpointrated   

Build It Green is not a code enforcement agency.     

A home is only GreenPoint Rated if all features are verified by a Certified GreenPoint Rater through Build It Green.

Possible Points 

Certification Level:   Certified

15310 SUVIEW DR.

2 

25 

6 6 6 2.0 
9.5 11.0 

27.0 

13.5 

Minimum Points 

Achieved Points 

POINTS REQUIRED 

© Build It Green GreenPoint Rated New Home Single Family Checklist Version 6.0   

Single Family New Home Version 6.0.2
D5. FSC-Certified Wood

TBD      D5.1 Dimensional Lumber, Studs, and Timber 6

TBD      D5.2 Panel Products 3

D6. Solid Wall Systems

TBD      D6.1 At Least 90% of Floors 1

TBD      D6.2 At Least 90% of Exterior Walls 1 1

TBD      D6.3 At Least 90% of Roofs 1 1

TBD D7. Energy Heels on Roof Trusses 1

24 inches D8. Overhangs and Gutters 2 1 1

D9. Reduced Pollution Entering the Home from the Garage

TBD      D9.1 Detached Garage 2

TBD      D9.2 Mitigation Strategies for Attached Garage 1

D10. Structural Pest and Rot Controls

Yes      D10.1 All Wood Located At Least 12 Inches Above the Soil 1 1

TBD
     D10.2 Wood Framing Treated With Borates or Factory-Impregnated, or Wall 

              Materials Other Than Wood 1

Yes
D11. Moisture-Resistant Materials in Wet Areas (such as Kitchen, Bathrooms, 

       Utility Rooms, and Basements) 2 1 1

E. EXTERIOR
TBD E1. Environmentally Preferable Decking 1

TBD E2. Flashing Installation Third-Party Verified 2

TBD E3. Rain Screen Wall System 2

Yes E4. Durable and Non-Combustible Cladding Materials 1 1

E5. Durable Roofing Materials

Yes      E5.1 Durable and Fire Resistant Roofing Materials or Assembly 1 1

TBD E6. Vegetated Roof 2 2

F. INSULATION
F1. Insulation with 30% Post-Consumer or 60% Post-Industrial Recycled Content

TBD      F1.1 Walls and Floors 1

TBD      F1.2 Ceilings 1

F2. Insulation that Meets the CDPH Standard Method—Residential for 

       Low Emissions

TBD      F2.1 Walls and Floors 1

TBD      F2.2 Ceilings 1

F3. Insulation That Does Not Contain Fire Retardants

TBD      F3.1 Cavity Walls and Floors 1

TBD      F3.2 Ceilings 1

TBD      F3.3 Interior and Exterior 1

G. PLUMBING
G1. Efficient Distribution of Domestic Hot Water

Yes      G1.1 Insulated Hot Water Pipes 1 1

TBD      G1.2 WaterSense Volume Limit for Hot Water Distribution 1

TBD      G1.3 Increased Efficiency in Hot Water Distribution 2

G2. Install Water-Efficient Fixtures

Yes      G2.1 WaterSense Showerheads with Matching Compensation Valve 2 2

Yes
     G2.2 WaterSense Bathroom Faucets 1 1

Yes
     G2.3 WaterSense Toilets with a Maximum Performance (MaP) Threshold of No 

              Less Than 500 Grams 1 1

TBD G3. Pre-Plumbing for Graywater System 1

TBD G4. Operational Graywater System 3

H. HEATING, VENTILATION, AND AIR CONDITIONING
H1. Sealed Combustion Units

TBD      H1.1 Sealed Combustion Furnace 1

Yes      H1.2 Sealed Combustion Water Heater 2 2

Yes H2. High Performing Zoned Hydronic Radiant Heating System 2 1 1

H3. Effective Ductwork

TBD      H3.1 Duct Mastic on Duct Joints and Seams 1

TBD      H3.2 Pressure Balance the Ductwork System 1

Yes H4. ENERGY STAR® Bathroom Fans Per HVI Standards with Air Flow Verified 1 1

H5. Advanced Practices for Cooling

TBD      H5.1 ENERGY STAR Ceiling Fans in Living Areas and Bedrooms 1

H6. Whole House Mechanical Ventilation Practices to Improve Indoor Air Quality

Yes      H6.1 Meet ASHRAE 62.2-2010 Ventilation Residential Standards Y R R R R R

TBD      H6.2 Advanced Ventilation Standards 1

TBD      H6.3 Outdoor Air Ducted to Bedroom and Living Areas 2

H7. Effective Range Hood Design and Installation

TBD      H7.1 Effective Range Hood Ducting and Design 1

TBD      H7.2 Automatic Range Hood Control 1

Yes H8. No Fireplace or Sealed Gas Fireplace 1 1

TBD H9. Humidity Control Systems 1

TBD H10. Register Design Per ACCA Manual T 1

Yes H11. High Efficiency HVAC Filter (MERV 8+) 1 1

I. RENEWABLE ENERGY

TBD I1. Pre-Plumbing for Solar Water Heating 1

Yes I2. Preparation for Future Photovoltaic Installation 1 1

0.00% I3. Onsite Renewable Generation (Solar PV, Solar Thermal, and Wind) 0 25

I4. Net Zero Energy Home

TBD      I4.1 Near Zero Energy Home 2

TBD      I4.2 Net Zero Electric 4

© Build It Green GreenPoint Rated New Home Single Family Checklist Version 6.0   

Single Family New Home Version 6.0.2
J. BUILDING PERFORMANCE AND TESTING

TBD J1. Third-Party Verification of Quality of Insulation Installation 1

TBD J2. Supply and Return Air Flow Testing 1 1

TBD J3. Mechanical Ventilation Testing and Low Leakage 1

TBD J4. Combustion Appliance Safety Testing 1

2008 J5. Building Performance Exceeds Title 24 Part 6

0.00%      J5.1 Home Outperforms Title 24 Part 6 0 60

TBD J6. Title 24 Prepared and Signed by a CABEC Certified Energy Analyst 1

TBD J7. Participation in Utility Program with Third-Party Plan Review 1

TBD J8. ENERGY STAR for Homes 1

No J9. EPA Indoor airPlus Certification 0 1

TBD J10. Blower Door Testing 2

K. FINISHES
K1. Entryways Designed to Reduce Tracked-In Contaminants

Yes      K1.1 Individual Entryways 1 1

TBD K2. Zero-VOC Interior Wall and Ceiling Paints 2

Yes K3. Low-VOC Caulks and Adhesives 1 1

K4. Environmentally Preferable Materials for Interior Finish

TBD      K4.1 Cabinets 2

TBD      K4.2 Interior Trim 2

TBD      K4.3 Shelving 2

TBD      K4.4 Doors 2

TBD      K4.5 Countertops 1

K5. Formaldehyde Emissions in Interior Finish Exceed CARB

TBD      K5.1 Doors 1

TBD      K5.2 Cabinets and Countertops 2

TBD      K5.3 Interior Trim and Shelving 2

TBD K6. Products That Comply With the Health Product Declaration Open Standard 2

TBD K7. Indoor Air Formaldehyde Level Less Than 27 Parts Per Billion 2

No K8. Comprehensive Inclusion of Low Emitting Finishes 0 1

L. FLOORING
TBD L1. Environmentally Preferable Flooring 3

TBD L2. Low-Emitting Flooring Meets CDPH 2010 Standard Method—Residential 3

Yes L3. Durable Flooring 1 1

TBD L4. Thermal Mass Flooring 1

M. APPLIANCES AND LIGHTING
Yes M1. ENERGY STAR® Dishwasher 1 1

CEE Tier 2 M2. CEE-Rated Clothes Washer 2 1 2

TBD M3. Size-Efficient ENERGY STAR Refrigerator 2

M4. Permanent Centers for Waste Reduction Strategies

Yes      M4.1 Built-In Recycling Center 1 1

TBD      M4.2 Built-In Composting Center 1

M5. Lighting Efficiency

Yes
     M5.1 High-Efficacy Lighting 2 2

TBD
     M5.2 Lighting System Designed to IESNA Footcandle Standards or Designed by 

              Lighting Consultant 2

N. COMMUNITY
N1. Smart Development

Yes      N1.1 Infill Site 2 1 1

TBD      N1.2 Designated Brownfield Site 1 1

TBD      N1.3 Conserve Resources by Increasing Density 2 2

TBD      N1.4 Cluster Homes for Land Preservation 1 1

     N1.5 Home Size Efficiency 9

          Enter the area of the home, in square feet

          Enter the number of bedrooms

TBD N2. Home(s)/Development Located Within 1/2 Mile of a Major Transit Stop 2

N3. Pedestrian and Bicycle Access

     N3.1 Pedestrian Access to Services Within 1/2 Mile of Community Services 2

          Enter the number of Tier 1 services

          Enter the number of Tier 2 services

TBD      N3.2 Connection to Pedestrian Pathways 1

TBD      N3.3 Traffic Calming Strategies 2

N4. Outdoor Gathering Places

TBD      N4.1 Public or Semi-Public Outdoor Gathering Places for Residents 1

TBD
     N4.2 Public Outdoor Gathering Places with Direct Access to Tier 1 Community 

              Services 1

N5. Social Interaction

TBD      N5.1 Residence Entries with Views to Callers 1

TBD      N5.2 Entrances Visible from Street and/or Other Front Doors 1

TBD      N5.3 Porches Oriented to Street and Public Space 1

TBD      N5.4 Social Gathering Space 1

N6. Passive Solar Design

TBD      N6.1 Heating Load 2

TBD      N6.2 Cooling Load 2

N7. Adaptable Building

TBD      N7.1 Universal Design Principles in Units 1 1

TBD      N7.2 Full-Function Independent Rental Unit 1

O. OTHER
Yes O1. GreenPoint Rated Checklist in Blueprints Y R R R R R

Yes O2. Pre-Construction Kickoff Meeting with Rater and Subcontractors 2 0.5 1 0.5

TBD O3. Orientation and Training to Occupants—Conduct Educational Walkthroughs 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

TBD
O4. Builder's or Developer's Management Staff are Certified Green Building 

       Professionals 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

TBD O5. Home System Monitors 1 1

O6. Green Building Education

TBD      O6.1 Marketing Green Building 2

TBD      O6.2 Green Building Signage 0.5 0.5

Yes O7. Green Appraisal Addendum Y R R R R R

TBD O8. Detailed Durability Plan and Third-Party Verification of Plan Implementation 1

Summary

Total Available Points in Specific Categories
342 26 131 54 83 48

Minimum Points Required in Specific Categories
50 2 25 6 6 6

Total Points Achieved
63.0 2.0 9.5 11.0 27.0 13.5

© Build It Green GreenPoint Rated New Home Single Family Checklist Version 6.0   

GREEN POINTS RATING CHECKLIST

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

GPR

SUVIEW

Page 79



NOT TO SCALE

NW BIRDS EYE 3D VIEW
NOT TO SCALE

SW BIRDS EYE 3D VIEW

NOT TO SCALE

SE BIRDS EYE 3D VIEW
NOT TO SCALE

NE BIRDS EYE 3D VIEW

3D VIEWS
SCALE: NTS

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

SUVIEW

Page 80



3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 9 5136

(408 ) 26 6 -34 42
w w w .camargo .c o m

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

V
IS

IB
IL

IT
Y

 S
TU

D
Y

 R
EP

O
R

T

3953 Yolo Drive  ·  San Jose, California 95136   ·   Office (408) 266-3442   ·   Facsimile (408) 266-7560 

Exhibit 1: Town of Los Gatos Hillside Area Viewing Map.      

The orange circled area represents the Viewing area at the Southwest Corner      

of Blossom Hill Road and Los Gatos Boulevard where the property in      

question is visible. The red circle represents the property.          

            

 
 

Exhibit 2: Viewing area Blossom Hill Road and Los Gatos Boulevard. 

 The red circled area represents a 500ft radius from the 

 Southwest corner of Blossom Hill Road and Los Gatos Boulevard. 

Points A, B, and C, represent areas from where the existing house 

is visible. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

A 

B 
C 

SITE LOCATION

VIEWING PLATFORM

500 FT

LINE OF SIGHT

The existing home is currently visible from the view platform
located at Blossom Hill Road and Los Gatos Boulevard where

the house if visible in its entirety. The new home will be located
towards the north side of the property which reduces vicibility

by 30% of surface area.

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 9 5 1 3 6

(4 0 8 ) 2 6 6 -3 4 4 2
w w w .camargo .c o m

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

V
IS

IB
IL

IT
Y

 S
TU

D
Y

 R
EP

O
R

T

3953 Yolo Drive  ·  San Jose, California 95136   ·   Office (408) 266-3442   ·   Facsimile (408) 266-7560 

Exhibit 3 : Property as viewed from point of reference A.  

 

Fig. 1 : Existing house at 50mm range     Fig. 2 : Existing house at 300mm range. 
 

   
   

Fig. 3 :Profile of proposed home at 50mm range    Fig. 4 :Profile of proposed home at 300mm range. 
 

   

Exhibit 4 : Property as viewed from point of reference B. 

EXISTING TREES SCREENING
SCREENING HOME.

EXISTING TREES SCREENING
SCREENING HOME.

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 9 5 1 3 6

(4 0 8 ) 2 6 6 -3 4 4 2
w w w .camargo .c o m

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

V
IS

IB
IL

IT
Y

 S
TU

D
Y

 R
EP

O
R

T

3953 Yolo Drive  ·  San Jose, California 95136   ·   Office (408) 266-3442   ·   Facsimile (408) 266-7560 

 

Fig. 1 : Existing home at 50mm range.      Fig. 2 : Existing home at 300mm range. 
 

                         
 

Fig. 3 : Profile of proposed home at 50mm range.    Fig. 4 : Profile of proposed home at 300mm range. 
 

                                    
   

 

Exhibit 5 : Existing house as viewed from point of reference C. 

EXISTING TREES SCREENING
SCREENING HOME.

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 9 5136

(408 ) 26 6 -34 42
w w w .camargo .c o m

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

V
IS

IB
IL

IT
Y

 S
TU

D
Y

 R
EP

O
R

T

3953 Yolo Drive  ·  San Jose, California 95136   ·   Office (408) 266-3442   ·   Facsimile (408) 266-7560 

 

Fig. 1 : Existing house at 50mm range.      Fig. 2 : Existing house at 300mm range. 
 

  \ 

 

Fig. 3 : Profile of proposed home at 50mm range.    Fig. 4 : Profile of proposed home at 300mm range. 

 

   
 

EXISTING TREES SCREENING
SCREENING HOME.

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 9 5 1 3 6

(4 0 8 ) 2 6 6 -3 4 4 2
w w w .camargo .c o m

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

V
IS

IB
IL

IT
Y

 S
TU

D
Y

 R
EP

O
R

T

RIDGELINE OF
NEIGHBOOR
HOME BEYOND
CUT PLANE

RIDGELINE OF
NEIGHBOOR
HOME BEYOND
CUT PLANE

LOCATION OF
EXISTING DRIVEWAY
EASEMENT

AUXILIARY
STRUCTURE
BEYOND CUT
 PLANE

LOCATION OF
EXISTING ACCESS

ROAD TO PROPERTY

EXISTING
AUXILIARY
STRUCTURE
RIDGE HT
@781'

EXISTING
HOME RIDGE
@782'

AREA OF NEIGHBOOR
HOME BEYOND
THROUGH
SECTION CUT

PROFILE OF
PROPOSED HOME

TOP OF PP.
@781'

NEW ROOF
RIDGE. @
783'

TOP OF PP.
@779'

ROOF
RIDGE.
@778'

15310 SUVIEW DR
WITH PROPOSED

HOME

PROPERTY LINE

NEW CONC. RET.
WALL TO REPLACE EXIST.
WOOD RET. WALL

FIN. FLOOR OF
EXISTING

HOME @768'
FIN. SLAB OF

EXISTING CONC.
PATIO @766'

FIN. FLOOR OF
PROPOSED

HOME @765'FIN. FLOOR OF
PROPOSED

GARAGE LVL
@761'

RIDGELINE OF
NEIGHBOOR

HOME BEYOND
CUT PLANE

AREA OF NEIGHBOOR
HOME BEYOND
THROUGH
SECTION CUT

LOCATION OF
EXISTING ACCESS
ROAD TO PROPERTY

LOCATION OF
PROPOSED DRIVEWAY
THROUGH EASEMENT

PROPOSED HOME BEYOND
CUT PLANE ROOF RIDGE
@783'

PROPOSED HOME GARAGE
BEYOND CUTPLANE, ROOF RIDGE

@778'

EXISTING
HOME RIDGE

@782'

EXISTING HOME BEYOND
CUT PLANE

EXISTING TWO STORY
HOME BELLOW 15310

SUVIEW

FIN. FLOOR OF
EXISTING

HOME @768'FIN. FLOOR OF
PROPOSED

HOME @765' FIN. FLOOR OF
PROPOSED

GARAGE LVL
@761'

FIN. SLAB OF
EXISTING CONC.

PATIO @766'

SECTION A
SECTION CUT TAKEN FOLLOWING
THE RIDGELINE OF EXISTING HOME

ALL ELEVATIONS HEIGHTS AND
DISTANCES ABOVE AND BELLOW THE
PROPERTY LINES WERE ACQUIRED
FROM GOOGLE EARTH.

SECTION B
SECTION CUT TAKEN
PERPENDICULAR TO SECTION A
THROUGH DRIVEWAY EASEMENT

VIEW POINT A VIEW POINT B VIEW POINT C

SITE SECTIONS / VISIVILITY ANALYSIS

3953  Yolo Drive
San Jose , C A . 95136

(408 ) 266 -3442
w w w .camargo .c o m

Date

Project

Drawn

Sheet

V
E

R
G

A
R

A
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
ri

ve
   

•  
  L

os
 G

at
os

   
 • 

  C
al

ifo
rn

ia

1/6/2020

FRANCISCO TORRES

V-001

SUVIEW

Page 81



VICINITY MAP

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
VE

RG
AR

A 
- 1

53
10

 S
U

VI
EW

 R
O

AD
TO

W
N

 N
O

TE
S,

 P
RO

JE
CT

 D
AT

A,
 L

EG
EN

D 
&

 A
BB

RE
VI

AT
IO

N
S

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RE

 A
N

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
02

5

JA
N

U
AR

Y 
13

, 2
02

0

AM XX AMTM

AS
 S

HO
W

N

16
07

5

SHEET INDEX
1. TOWN NOTES, PROJECT DATA, LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS
2. BLUEPRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY SHEET
3. EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY AND DEMOLITION PLAN
4. SITE PLAN
5. GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN
6. OFFSITE SEWER CONNECTION, SECTIONS & DETAILS
7. EROSION CONTROL PLAN

TOTAL SITE AREA:
____________ SF

TOTAL SITE AREA DISTURBED: ____________ SF
(INCLUDING CLEARING, GRADING OR EXCAVATING)

EXISTING
AREA (SF)

PROPOSED AREA (SF)
REPLACED NEW

TOTAL AREA
POST-PROJECT (SF)

IMPERVIOUS AREA
TOTAL NEW & REPLACED IMPERVIOUS AREA
PERVIOUS AREA

TABLE OF PROPOSED PERVIOUS AND IMPERVIOUS AREAS

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1

9
1

0

AP
N

 5
37

-2
4-

02
4

GR
AD

IN
G 

AN
D 

DR
AI

N
AG

E 
PL

AN
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

BY
DA

TE

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

SC
AL

E:

EN
GR

:

CH
EC

K:

DR
AW

N
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DA
TE

:

TOWN OF LOS GATOS STANDARD GRADING NOTES

1. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO CHAPTER 12 OF THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS,
THE ADOPTED CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE AND THE LATEST EDITION OF THE STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION EXCEPT AS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE
ON THESE PLANS AND DETAILS.

2. NO WORK MAY BE STARTED ON-SITE WITHOUT AN APPROVED GRADING PLAN AND A
GRADING PERMIT ISSUED BY THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS, PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS
DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 41 MILES AVENUE, LOS GATOS, CA 95030.

3. A PRE-JOB MEETING SHALL BE HELD WITH THE TOWN ENGINEERING INSPECTOR FROM
THE PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO ANY WORK BEING DONE.  THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL THE INSPECTIONS LINE AT (4080 399-5771 AT LEAST
FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO ANY GRADING OR ONSITE WORK.  THIS MEETING
SHOULD INCLUDE:
a. A DISCUSSION OF THE PROJECT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, WORKING HOURS, SITE

MAINTENANCE AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION MATTERS;
b. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT IN WRITING THAT CONTRACTOR AND APPLICANT HAVE READ

AND UNDERSTAND THE PROJECT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, AND WILL MAKE
CERTAIN THAT ALL PROJECT SUB-CONTRACTORS HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND
THEM PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK AND THAT A COPY OF THE PROJECT
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL WILL BE POSTED ON SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

4. APPROVAL OF PLANS DOES NOT RELEASE THE DEVELOPER OF THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CORRECTION OF MISTAKES, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS CONTAINED THEREIN.  IF,
DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS, PUBLIC INTEREST
AND SAFETY REQUIRES A MODIFICATION OR DEPARTURE FROM THE TOWN
SPECIFICATIONS OR THESE IMPROVEMENT PLANS, THE TOWN ENGINEER SHALL HAVE
FULL AUTHORITY TO REQUIRE SUCH MODIFICATION OR DEPARTURE AND TO SPECIFY THE
MANNER IN WHICH THE SAME IS TO BE MADE.

5. APPROVAL OF THIS PLAN APPLIES ONLY TO THE GRADING, EXCAVATION, PLACEMENT,
AND COMPACTION OF NATURAL EARTH MATERIALS.  THIS APPROVAL DOES NOT CONFER
ANY RIGHTS OF ENTRY TO EITHER PUBLIC PROPERTY OR THE PRIVATE PROPERTY OF
OTHERS AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL OF ANY OTHER IMPROVEMENTS.

6. EXCAVATED MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED IN THE FILL AREAS DESIGNATED OR SHALL BE
HAULED AWAY FROM THE SITE TO BE DISPOSED OF AT APPROVED LOCATION(S).

7. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PERMITTEE OR CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY,
LOCATE AND PROTECT ALL UNDERGROUND FACILITIES.  PERMITTEE OR CONTRACTOR
SHALL NOTIFY USA (UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT) AT 1-800-227-2600 A MINIMUM OF
FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS BUT NOT MORE THAN FOURTEEN (14) DAYS PRIOR TO
COMMENCING ALL WORK.

8. ALL GRADING SHALL BE PERFORMED IN SUCH A MANNER AS TO COMPLY WITH THE
STANDARDS ESTABLISHED BY THE AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT FOR AIRBORNE
PARTICULATES.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS, CODES,
RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE WORK IDENTIFIED ON THESE PLANS.  THESE
SHALL INCLUDE, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SAFETY AND HEALTH RULES AND REGULATIONS
ESTABLISHED BY OR PURSUANT TO THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OR
ANY OTHER APPLICABLE PUBLIC AUTHORITY.

10. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE QUALIFIED SUPERVISION ON THE JOB SITE
AT ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION.

11. HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL CONTROLS SHALL BE SET AND CERTIFIED BY A LICENSED
SURVEYOR OR REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER QUALIFIED TO PRACTICE LAND SURVEYING,
FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:
a. RETAINING WALL: TOP OF WALL ELEVATIONS AND LOCATIONS (ALL WALLS TO BE

PERMITTED SEPARATELY AND APPLIED FOR AT THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS BUILDING
DIVISION).

b. TOE AND TOP OF CUT AND FILL SLOPES.

12. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT, THE APPLICANT'S SOILS ENGINEER SHALL REVIEW
THE FINAL GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLANS TO ENSURE THAT DESIGNS FOR
FOUNDATIONS, RETAINING WALLS, SITE GRADING, AND SITE DRAINAGE ARE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR RECOMMENDATIONS AND THE PEER REVIEW COMMENTS.
THE APPLICANT'S SOILS ENGINEER'S APPROVAL SHALL THEN BE CONVEYED TO THE
TOWN EITHER BY LETTER OR BY SIGNING THE PLANS.
SOILS ENGINEER ___________________________________________________
REFERENCE REPORT NO. __________________, DATED ____________, 20 ______
LETTER NO. __________, DATED ____________, 20 ___, SHALL BE THOROUGHLY
COMPLIED WITH. BOTH THE MENTIONED REPORT AND ALL UPDATES/ADDENDUMS/
LETTERS ARE HEREBY APPENDED AND MADE A PART OF THIS GRADING PLAN.

13. DURING CONSTRUCTION, ALL EXCAVATIONS AND GRADING SHALL BE INSPECTED BY THE
APPLICANT'S SOILS ENGINEER.  THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED AT LEAST
FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS BEFORE BEGINNING ANY GRADING.  THE ENGINEER SHALL BE
ON-SITE TO VERIFY THAT THE ACTUAL CONDITIONS ARE AS ANTICIPATED IN THE
DESIGN-LEVEL GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND/OR PROVIDE APPROPRIATE CHANGES TO
THE REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS, AS NECESSARY.  ALL UNOBSERVED AND/OR
UNAPPROVED GRADING SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED UNDER SOILS ENGINEER
OBSERVANCE (THE TOWN INSPECTOR SHALL BE MADE AWARE OF ANY REQUIRED
CHANGES PRIOR TO WORK BEING PERFORMED).

14. THE RESULTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION AND TESTING SHOULD BE
DOCUMENTED IN AN “AS-BUILT” LETTER/REPORT PREPARED BY THE APPLICANTS' SOILS
ENGINEER AND SUBMITTED FOR THE TOWN'S REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE BEFORE FINAL
RELEASE OF ANY OCCUPANCY PERMIT IS GRANTED.

15. ALL PRIVATE AND PUBLIC STREETS ACCESSING PROJECT SITE SHALL BE KEPT OPEN AND IN
A SAFE, DRIVABLE CONDITION THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION. IF TEMPORARY CLOSURE
IS NEEDED, THEN FORMAL WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE ADJACENT NEIGHBORS AND THE
TOWN OF LOS GATOS PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED AT
LEAST ONE (1) WEEK IN ADVANCE OF CLOSURE AND NO CLOSURE SHALL BE GRANTED
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE TOWN.  NO MATERIAL OR
EQUIPMENT SHALL BE STORED IN THE PUBLIC OR PRIVATE RIGHT-OF-WAY.

16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL AND MAINTAIN FENCES, BARRIERS, LIGHTS AND SIGNS
THAT ARE NECESSARY TO GIVE ADEQUATE WARNING AND/PROTECTION TO THE PUBLIC
AT ALL TIMES.

17. OWNER/APPLICANT: JIM VERGARA PHONE: 408 640-4291

18. GENERAL CONTRACTOR: ________________________ PHONE: ______________

19. GRADING CONTRACTOR: ________________________ PHONE: ______________

20. CUT: ±2,489 CY      EXPORT: ±2,485 CY
FILL: ±4 CY

21. WATER SHALL BE AVAILABLE ON THE SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING GRADING OPERATIONS
TO PROPERLY MAINTAIN DUST CONTROL.

22. THIS PLAN DOES NOT APPROVE THE REMOVAL OF TREES.  APPROPRIATE TREE REMOVAL
PERMITS AND METHODS OF TREE PRESERVATION SHALL BE REQUIRED.  TREE REMOVAL
PERMITS ARE REQUIRED PRIOR TO THE APPROVAL OF ALL PLANS.

23. A TOWN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT IS REQUIRED FOR ANY WORK WITHIN THE PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAY. A STATE ENCROACHMENT PERMIT IS REQUIRED FOR ANY WORK WITHIN
STATE RIGHT-OF-WAY (IF APPLICABLE). THE PERMITTEE AND/OR CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE COORDINATING INSPECTION PERFORMED BY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCIES.

24. NO CROSS-LOT DRAINAGE WILL BE PERMITTED WITHOUT SATISFACTORY STORMWATER
ACCEPTANCE DEED/FACILITIES.  ALL DRAINAGE SHALL BE DIRECTED TO THE STREET OR
OTHER ACCEPTABLE DRAINAGE FACILITY VIA A NON-EROSIVE METHOD AS APPROVED BY
THE TOWN ENGINEER.

25. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR AND/OR OWNER TO MAKE SURE THAT ALL
DIRT TRACKED INTO THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IS CLEANED UP ON A DAILY BASIS.  MUD,
SILT, CONCRETE AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SHALL NOT BE WASHED INTO THE
TOWN'S STORM DRAINS.

26. GOOD HOUSEKEEPING PRACTICES SHALL BE OBSERVED AT ALL TIMES DURING THE
COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION.  SUPERINTENDENCE OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
DILIGENTLY PERFORMED BY A PERSON OR PERSONS AUTHORIZED TO DO SO AT ALL
TIMES DURING WORKING HOURS.  THE STORING OF GOODS AND/OR MATERIALS ON THE
SIDEWALK AND/OR THE STREET WILL NOT BE ALLOWED UNLESS A SPECIAL PERMIT IS
ISSUED BY THE ENGINEERING DIVISION.  THE ADJACENT PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE
KEPT CLEAR OF ALL JOB RELATED DIRT AND DEBRIS AT THE END OF THE DAY.  FAILURE TO
MAINTAIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ACCORDING TO THIS CONDITION MAY RESULT IN
PENALTIES AND/OR THE TOWN PERFORMING THE REQUIRED MAINTENANCE AT THE
DEVELOPER'S EXPENSE.

27. GRADING SHALL BE UNDERTAKEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH CONDITIONS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROJECT STORM WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN AND/OR
STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS
STORM WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM, NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE
ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) AND ANY OTHER PERMITS/REQUIREMENTS ISSUED BY
THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD.  PLANS
(INCLUDING ALL UPDATES) SHALL BE ON-SITE AT ALL TIMES.  NO DIRECT STORMWATER
DISCHARGES FROM THE DEVELOPMENT WILL BE ALLOWED ONTO TOWN STREETS OR
INTO THE PUBLIC STORM DRAIN SYSTEM WITHOUT TREATMENT BY AN APPROVED
STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION DEVICE OR OTHER APPROVED METHODS.
MAINTENANCE OF PRIVATE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION DEVICES SHALL BE
THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.  DISCHARGES OR CONNECTION WITHOUT
TREATMENT BY AN APPROVED AND ADEQUATELY OPERATING STORMWATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION DEVICE OR OTHER APPROVED METHOD SHALL BE CONSIDERED A
VIOLATION OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED PERMIT AND THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS
STORMWATER ORDINANCE.

TOWN OF LOS GATOS NPDES NOTES

1. SEDIMENT FROM AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE RETAINED ON SITE
USING STRUCTURAL CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY THE STATEWIDE GENERAL
CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER PERMIT.

2. STOCKPILES OF SOIL SHALL BE PROPERLY CONTAINED TO MINIMIZE SEDIMENT
TRANSPORT FROM THE SITE TO STREETS, DRAINAGE FACILITIES OR ADJACENT
PROPERTIES VIA RUNOFF, VEHICLE TRACKING, OR WIND AS REQUIRED BY THE
STATEWIDE GENERAL CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER PERMIT.

3. APPROPRIATE BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) FOR CONSTRUCTION-RELATED
MATERIALS, WASTES, SPILL OR RESIDES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED TO MINIMIZE
TRANSPORT FROM THE SITE TO STREETS, DRAINAGE FACILITIES, OR ADJOINING
PROPERTY BY WIND OR RUNOFF AS REQUIRED BY THE STATEWIDE GENERAL
CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER PERMIT.

4. RUNOFF FROM EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE WASHING SHALL BE CONTAINED AT
CONSTRUCTION SITES AND MUST NOT BE DISCHARGED TO RECEIVING WATERS OR TO
THE LOCAL STORM DRAIN SYSTEM.

5. ALL CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTOR PERSONNEL ARE TO BE MADE
AWARE OF THE REQUIRED BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) AND GOOD
HOUSEKEEPING MEASURES FOR THE PROJECT SITE AND ANY ASSOCIATED
CONSTRUCTION STAGING AREAS.

6. AT THE END OF EACH DAY OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY, ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS
AND WASTE MATERIALS SHALL BE COLLECTED AND PROPERLY DISPOSED IN TRASH OR
RECYCLE BINS.

7. CONSTRUCTION SITES SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN SUCH A CONDITION THAT A STORM
DOES NOT CARRY WASTE OR POLLUTANTS OFF OF THE SITE. DISCHARGES OF MATERIAL
OTHER THAN STORMWATER (NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES) ARE PROHIBITED EXCEPT
AS AUTHORIZED BY AN INDIVIDUAL NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION
SYSTEM (NPDES) PERMIT OR THE STATEWIDE GENERAL CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER
PERMIT.  POTENTIAL POLLUTANTS INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO: SOLID OR LIQUID
CHEMICAL SPILLS; WASTES FROM PAINTS, STAINS, SEALANTS, SOLVENTS, DETERGENTS,
GLUES, LIME, PESTICIDES, HERBICIDES, FERTILIZERS, WOOD PRESERVATIVES AND
ASBESTOS FIBERS, PAINT FLAKES OR STUCCO FRAGMENTS; FUELS, OILS, LUBRICANTS,
AND HYDRAULIC, RADIATOR OR BATTERY FLUIDS; CONCRETE AND RELATED CUTTING OR
CURING RESIDUES; FLOATABLE WASTES; WASTES FROM ENGINE/EQUIPMENT STEAM
CLEANING OR CHEMICAL DEGREASING; WASTES FROM STREET CLEANING; AND
SUPERCHLORINATED POTABLE WATER FROM LINE FLUSHING AND TESTING.  DURING
CONSTRUCTION, DISPOSAL OF SUCH MATERIALS SHOULD OCCUR IN A SPECIFIED AND
CONTROLLED TEMPORARY AREA ON-SITE PHYSICALLY SEPARATED FROM POTENTIAL
STORMWATER RUNOFF, WITH ULTIMATE DISPOSAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE
AND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS.

8. DISCHARGING CONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER PRODUCED BY DEWATERING
GROUNDWATER THAT HAS INFILTRATED INTO THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IS PROHIBITED.
DISCHARGING OF CONTAMINATED SOILS VIA SURFACE EROSION IS ALSO PROHIBITED.
DISCHARGING NON-CONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER PRODUCED BY DEWATERING
ACTIVITIES REQUIRES A NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM
(NPDES) PERMIT FROM THE RESPECTIVE STATE REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL
BOARD.

15310 SUVIEW ROAD, LOS GATOS, CA 95032
GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLANS

ARCHITECTURE AND SITE APPLICATION NO. S-19-025

AB AGGREGATE BASE
AC ASPHALT CONCRETE
AD AREA DRAIN
ARV AIR RELEASE VALVE
BC BACK OF CURB
BFP BACKFLOW PREVENTER
BW BOTTOM OF WALL
CATV CABLE TELEVISION
CB CATCH BASIN
CFS CUBIC FEET PER SECOND
C/L CENTERLINE
CMP CORRUGATED METAL PIPE
CO CLEANOUT
CY CUBIC YARD
DCVA DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY
DI DROP INLET
DIA DIAMETER
DIP DUCTILE IRON PIPE
DWY DRIVEWAY
(E) EAST
EG EXISTING GRADE
ELEC ELECTRICAL
EP EDGE OF PATH
EVAE EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS EASEMENT
EX EXISTING
FC FACE OF CURB
FDC FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION
FF FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION
FG FINISHED GRADE
FH FIRE HYDRANT
FL FLOW LINE
FM FORCED MAIN
FS FIRE SERVICE
FT FEET

G GAS
GA GAUGE
GB GRADE BREAK
GM GAS METER
GS GAS SERVICE
HDPE HIGH-DENSITY POLYETHYLENE
HP HIGH POINT
IEE INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT
IN INCH
INV INVERT ELEVATION
LAT LATERAL
LG LIP OF GUTTER
LP LOW POINT
MAX MAXIMUM
MH MANHOLE
MIN MINIMUM
MPH MILES PER HOUR
(N) NORTH
N.T.S. NOT TO SCALE
O.C. ON CENTER
O.D. OUTSIDE DIAMETER
PAD PAD ELEVATION
PCC PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
PERF PERFORATED
PG&E PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
PIEE PRIVATE INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT
PL PROPERTY LINE
PR PROPOSED
PSDE PRIVATE STORM DRAIN EASEMENT
PSE PUBLIC SERVICE EASEMENT
PSSE PRIVATE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
PUE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
R RADIUS

RCP REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
RIM RIM ELEVATION
R/W RIGHT-OF-WAY
(S) SOUTH
S SLOPE
SCC SANTA CLARA COUNTY
SCCFD SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT
SD STORM DRAIN
SDCO STORM DRAIN CLEANOUT
SDE STORM DRAIN EASEMENT
SDMH STORM DRAIN MANHOLE
SDR STANDARD DIMENSION RATIO
SF SQUARE FEET
SJWC SAN JOSE WATER COMPANY
SS SANITARY SEWER
SSCO SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT
SSE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
SSMH SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
STD STANDARD
S/W SIDEWALK
TC TOP OF CURB
TELE TELEPHONE
TLG TOWN OF LOS GATOS
TW TOP OF WALL
TYP TYPICAL
VCP VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE
(W) WEST
W WATER
WM WATER METER
WS WATER SERVICE
WV WATER VALVE
WVSD WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT
XING CROSSING

ABBREVIATIONS

HOUSE FOOTPRINT

CUT (CY) MAX CUT
HEIGHT (FT) FILL (CY) MAX FILL

DEPTH (FT) EXPORT (CY)

ATTACHED GARAGE
ACCESSORY BUILDING
POOL
DRIVEWAY / ACCESS
LANDSCAPE / OUTDOOR

CELLAR

AREA DESCRIPTION

TABLE OF PROPOSED EARTHWORK QUANTITIES

TOTAL

ASSESSORS PARCEL NO. 537-24-024
GENERAL NOTES

1. PROPERTY ADDRESS: 15310 SUVIEW ROAD

2. PROPERTY OWNER: VERGARA

3. ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER: 537-24-024

4. EXISTING USE: HILLSIDE RESIDENTIAL

5. EXISTING ZONING: HR-2 1/2

6. PROPOSED USE: HILLSIDE RESIDENTIAL

7. PROPOSED ZONING: HR-2 1/2

8. SITE AREA: 112,896 SQ. FT. / 2.59 ACRES

9. APPLICANT/DEVELOPER: VERGARA

10. CONSULTANTS:

11. WATER SUPPLY: SAN JOSE WATER COMPANY

12. SANITARY SEWER DISPOSAL:  ONSITE SEPTIC SYSTEM

13. GAS AND ELECTRIC: PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC

14. TELEPHONE: FRONTIER

15. CABLE:

16. STORM DRAIN: TOWN OF LOS GATOS

17. FIRE PROTECTION: SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT

18. DATUM: NAVD88 (GPS)

19. BASIS OF BEARINGS: THE BEARINGS AND DISTANCES ARE BASED ON THE MONUMENTS
FOUND AS RECORDED ON THE PARCEL MAP IN BOOK 362 OF MAPS AT PAGE 40 ON
OCTOBER 15th, 1975.

20. BENCHMARK INFORMATION: TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY BENCHMARK ELEVATION BY GPS

7SHEET           OF     1

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: SEPT. 2016

±811

±224

±380
±299
±775
±2,489

±3.1

±4.7

±13.7
±4.5
±3.6 ±4 ±2.7

±4 ±2,485

HB JOB NO. 16075
Page 82



REV.: SEPT. 2016

7SHEET           OF     2

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

BY
DA

TE

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

SC
AL

E:

EN
GR

:

CH
EC

K:

DR
AW

N
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DA
TE

:
O

CT
O

BE
R 

31
, 2

01
9

AM XX AMTMN
O

N
E

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

16
07

5

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
VE

RG
AR

A 
- 1

53
10

 S
U

VI
EW

 R
O

AD
BL

U
EP

RI
N

T 
FO

R 
A 

CL
EA

N
 B

AY
AR

CH
IT

EC
TU

RE
 A

N
D 

SI
TE

 A
PP

LI
CA

TI
O

N
 N

O
. S

-1
9-

02
5

AP
N

 5
37

-2
4-

02
4

C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 
U

N
T

T
I

E
S

T
.
 
1

9
1

0

HB JOB NO. 16075Page 83



C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1

9
1

0

3SHEET           OF     7

16
07

5

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

O
CT

O
BE

R 
31

, 2
01

9
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
VE

RG
AR

A 
- 1

53
10

 S
U

VI
EW

 R
O

AD
EX

IS
TI

N
G 

TO
PO

GR
AP

HY
 M

AP
AR

CH
IT

EC
TU

RE
 A

N
D 

SI
TE

 A
PP

LI
CA

TI
O

N
 N

O
. S

-1
9-

02
5

AP
N

 5
37

-2
4-

02
4

HB JOB NO. 16075Page 84



C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1

9
1

0

4SHEET           OF     7

16
07

5

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

O
CT

O
BE

R 
31

, 2
01

9
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
VE

RG
AR

A 
- 1

53
10

 S
U

VI
EW

 R
O

AD
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RE

 A
N

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
02

5
AP

N
 5

37
-2

4-
02

4

HB JOB NO. 16075
Page 85



C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1

9
1

0

5SHEET           OF     7

16
07

5

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

O
CT

O
BE

R 
31

, 2
01

9
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
VE

RG
AR

A 
- 1

53
10

 S
U

VI
EW

 R
O

AD
GR

AD
IN

G 
&

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
PL

AN
AR

CH
IT

EC
TU

RE
 A

N
D 

SI
TE

 A
PP

LI
CA

TI
O

N
 N

O
. S

-1
9-

02
5

AP
N

 5
37

-2
4-

02
4

MATCH LINE
SEE SHEET 6

MATCH LINE
SEE SHEET 6

HB JOB NO. 16075Page 86



C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1

9
1

0

6SHEET           OF     7

16
07

5

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

O
CT

O
BE

R 
31

, 2
01

9
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
VE

RG
AR

A 
- 1

53
10

 S
U

VI
EW

 R
O

AD

SE
CT

IO
N

S 
&

 D
ET

AI
LS

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RE

 A
N

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
02

5
AP

N
 5

37
-2

4-
02

4

SEE SHEET 5
MATCH LINESEE SHEET 5

MATCH LINE

O
FF

SI
TE

 S
EW

ER
 C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
,

HB JOB NO. 16075Page 87



C
I
V

I
L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S

H
A

N
N

A
-
B

 U
N

T
T

I

E
S

T
.
 
1

9
1

0

7SHEET           OF     7

16
07

5

AS
 S

HO
W

N

TM AMXXAM

O
CT

O
BE

R 
31

, 2
01

9
DA

TE
:

DE
SI

GN
:

DR
AW

N
:

CH
EC

K:

EN
GR

:

SC
AL

E:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:

DA
TE

BY
RE

VI
SI

O
N

S

TO
W

N
 O

F 
LO

S 
GA

TO
S

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 A

GR
EE

S T
HA

T H
E S

HA
LL

 A
SS

UM
E S

OL
E A

ND
 CO

M
PL

ET
E R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 FO
R J

OB
 SI

TE
 CO

ND
ITI

ON
S D

UR
IN

G 
TH

E C
OU

RS
E O

F C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
OF

 TH
IS 

PR
OJ

EC
T, 

IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F A

LL
 PE

RS
ON

S A
ND

 PR
OP

ER
TY

; T
HA

T T
HI

S R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

T S
HA

LL
 A

PP
LY

 CO
NT

IN
UO

US
LY

 A
ND

 N
OT

 BE
 LI

M
ITE

D 
TO

 N
OR

M
AL

 W
OR

KIN
G 

HO
UR

S;
AN

D 
TH

AT
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R S

HA
LL

 D
EF

EN
D,

 IN
DE

M
NI

FY
 A

ND
 H

OL
D 

TH
E O

W
NE

R A
ND

 TH
E E

NG
IN

EE
R H

AR
M

LE
SS

 FR
OM

 A
NY

 A
ND

 A
LL

 LI
AB

ILI
TY

, R
EA

L O
R A

LL
EG

ED
, IN

 CO
NN

EC
TIO

N 
 W

ITH
 TH

E P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F W

OR
K O

N 
TH

IS 
PR

OJ
EC

T, 
EX

CE
PT

IN
G 

FO
R L

IA
BI

LIT
Y A

RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 TH

E S
OL

E N
EG

LIG
EN

CE
 O

F T
HE

 O
W

NE
R O

R T
HE

 EN
GI

NE
ER

.

REV.: DEC. 2015

PL
AN

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

O
F

LA
N

DS
 O

F 
VE

RG
AR

A 
- 1

53
10

 S
U

VI
EW

 R
O

AD
ER

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
AN

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RE

 A
N

D 
SI

TE
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
O

. S
-1

9-
02

5
AP

N
 5

37
-2

4-
02

4

HB JOB NO. 16075
Page 88



FF 766'-0"

SUVIEW RD

COURT

MAIN HOUSE

POOL
910 SF

FRONT
PORCH

ENTRY
PORCH

(E) Play Equiptment

(E) Path of Pavers

(E)

Oak Tree

BARK
MULCH

(E) Wallnut to be

Removed

(E) GRASS HILLSIDE
TO REMAIN

UNDISTURBED

(E)
Concrete

Wood Fence

Ret. Wall

GARAGE

Driveway

ARTIFICIAL
TURF

Ret. Wall

Proposed

Propane Tank Location

Ret. Wall

COVERED
PATIO

POOL
PATIO

LAWN

Existing Redwoods

Proposed

Water Tank

(E) Septic

Tanks

30' Offset

from house

30' Offset

from house

30' Offset

from house

30' Offset

from house

BARK
MULCH

ARTIFICIAL
TURF

(1) Japanese Maple

(1) Fruitless Olive

(5) Boxleaf Euonymus

(8) Native P.C. Iris

(3) Trailing Lantana

(5) Creeping Mahonia

(2) Mexican Sage

(6) Western Columbine

(4) Western Columbine

(7) Manzanita uva-ursi

(5) Manzanita uva-ursi

(4) Waverly Sage

(7) Trailing Lantana

(4) Diosma `G. S.`

(1) Mexican Sage

(12) Hidcote Lavender

(1) Rosemary

(6) Rosemary

(24) Autumn Sage

(6) Diosma `G. S.`

(10) Trailing Lantana

(12) Waverly Sage

(10) Manzanita uva-ursi

(2) Mexican Sage

(4) Toyon

(22) Dwarf Rosemary

TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE QTY

Acer palmatum Japanese Maple 24" 1

Olea europaea `Fruitless` Fruitless Olive 24"box 1

SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE QTY

Coleonema pulchrum `Sunset Gold` Diosma `G. S.` 1 gal 10

Euonymus japonicus `Microphylla` Boxleaf Euonymus 5 gal. 5

Heteromeles arbutifolia Toyon 5 gal. 3

Lantana montevidensis Trailing Lantana 5 gal. 20

Lavandula angustifolia `Hidcote Blue` Hidcote Lavender 5 gal. 12

Rosmarinus officinalis `Prostratus` Dwarf Rosemary 5 gal. 22

Salvia `Waverly Waverly Sage 5 gal. 16

Salvia greggii `Lipstick` Autumn Sage 5 gal 24

Salvia leucantha Mexican Sage 5 gal. 5

GROUND COVERS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING QTY

Rosmarinus officinalis Rosemary 1 gal. 46" o.c. 7

PLANT SCHEDULE PLANTING LIST INSIDE 30' ZONE

SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE QTY

Aquilegia formosa Western Columbine 5 gal. 10

Heteromeles arbutifolia Toyon 5 gal. 1

Iris x pacifica `Native Warrior` Native P.C. Iris 5 gal. 8

Mahonia repens Creeping Mahonia 5 gal. 5

GROUND COVERS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING QTY

Arctostaphylos uva-ursi Manzanita uva-ursi 1 gal. 50" o.c. 22

PLANT SCHEDULE PLANT LIST OUTSIDE 30' ZONE

N o r t h

SUVIEW RD

Residence

15
31

0 
Su

vi
ew

 D
riv

e,
 L

os
 G

at
os

, C
A

V
ER

G
A

R
A

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

L-1

SCALE

DRAWN

JOB

DATE

1"=10'-0"

VERGARA

IN

02-14-20

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N
C

al
if.

 R
eg

. #
22

39
   

   
 (4

08
) 8

42
-0

24
5

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
A

IT
K

EN
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S

N o r t h

0

20105

ai
tk

en
as

so
ci

at
es

@
gm

ai
l.c

om

82
62

 R
an

ch
o 

R
ea

l G
ilr

oy
, C

A
 9

50
20

* NOTES (E) = Existing

SITE PLAN
SCALE 1"=100'

Page 89



 

PREPARED BY: Sean Mullin, AICP 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 406-354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                         
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 05/27/2020 

ITEM NO: 3 

 
   

 

DATE:   May 22, 2020 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Forward a Recommendation to the Town Council for Approval of 
Amendments to Chapter 29 (Zoning Regulations) of the Town Code Regarding 
Vehicle Sales, Town Wide.  Town Code Amendment Application A-20-003.  
Applicant: Town of Los Gatos  

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Town Council for approval of amendments to Chapter 29 
(Zoning Regulations) of the Town Code regarding vehicle sales. 
 

CEQA:   
 
The proposed project is exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the Implementation of 
the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15061(b)(3), in that it can be seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that the amendments to Chapter 29 of the Town Code will 
have a significant effect on the environment. 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
 As required, the project is exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 

Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15061(b)(3); and 
 The amendments to Chapter 29 of the Town Code are consistent with the General Plan. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Sections 29.20.180 through 29.20.200 of the Town Code regulate conditional uses.  The Table 
of Conditional Uses in Section 29.10.185, requires approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
for new vehicle sales and rental in the C-2, LM, and CH zones.  Additionally, used vehicle sales 
are allowed with approval of a CUP in the C-2, LM, and CH zones only when their sale is  

Page 90



PAGE 2 OF 4 
SUBJECT: Vehicle Sales 
DATE: May 22, 2020 
 
BACKGROUND (continued): 
 
incidental to new vehicle sales and rental.  Standalone used vehicle sales are not currently 
allowed as a permitted or conditional use in any zone. 
 
The Town was approached by a business seeking to locate a standalone used vehicle sales 
business in the C-2 zone.  Given the unique business model proposed by the business owner, 
staff forwarded the issue to the Town Council Policy Committee to seek input and direction on 
the appropriateness of standalone used vehicle sales in commercial and industrial zones.  
 
On January 28, 2020, the Policy Committee discussed the matter and recommended that 
standalone used vehicle sales be allowed with an approved CUP for vehicle sales and rental in 
the C-2, LM, and CH zones (Exhibit 2).  The Policy Committee recognized that vehicle sales 
would continue to require a CUP, and that the Planning Commission would consider whether a 
vehicle sales and rental use at a specific site is appropriate or not when reviewing the CUP 
application. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A. Amendments to the Town Code 
 

The Policy Committee recommended that the Town Code be amended to allow standalone 
used vehicle sales with an approved CUP for vehicle sales and rental in the C-2, LM, and CH 
zones.  Section 29.20.185, Table of Conditional Uses would be amended by striking “new” 
from the new vehicle sales and rental category and eliminating the used vehicle sales 
category.  This change would eliminate the distinction between new and used vehicle sales, 
allowing standalone used vehicle sales in the C-2, LM, and CH zones with an approved CUP.   

 

TABLE OF CONDITIONAL 
USES 

RC HR R1 RD R-M RMH R-1D O C-1 C-2 CH LM CM 

(7)  Automotive (Vehicle sales, services, and related activities) 

a. New vVehicle sales 
and rental 

         X X X  

b. Used vehicle sales 
only incidental to 
new vehicle sales 
and rental. Reserved 

         X X X  

 
  

Page 91



PAGE 3 OF 4 
SUBJECT: Vehicle Sales 
DATE: May 22, 2020 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 
 
B. Public Outreach 
 
 Public input has been requested through the following media and social media resources:  
 

 A poster at the Planning counter at Town Hall;  

 The Town’s website home page, What’s New;  

 The Town’s Facebook page;  

 The Town’s Twitter account;  

 The Town’s Instagram account; and  

 The Town’s Next Door page.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
At this time, the Town has not received any public comments. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
A. Recommendation 

 
Based on the direction of the Policy Committee, staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission review the information included in the staff report and forward a 
recommendation to the Town Council for approval of the amendments to Chapter 29 of the 
Town Code in the draft Ordinance.  The Commission should also include any comments or 
recommended changes to the draft Ordinance in taking the following actions: 

 
1. Make the finding that the proposed project is exempt, pursuant to the adopted 

Guidelines for the implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 
15061 (b) (3), in that there is no possibility that the amendments to Chapter 29 of the 
Town Code in the draft Ordinance will have a significant effect on the environment 
(Exhibit 1);  

2. Make the finding that the amendments to Chapter 29 of the Town Code in the draft 
Ordinance are consistent with the General Plan (Exhibit 1); 

3. Forward a recommendation to the Town Council for approval of the amendments to 
Chapter 29 of the Town Code in the draft Ordinance (Exhibit 3). 

  

Page 92



PAGE 4 OF 4 
SUBJECT: Vehicle Sales 
DATE: May 22, 2020 
 
CONCLUSION (continued): 
 
B. Alternatives 
 

Alternatively, the Commission can: 
 
1. Forward a recommendation to the Town Council for approval of the draft Ordinance 

with modifications; or 
2. Forward a recommendation to the Town Council for denial of the draft Ordinance; or  
3. Continue the matter to a date certain with specific direction.  

 
EXHIBITS: 
 
1. Required Findings 
2. January 28, 2020, Town Council Policy Committee Report 
3. Draft Ordinance 

Page 93



PLANNING COMMISSION – May 27, 2020 
REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR: 
 
Town Code Amendment Application A-20-003 
Forward a recommendation to the Town Council for approval of amendments to Chapter 29 
(Zoning Regulations) of the Town Code regarding vehicle sales. 
 

FINDINGS 
 
Required Findings for CEQA: 
 

 The proposed project is exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the Implementation 
of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15061(b)(3), in that it can be seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that the amendments to Chapter 29 of the Town Code 
will have a significant effect on the environment. 

 
Required Findings for General Plan: 
 

 The proposed amendments to Chapter 29 of the Town Code are consistent with the General 
Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2020\VEHICLE SALES - FINDINGS - PC 05-27-20.DOCX 

 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1 Page 94



PREPARED BY: Monica Renn 
Economic Vitality Manager 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Finance Director 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS   

COUNCIL POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 01/28/2020 

ITEM NO: 5 

DATE: January 23, 2020 

TO: Council Policy Committee 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Discuss the Town’s interpretation of “used vehicles” in the Town Code and 
determine if an exemption for indoor showrooms is appropriate.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Discuss the Town’s interpretation of “used vehicles” in the Town Code and determine if an 
exemption for indoor showrooms is appropriate.  

BACKGROUND: 

The Town’s Zoning Code, Chapter 29 of the Town Code, does not specifically define used 
vehicles; however, it does regulate them in the Table of Conditional Uses in Section 29.20.185 
by requiring used vehicle sales to be incidental to new vehicle sales and rentals.  Town staff 
interprets the intent of this language to be prohibitive of standalone used vehicle lots that 
occupy outdoor commercial spaces as parking lots for a large quantity of vehicles (i.e., over 
twenty cars).  Outdoor lots can be a potential visual blight on a shopping area.  Town staff seeks 
the Policy Committee’s input and direction on excluding indoor only showrooms from the 
intent of the current Town Code language.  

DISCUSSION: 

The Town has been approached by a business who would like to locate in the C-2 zoning 

district.  In this case, the business is a used vehicle dealership wherein only previously owned 

vehicles are sold; however, the vehicles are those that are vintage, rare, exotic, or of a class 

that are not obtained at a typical dealership.  This business model offers a high-end niche retail 

sales experience coupled with an experience for vehicle enthusiasts to enjoy as a spectator.  

54

EXHIBIT 2

Page 95



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: Discuss the Town’s interpretation of “used vehicles.” 
DATE:  January 23, 2020 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

The business is requesting to have an indoor only showroom with approximately six to ten used 
vehicles onsite at any given time.  The business would also offer customers the ability to 
request a specific make, model, and vintage of a vehicle, which  the dealer would then work to 
locate the desired vehicle.  All vehicles for sale would remain on display indoors, and the point 
of sale origin for sales tax purposes would be the same Los Gatos location as the showroom. 
      
CONCLUSION: 

Town staff believes that a differentiation could be made that exempts indoor only showrooms 
for the sale of used vehicles to allow for specialty and niche businesses which do not occupy 
any outdoor commercial spaces with used vehicles.  The exemption of indoor showrooms 
would allow for the sale of used vehicles alone; however, it would require that they be 
completely contained indoors in a commercial zone.  Given the Town Council’s Strategic Priority 
to create greater opportunities for Community Vitality and business interests, staff believes it 
could be appropriate to make this interpretation, thus we have brought the item forward for 
the Policy Committee to discuss and provide direction. 
 
COORDINATION: 

This report has been prepared with collaboration between the Town Manager’s and Town 
Attorney’s Offices, and the Community Development Department.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact would be realized by this item.   
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 
 
This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

55Page 96



1 of 4  
Ordinance   Council Meeting Date 

 DRAFT ORDINANCE 2020-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
AMENDING CHAPTER 29 (ZONING REGULATIONS) OF THE TOWN CODE 

REGARDING VEHICLE SALES 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 29 (Zoning Ordinance) of the Town Code of the Town of Los Gatos 

regulates vehicle sales in the C-2, LM, and CH zones by requiring the approval of a Conditional 

Use Permit; and 

WHEREAS, Section 29.20.185 of the Town Code allows used vehicle sales only when 

incidental to new vehicle sales in the C-2, LM, and CH zones with an approved Conditional Use 

Permit; and 

WHEREAS, the Town was approached by a used vehicle sales business seeking to locate 

in the C-2 zone; and 

WHEREAS, given the unique characteristics of the request, the issue was forwarded to 

the Town Council Policy Committee to seek input and direction on the appropriateness of 

standalone used vehicle sales; and 

WHEREAS, on January 28, 2020, the Town Council Policy Committee considered the 

matter and recommended that standalone used vehicle sales be allowed with an approved 

Conditional Use Permit in the C-2, LM, and CH zones; and 

WHEREAS, this matter was regularly noticed in conformance with State and Town law 

and came before the Planning Commission for public hearing on May 27, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, on May 27, 2020, the Planning Commission reviewed and commented on 

the proposed amendments regarding vehicle sales in the C-2, LM, and CH zones and forwarded 

a recommendation to the Town Council for approval of the proposed amendments; and 

WHEREAS, this matter was regularly noticed in conformance with State and Town law 

and came before the Town Council for public hearing on ____ _, ____; and  

WHEREAS, on ____ _, ____, the Town Council reviewed and commented on the 

amendments to Chapter 29 of the Town Code and the Town Council voted to introduce the 

Ordinance. 

EXHIBIT 3 

Draft Ordinance: subject to 
modification by Town Council 

based on deliberations and 
direction 

Page 97



2 of 4  
Ordinance   Council Meeting Date 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS DOES 

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION I 

 
Chapter 29 of the Los Gatos Town Code is hereby amended as follows:  

 
ARTICLE II. DIVISION 3. APPROVALS 
 
….. 
Sec. 29.20.185. Table of Conditional Uses.  
 
….. 

TABLE OF CONDITIONAL 
USES 

RC HR R1 RD R-M RMH R-1D O C-1 C-2 CH LM CM 

(7)  Automotive (Vehicle sales, services, and related activities) 

a. New vVehicle 
sales and rental 

         X X X  

b. Used vehicle 
sales only incidental 
to new vehicle sales 
and rental. 
Reserved. 

         X X X  

 
….. 
 

SECTION II 
 

With respect to compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the 

Town Council finds as follows:  

A. These Town Code amendments are exempt from review under CEQA 

pursuant to sections and 15061(b)(3), in that it can be seen with certainty that there is no 

possibility that the amendments to the Town Code would have a significant effect on the 

environment; and 

B. The amendments to the Town Code are consistent with the General Plan.  

 

Page 98



3 of 4  
Ordinance   Council Meeting Date 

SECTION III 
 

If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstances is held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 

applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 

application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  The Town Council 

hereby declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance irrespective of the invalidity of any 

particular portion thereof and intends that the invalid portions should be severed and the 

balance of the ordinance be enforced. 

SECTION IV 
 

Except as expressly modified in this Ordinance, all other sections set forth in the Los 

Gatos Town Code shall remain unchanged and shall be in full force and effect.  

 

Page 99



4 of 4  
Ordinance   Council Meeting Date 

SECTION V 
 

This Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of 

Los Gatos on the ___ day of _____ 2020 , and adopted by the following vote as an ordinance of 

the Town of Los Gatos at a regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Los Gatos on 

the ____ day of _____ 2020 . This ordinance takes effect 30 days after it is adopted.  In lieu of 

publication of the full text of the ordinance within fifteen (15) days after its passage a summary 

of the ordinance may be published at least five (5) days prior to and fifteen (15) days after 

adoption by the Town Council and a certified copy shall be posted in the office of the Town 

Clerk, pursuant to GC 36933(c)(1).   

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

AYES:  

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

       SIGNED: 
 
 

      MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
       LOS GATOS, CALIFORNIA 
 
       DATE: __________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
TOWN CLERK OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
LOS GATOS, CALIFORNIA 

DATE: __________________ 

Page 100


	Top
	1. 59 N Santa Cruz Avenue Addition to Commercial Building
	Santa Cruz N, 59 - 05-27-20 STAFF REPORT
	Exhibit 1 - Location Map
	Exhibit 2 - Findings and Considerations
	Exhibit 3 - Conditions of Approval
	Exhibit 4 - Property owners Letter of justification
	Exhibit 5 - Applicant's Letter of Justification
	Exhibit 6 - Photos of the site
	Exhibit 7 - Development Plans

	2. 15310 Suview Drive Request for Demolition and Construction of Single Family Home
	Suview Drive, 15310 - PC 04-08-20 - STAFF REPORT
	Exhibit 1 - Location Map
	Exhibit 2 - Findings
	Exhibit 3 - Conditions of Approval
	Exhibit 4 - Color and Materials Board
	Exhibit 5 - Project Description and Letter of Justification
	Exhibit 6 - Consulting Architect's Report
	Exhibit 7 - Town Arborist's Report
	Exhibit 8 - Neighbor Letters
	Exhibit 9 - Project Plans

	3. Town Code Amendment Application A-20-003 - Vehicle Sales
	Vehicle Sales - PC 05-27-20 - STAFF REPORT
	Exhibit 1 - Required Findings
	Exhibt 2 - Town Council Policy Committee Report - 01-28-20
	Exhibit 3 - Draft Ordinance

	Bottom

